
           

FINAL AGENDA
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY
JULY 7, 2015

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M.
 

4:00 P.M. MEETING
 

Individual Items on the 4:00 p.m. meeting agenda may be postponed to the 6:00 p.m.
meeting.

             

1. CALL TO ORDER

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and
to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means .

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its citizens.
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Joint Work Session of April 6, 2015;
Work Session of April 14, 2015; Special Work Session of April 17, 2015; Work Session of
April 28, 2015; Work Session of May 12, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive Session) of
June 3, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 9, 2015; Work Session of June 9,
2015; Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 11, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive
Session) of June 12, 2015; Regular Meeting of June 16, 2015; and Special Meeting
(Executive Session) of June 30, 2015.

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not on the
agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments relating to items that
are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is discussed. If you wish to address
the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a comment card and submit it to the
recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be called when it is your turn to speak.
You may address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments
made during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow
everyone an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present
at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more
than fifteen minutes to speak. 

 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

None 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and
to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive session, which will not
be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or considering employment, assignment,
appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public
officer, appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).

 

A.   Consideration of Appointments:  Library Board.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Make three (3) appointments to term expiring November 2017.
 

B.   Consideration of Appointments:  Planning and Zoning Commission.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Make one appointment to a term expiring December 2017.
 

C.   Consideration of Appointments:  Open Space Commission.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Make one At-Large appointment to a term expiring April 2016.
 

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS

None
 

9. CONSENT ITEMS

All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and will
be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. Unless
otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items.

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting July 7, 2015                           2 



             

A.   Consideration and Approval of Sole Source Contract:  Sole source advertising contract
with Legends Entertainment District.  (Purchase of the Flagstaff Cool Zone)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the purchase of the Flagstaff Cool Zone with Legends Entertainment District in

the amount of $65,000, as a sole source procurement. 
 

10. ROUTINE ITEMS
 

A.   Consideration and approval of Grant Agreement: To the U.S. Department of Justice,
through the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission, for the Edward Byrne Justice Assistance
Grant funds in the amount of $291,660.00 for the Northern Arizona Street Crimes Task
Force (aka METRO unit). 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the acceptance of the grant from the U.S. Department of Justice, through the

Arizona Criminal Justice Commission, Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant funds in
the amount of $291,660.00 for FY2016.

 

B.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-15:  An ordinance of the Flagstaff
City Council adopting amendments to the Flagstaff City Code, Title 5, Fire Code, to be
consistent with Arizona Revised Statutes. (Fireworks Regulations)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
   At the Council Meeting of July 7, 2015

1) Read  Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the first time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the first time (if approved
above)
At the Council Meeting of July 21, 2015
3) Read Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the final time (if approved
above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-15

 

C.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-11:  An ordinance levying upon the
assessed valuation of the property within the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, subject to taxation a
certain sum upon each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of valuation sufficient to raise the
amount estimated to be required in the Annual Budget, less the amount estimated to be
received from other sources of revenue; providing funds for various bond redemptions, for
the purpose of paying interest upon bonded indebtedness and providing funds for general
municipal expenses, all for the Fiscal Year ending the 30th day of June, 2016.
(Property Tax Levy for FY 15-16)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Read Ordinance No. 2015-11 by title only for the final time

2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-11 by title only ( if approved above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-11

 

D.   Consideration of Appointment and Approval of Agreement: City Manager.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Appoint and approve the agreement for Josh Copley as the City Manager effective

September 10, 2015 for the City of Flagstaff.
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting July 7, 2015                           3 



             

E.   Consideration of Appointments:  Magistrates and Presiding Magistrate for the Flagstaff
Municipal Court

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the appointments of Thomas L. Chotena as the Presiding Magistrate, Michael

Araujo as Magistrate and Paul Julien as Magistrate, On-Call.
 

F.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-14:  Amending the Employee
Handbook of Regulations and Flagstaff City Code by adopting amendments relating to
Retiree Insurance relating to eligibility.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  At the July 7, 2015, Regular Council Meeting:

1)  Read Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the first time by title only
2)  City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the first time by title only (if approved
above)
At the July 21, 2015, Regular Council Meeting:
3) Read Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time (if approved above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-14

 

RECESS 

6:00 P.M. MEETING

RECONVENE
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

 
 

11. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 

13. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

None
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting July 7, 2015                           4 



             

15. REGULAR AGENDA
 

A.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015 - 12:  An ordinance of approval for
the Roadway Functional Classifications and Truck Routes map being placed into the
Engineering Standards.   (Update/Addition to Engineering Standards)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  At the City Council meeting of July 7, 2015

1) Read Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only for the first time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only (if approved above)
At the City Council meeting of July 21, 2015
3) Read Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only (if approved above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-12

 

B.   Approval of Ballot Language:  For November 2015 Special Election. (Approval of Ballot
Language as exhibit to Resolution No. 2015-26)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve Ballot Language as Exhibit to Resolution No. 2015-26 adopted on June 16,

2015.
 

16. DISCUSSION ITEMS

None
 

17. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS

After discussion and upon agreement of three members of the Council, an item will be
moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.

 

A. Request by Councilmember Oravits for a future agenda item to have provided a Low Impact
Development Update.

 

B. Request by Vice Mayor Barotz for a future agenda to discuss a possible resolution of
support for the Stepping Up Initiative.

 

18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, REQUESTS
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 

19. ADJOURNMENT

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on ___________ ,
at _________ a.m./p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the City Council with the City Clerk.

Dated this _____ day of _________________, 2015.

____________________________________
Elizabeth A. Burke, MMC, City Clerk                                 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting July 7, 2015                           5 



  4. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 07/01/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE
Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Joint Work Session of April 6, 2015; Work
Session of April 14, 2015; Special Work Session of April 17, 2015; Work Session of April 28, 2015; Work
Session of May 12, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 3, 2015; Special Meeting
(Executive Session) of June 9, 2015; Work Session of June 9, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive
Session) of June 11, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 12, 2015; Regular Meeting of
June 16, 2015; and Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 30, 2015.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Joint Work Session of April 6, 2015; Work Session
of April 14, 2015; Special Work Session of April 17, 2015; Work Session of April 28, 2015; Work
Session of May 12, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 3, 2015; Special Meeting
(Executive Session) of June 9, 2015; Work Session of June 9, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive
Session) of June 11, 2015; Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 12, 2015; Regular
Meeting of June 16, 2015; and the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 30, 2015.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Minutes of City Council meetings are a requirement of Arizona Revised Statutes and, additionally,
provide a method of informing the public of discussions and actions being taken by the City Council.

INFORMATION:
COUNCIL GOAL

Improve effectiveness of notification, communication, and engagement with residents,
neighborhoods and businesses and about City services, programs, policies, projects and
development

8.

Attachments:  04.06.2015.CCJWS
04.14.2015.CCWS
04.17.2015.CCSWS
04.28.2015.CCWS
05.12.2015.CCWS
06.03.2015.CCSMES
06.09.2015.CCSMES
06.09.2015.CCWS
06.16.2015.CCRM



06.16.2015.CCRM
06.11.2015.CCSMES
06.12.2015.CCSMES
06.30.2015.CCSMES



JOINT CITY/COUNTY WORK SESSION
MONDAY, APRIL 6, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

4:00 P.M.

MINUTES
               

1. Call to Order
 
  Chairman Metzger called the Joint City/County Work Session of April 6, 2015, to order at

4:00 p.m.
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance
 
  The audience, City Council and Board of Supervisors recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
 

3. Roll Call:
  
NOTE: One or more Councilmembers/Supervisors may be in attendance telephonically or by

other technological means.

PRESENT

CHAIRWOMAN METZGER
SUPERVISOR ARCHULETA (arrived at 4:11 p.m.)
SUPERVISOR BABBOTT
SUPERVISOR FOWLER
SUPERVISOR RYAN

ABSENT

 

PRESENT

MAYOR NABOURS (arrived at 5:33 p.m.)
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT

 

Others present:  Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck; City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea; County
Manager Cynthia Seelhammer; County Senior Civil Deputy Attorney Bill Ring.

 

4. Public Participation:

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an items that  are not on  
the agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at the end

of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone wishing to
comment on an item that  is on the agenda is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the
recording clerk. When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may



address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made during
Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone an
opportunity to speak.

 
  None
 

5. Annual Update:  Flagstaff Downtown Business Improvement and Revitalization District.   

 
  Community Design and Redevelopment Manager Karl Eberhard introduced Executive Director of

the Flagstaff Downtown Business Improvement and Revitalization District Terry Madeksza and
Chairman of the Board John VanLandingham who provided a PowerPoint presentation that
covered the following:
 
FLAGSTAFF DOWNTOWN BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AND REVITALIZATION DISTRICT – 

ANNUAL REPORT
BACKGROUND
BOUNDARIES
2014 MILESTONES
2014 ADDITIONAL MILESTONES
LOOKING AHEAD

 
Supervisor Babbott thanked Ms. Madeksza and Mr. VanLandingham for the presentation and
stated that it is great to see the evolution of the Downtown Business Alliance and all the positive
that has come from that. He asked for additional information on the foundation of the ARS
statutes which enable the district in regards to infrastructure improvements and what that looks
like going forward. Mr. VanLandingham stated that the requirement is that there be one capital
improvement project completed within the first two years of the district forming. Legal counsel
has advised the District that there is a legal minimum threshold of $15,000. The goal is to meet
that legal threshold in a way that addresses parking. Beyond that there is no legal requirement
for additional capital improvement projects. The District may choose to take on additional
projects to help address the large concerns around parking.
 
Supervisor Babbott asked how the District visualizes the relationship with the City Parks and
Recreation special event process. Ms. Medeksza stated that the District has been in
conversations with City staff about the process and a great relationship has been established.
The District worked with City staff to provide input for guidelines for street closures around
Heritage Square and provided specific content that is being included in the packet.
Additionally, the District has established itself as a primary contact for special events downtown.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz stated that the City Council just started reviewing the packet for special events
and the new process will include the District in a different way than before. Ms. Medeksza added
that the City has offered the District a seat at the table for discussion on all events in the
downtown area.
 
Lance Diskan addressed the City Council and Board of Supervisors stating that he hopes that
Flagstaff’s indigenous identity is taken into account. Flagstaff has a tradition of being a dark sky
community and he hopes that the District will capitalize on that.

 

Joint Work Session April 6, 2015                          2 



           

6. State FY16 Budget Update - City and County Impacts   

 
  Deputy City Manager Jerene Watson introduced the City’s State Lobbyist Richard Travis

who provided a PowerPoint presentation that covered the following:
 
CITY AND COUNTY FY16 STATE BUDGET UPDATE
STATE BUDGET OVERVIEW – STATEWIDE IMPACTS
 
Councilmember Oravits stated that SB1079 was a bill that opened multi-family housing
trash pick up to private haulers; he asked for more information on how that affects the City.
Mr. Travis stated that it allows the owner of a multi family unit to decide if they want to stay
with a municipal contractor or move to a private hauler. The City will be losing this revenue
should the owners decide to move to a private contractor. The rate that the City charges is
determined by how much it costs to operate the landfill; as that shifts the remaining users
will have to carry that increased cost.
 
Councilmember Oravits asked if there has been work done on SB1187. Mr. Travis stated
that an amendment was proposed to Representative Thorpe to clarify and limit municipal
exposure. The complaint of the private trash haulers is that they cannot compete with
municipal governments because they are not required to pay various fees and taxes. The
amendment was designed to limit the municipal exposure and the amendment did pass.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz asked Mr. Travis to speak about the Federal healthcare spending
decrease. Mr. Travis stated that Arizona operates on a max system with the Federal
government for a lot of healthcare costs. For every dollar that is put in two are returned
back. Over a two year period the Legislature cut $80 million in funds that were to go into
the AHCCCS program for providers. By cutting this $80 million it reduced the amount that
the State is able to draw down from the Federal government by an additional $80 million so
there is a loss of $160 million total.
 
Ms. Watson continued the presentation.
 
STATE BUDGET OVERVIEW – CITY FINANCIAL IMPACTS
 
Government Relations Director Joanne Keene continued the presentation with information
from Coconino County.
 
COCONINO COUNTY STATE BUDGET UPDATE
FY2016 STATE BUDGET IMPACTS
 
Councilmember Overton asked if the County saw any increases in revenue from the casino
at Twin Arrows. County Manager Cynthia Seelhammer stated that anything built on tribal
lands is not taxed. The tribe does have a requirement to provide charitable funds and they
have made a contribution of $25,000 to the County for public safety. Mr. Travis added that
there is an 8% of total revenue that is paid to the general fund; however, that total is not
tracked because the revenues are kept confidential.
 
Supervisor Ryan stated that the budgeting process is extremely frustrating because the
counties and cities have balanced their budgets only to have to come back and figure it all
out again to accommodate significant changes in State funding.

 

Joint Work Session April 6, 2015                          3 



           

7. Coconino County Community Development Project Update   

 
  Coconino County Community Development Director Jay Christelman provided a PowerPoint

presentation that covered the following:
 
COCONINO COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GROWTH TRENDS
COUNTY AND CITY POPULATION
OVERVIEW
COLOR INDEX
NATIONWIDE TRENDS
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY MAP
HOUSING AND COMMERCIAL PERMIT ACTIVITY
OVERALL PERMIT ACTIVITY
FUTURE COUNTY GROWTH
CHALLENGES
 
Supervisor Archuleta stated that the 64 unit proposal is actually in the Timberline area and is
off of the landfill road.
 
Supervisor Babbott noted that the recent census numbers showed a decrease in population
in the City and an increase in the County; he asked if that might have any financial impact on
the City. Mr. Meilbeck stated that he will research those implications and report back.
 
Supervisor Babbott also noted that there are some significant service-related challenges in
the County. The Arizona Daily Sun recently reported on challenges faced by small water
providers to be fiscally viable. Fire districts and special districts are at their limit financially and
there are going to be some difficult challenges in the future and that can certainly have an
impact on how the County moves forward with further development.

 

8. Community Development Projects Update   

 
  Community Development Director Mark Landsiedel provided a PowerPoint presentation that

covered the following:
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MISSION AND VALUES
TOTAL BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION
HISTORIC CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
PLANNED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
LA PLAZA VIEJA – 2010 BOND IMPROVEMENTS
ROSE STREET 2010 BOND IMPROVEMENTS
WEST STREET
ARROWHEAD AVENUE
FLORENCE WALNUT FUTS UNDERCROSSING
FOURTH STREET
SWITZER CANYON ROUNDABOUT
PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP (P3) – BEULAH BOULEVARD AND UNIVERSITY 

DRIVE REALIGNMENT
EAST HOTEL
WEST HOTEL
MOUNTAIN TRAIL APARTMENTS
TRAILSIDE APARTMENTS
THE STANDARD MIXED USE
CVS PHARMACY
GUARDIAN AMBULANCE BUILDING

Joint Work Session April 6, 2015                          4 



GUARDIAN AMBULANCE BUILDING
INNOVATION MESA BUSINESS ACCELERATOR AND SECONDARY EMERGENCY

OPERATIONS PROJECT
CANYON DEL RIO
LITTLE AMERICA
THE LOFTS OF FLAGSTAFF
HARKINS THEATER
THE VILLAGE AT ASPEN PLACE
SPORTSMAN’S WAREHOUSE

 
Vice Mayor Barotz stated that the hotels on Country Club are right next to each other and
asked if they are catering to a specific base. Mr. Landsiedel stated that it is unknown but the
applications were submitted by the same company.
 
Councilmember Overton asked for an update on Juniper Point. Mr. Landsiedel stated that it is
still moving through the process for the rezoning application and he believes that the
development agreement may be before Council in the next couple of months.
 
Councilmember Putzova asked how many multi-family units are currently under construction,
not including the projects that were presented. Planning Director Dan Folke stated that other
than Aspen Place he is not sure there are any other significant developments going up at this
time. Councilmember Putzova stated that the new units should accommodate approximately
2,200 people and asked what the clientele is anticipated for at the apartment complexes.
Mr. Landsiedel explained that he does not have an answer to that question but stated that the
University is driving the project so it will likely be a mixture of students and faculty.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz asked if there are any projects that are multi-family but will apply for the
CUP for room and board. Mr. Landsiedel explained that there are some projects being talked
about in the community but no applications have been received.
 
Supervisor Archuleta indicated that part of the Canyon Del Rio project includes Harold Ranch
Road and she asked about the plans and impacts to that road. Mr. Landsiedel stated that
through the project Harold Ranch Road will be paved where it goes through Canyon Del Rio
but it will not be paved off of Butler until it reaches Canyon Del Rio.
 
Supervisor Archuleta then asked about the temporary pedestrian walkways on Fourth Street
and if those will become permanent structures. Mr. Landsiedel explained that the temporary
pedestrian crossings have been utilized quite well and locations are good so moving forward
they will be formalized and made into permanent structures. Supervisor Archuleta stated that
she appreciates the walkways and the way that the City tested them out prior to making them
permanent; she asked if there is any additional outreach planned for the surrounding
neighborhoods as that project continues forward. Mr. Landsiedel stated that more outreach
will be done as the plans are perfected and formalized.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz asked how many units are in the Switzer Canyon Townhomes that are
under construction. Mr. Folke stated that the project is a single family attached project with 48
units on just over 10 acres.

 

Joint Work Session April 6, 2015                          5 



           

9. City of Flagstaff Cinder Lake Landfill Significant Benchmarks   

 
  Public Works Section Head Pat Bourque displayed an aerial photo of the landfill. He stated

that the landfill was scheduled to close in 2024. The City purchased additional land around
the landfill and the life of the landfill was extended to 2042. Since then the landfill has done
some things in efficiencies and have further extended the life to 2054.
 
Mr. Bourque provided a PowerPoint presentation that covered the following:
 
PAPER SLUDGE
GREEN WASTE/WOOD WASTE
RECYCLING PROGRAMS
HAZARDOUS PRODUCT CENTER
REVISITED LANDFILL OPERATIONS TECHNIQUES
RESURVEYED LANDFILL FOOTPRINT
SUNDAY CLOSURE
EQUIPMENT
COMPACTOR GPS SCREENSHOT
OTHER PROJECTS
 
Mr. Bourque stated that staff is working with ADEQ to attempt to mine and sell rock
materials within the landfill property; the sale of that rock will pay for the excavation project.
In doing that the landfill will gain air space and another ten years of life.
 
Supervisor Ryan asked if decomposition has been considered with the use of the paper
sludge at the landfill. Mr. Bourque explained that as the paper sludge material dries out it
takes on the consistency of clay; there is no decomposition once the water comes out.
Decomposition of the landfill is natural and staff monitors the settling to make sure that the
landfill is used to its max capacity.
 
Mayor Nabours asked about the relationship between the landfill and county residents; he
also asked what other users there are of the landfill besides City residents. Mr. Bourque
stated that Cinder Lake is the only landfill in the northern, central part of the state. County
residents do use the landfill along with City residents. The City did have an IGA with
Williams and unfortunately they decided to end the contract and take their material to Waste
Management on Flag Ranch Road because Waste Management is about 15 miles closer to
Williams. The landfill does collect refuse from the transfer stations on the reservation. Mayor
Nabours asked the percentage of the trash that is brought in by the City and County.
Mr. Bourque stated that about 10% of the total landfill tonnage is from county materials. That
number does fluctuate due to private haulers utilizing the landfill as the cost of transferring
material is expensive and contractors will use the closest landfill available.

 

10. Fort Tuthill County Park - Update   

 
  Coconino County Parks and Recreation Director Judy Weiss provided a PowerPoint

presentation that covered the following:
 
FORT TUTHILL COUNTY PARK
WHERE WE STARTED
THEN AND NOW
            Commercial building
            Rodeo
            County Fair
            Amphitheater

Joint Work Session April 6, 2015                          6 



            Amphitheater
THE FUTURE
FORT TUTHILL VISION
IMPLEMENTATION
MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION
            Entry Monumentation
            Fort Tuthill Mountain Bike Skills Park
            Amphitheater
            Acquisition of State Land
            APS Substation
            Snow Play
DESIGN/CONTRACTS UNDERWAY
PUBLIC/PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS – 2014
 
Councilmember Putzova asked if there is a cost associated with the partnership that refers
revenue to the County. Ms. Weiss stated that the only costs are for administrating the
contracts and that is fairly minimal.
 
Mayor Nabours asked if there are plans to make snow at the snow play area in the coming
year. Ms. Weiss explained that it is a discussion that will be had with staff and the City first to
see what thoughts there are to make it a more successful facility.
 
Supervisor Ryan stated that grassroots support would be helpful as the County moves
forward with acquiring State Trust land coming up for auction this summer. He also stated
that the bike park is doing a lot of fundraising and support of those efforts would also be
appreciated. Additionally, the sewage project that is coming up will benefit the City and
County and the County looks forward to working with the City on that.

 

11. Informational Items To/From Chairman, Supervisors and County Manager/Mayor,
Council and City Manager.

 
  Supervisor Fowler stated that the long wait for Highway 89 to reopen is over; the temporary

route will be transferred back to the Navajo Nation but it will remain open to the public.
 
Councilmember Oravits thanked staff for the increase in streaming of public meetings. He
noted that the City is moving towards having Board and Commission meeting streamed. He
stated that he had received questions about whether or not the County will move in this
direction and urged the County to look into the technology as a benefit for their citizens.
 
Councilmember Brewster thanked the Board of Supervisors for participating in the meeting
and thanked staff for their informative reports.
 
Supervisor Ryan stated that the astronomical community and Camp Navajo have been
involved in long term discussions that have lead to a desire to work together to protect their
own missions. The idea is to work with the community on how to protect the visions and
missions. He stated that public participation will be an essential piece for developing their
plans.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz thanked the Board of Supervisors for attending and the staff for their great
presentations.
 
Councilmember Putzova extended an invitation to the public to attend a Veteran’s Home
open house on Saturday, April 11, 2015 from 4:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. in the lobby to discuss
the City’s consideration of gifting a parcel of land on McMillan Mesa.
 

Joint Work Session April 6, 2015                          7 



Supervisor Archuleta thanked staff for their presentations and the information that was given.
She also stated that the majority of the economic impact generated by Fort Tuthill comes to
the City of Flagstaff. There is some increased opportunity for City partnership with the
County for advertisement of the activities available at Fort Tuthill.
 
Councilmember Evans thanked the Board of Supervisors for attending and thanked all staff
for their presentations.
 
Supervisor Babbott also thanked staff for their informative presentations and the Council for
their participation.
 
Councilmember Overton thanked everyone for their participation and noted that it is always
good to have the County at the table with the City.
 
Chairwoman Metzger stated that she enjoyed being at the meeting and hearing what the
City and County is doing. She stated that there are some wonderful festivities and activities
that are coming up as the rural communities start becoming active after the winter.
 
Mayor Nabours stated that he appreciated that the discussions about the landfill and Fort
Tuthill were back to back because they  are such a benefit to both the City and County. He
stated that it is a testament of how the City and County can work so much better by working
together and these two projects show that.

 

12. Public Participation
 
  None
 

13. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff Joint City Council/County Board of Supervisors Work Session of April 6, 2015,

adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

 

 

_______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

Joint Work Session April 6, 2015                          8 



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
APRIL 14, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

4:00 P.M.
 

MINUTES
               

1. Call to Order

Mayor Nabours called the Work Session of April 14, 2015, to order at 4:01 p.m.
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance

The audience and City Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
 

3. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT:

NONE

 

Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.
 

4. Public Participation 

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on the
prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at the
end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone wishing to
comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the recording clerk.
When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may address the Council
up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public Participation.
Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone to have an opportunity to
speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and wishing to
speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak.

None
 



           

5. Service Partner Presentations - 2015   

 
  Mayor Nabours said that the presentations tonight were to allow the Council to hear from the

various service organizations on how their contracts with the City are working and what they
have been doing. It was not to discuss any funding issues; those would need to be brought
forward during the budget meetings next week.

The following organizations then provided an update on their respective group, as outlined in
the PowerPoint presentation, attached hereto as Exhibit A:

Science Foundation of Arizona
Victim Witness
Greater Flagstaff Forests Partnership
The Guidance Center Alcohol Stabilization Unit (ASU)
Coconino Humane Society
Coconino Coalition for Children and Youth (CCC&Y)
Northern Arizona Center Against Sexual Assault (NACASA)
Family and Community Teaming for Students (FACTS)
United Way of Northern Arizona

 

6. 2015 /2016 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Award Recommendations   

 
  Housing and Grants Administrator Leah Bloom said that on an annual basis, the City of

Flagstaff receives CDBG funds from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD). CDBG funds must be used for the development of viable urban communities through
the provision of: decent housing, a suitable living environment or economic opportunity,
principally for low and moderate income persons. In addition, City Council has also
established the following CDBG funding priorities: housing, homelessness, neighborhood
revitalization and seriously mentally ill /serial inebriate populations.  Staff conducted the
proposal process and was at the meeting to present their recommendations for the use of
15/16 CDBG funding. She then gave a PowerPoint presentation which addressed:

CDBG OVERVIEW
COUNCIL DIRECTION AND STAFF RESPONSIBILITIES
PRIORITIES
            Housing
            Homelessness
            Neighborhood Revitalization
            Mentally ill and/or Serial Inebriate Population
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS
UPCOMING
5-YEAR PLAN DUE MAY 2016
EXAMPLES 
HOW MUCH ARE WE TALKING ABOUT?
DISTRIBUTION ALLOWED BY HUD       
$ EACH CATEGORY
PUBLIC SERVICE PROPOSALS
HOUSING PROPOSALS    
PUBLIC SERVICE RECOMMENDATIONS
HOUSING ACTIVITIES
RECOMMENDATIONS
NEXT STEPS

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 14, 2015                          2 



Councilmember Evans thanked staff for the presentation. She said that she had a major
issue with the Public Service item. She said that homelessness is a major issue, but
preventing it is also. The fact that they were not funding the Housing Stabilization Program
was a big concern to her.

Deputy Housing Director Sarah Darr said that she agreed. She said that this was the first
time the County has applied in the last three years. Staff's position was they needed to hold
a competitive ranking, as they have done in the past. She said that she did not sit on that
personally and had asked the same question. She said that the County's application left one
ten-point question unanswered which made a big difference.

Councilmember Evans said that she was not suggesting that they "unfund" the other items,
but she asked if they could use the $12,000 leftover funds for this program.

Mayor Nabours asked if this grant brought any strings with it to where they have to spread
any of the money between the City and County. Ms. Darr said that the funding is eligible for
other governmental entities and nonprofits. It has been the process to hold a competitive
process. Because of the cap in public service, there are two separate categories and the
funds cannot flow between one and the other. She said that the State Department of
Housing has made the City ineligible for HOME funds because they receive CDBG funds
and the City is not large enough to be their own HOME agency.

Mayor Nabours said that a few months ago they had a contract to consider where the City
provided administrative services to the County and asked what that was for. Ms. Darr said
that it was to administer on the County's behalf for their housing program, because the City
has a staff person and the County has program without a staff person.

Councilmember Overton said that he was disappointed to see they were at the cap for
administrative fees. Ms. Darr said that before the City instituted the indirect cost plan, they
stayed around 12-13% and without that plan they would still be there. She said that they
work to keep those costs down. She said that there has been some indication in a
conversation that this number may go up. Councilmember Overton said that he knew they
worked hard to keep those costs down, but it was hard to see $157,000 go to administration,
although he realized it was justified.

Councilmember Putzova asked if they had other proposals that did not turn into full ones.
Ms. Darr said that they did meet with two agencies that came in for technical assistance that
decided not to apply. She said that one agency went a different direction and the other
received a few dollars. She said that one activity was not CDBG eligible and they try to cut
people off at the pass if they do not fit the eligibility.

Ms. Darr said that in the past three years staff has been in front of Council at this point in the
process, not sure of what amount they would be receiving. She said that this year it is a
definite $579,000.

Further discussion was held on the remaining $12,000. Vice Mayor Barotz and
Councilmember Evans said that they would like to see the $12,000 go the Housing
Stabilization Program. Four members of Council agreed that they would stay with staff's
recommendation. Ms. Darr said that staff would prepare the resolution and bring it back for
consideration at the May 5, 2015, Council meeting.
  
   

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 14, 2015                          3 



   
 

7. Discussion of Potential Business License Code Changes   

 
  Revenue Director Andy Wagemaker said that the Arizona Department of Revenue assumes

all Transaction Privilege (Sales) Tax, or TPT, licensing on January 1, 2016. This TPT
simplification process has provided an opportunity to simplify and streamline other City
licensing codes.
 
He said that currently the TPT is required for any taxpayer that falls under the jurisdiction of
the Model City Tax Code. It applies to in-city and out-of-city businesses. He said that there
are approximately 6,000 accounts and one is required for each business location. He said
that currently this is a permanent license.
 
The Occupational Business License (OBL) is required for any business that falls under the
jurisdiction of the City’s Occupational Business License Code. It applies to in-city businesses
only and there are approximately 1,800 of these accounts. He said that one is required for
each business location and for each person as defined by code. An example of this is that
each attorney in an attorney’s office needs an OBL and this is an annual renewal.
 
Mr. Wagemaker said that with this change in 2016, the City will lose the ability to enforce
compliance with other City codes such as zoning, fire, building safety and the one-time $46
fee will now be annual.
 
Councilmember Oravits asked if they will be able to renew the annual fee online.
Mr. Wagemaker said that he did not know the answer to that question since it was being
taken over by the State.
 
He said that staff is proposing that they rename the OBL to Business License and also
remove the one OBL per person requirement. He said that it would be a license subject to
yearly renewal and includes businesses that currently may not have an OBL. They would be
able to apply this to compliance with other city codes as a condition of issuance.
 
He said that this change would also allow for the same exemptions currently in place and
would incorporate the peddler and solicitor requirements, eliminating the need for the
peddler and solicitor ordinance. It would also incorporate certain temporary use permits and
special events permit requirements. They would continue with the same fee ($20) until a
user fee study is completed.
 
Mr. Wagemaker said that if staff gets head nods to move forward staff will make
presentations to various groups in town and the ultimate goal would be to come back in the
fall for another presentation and possible adoption, with a start date of January 1, 2016.
 
Councilmember Brewster asked what would occur if a retail business that has been here for
a long time had met the zoning codes at that time, but now they do not and would need this
new business license. Mr. Wagemaker said that was a great question and he would need to
follow up with the Community Development department. He said that he does not see them
trying to catch businesses that way, but he would need to get an answer for that question.
 
Councilmember Overton asked at what point the State becomes a resource to staff and the
community, as taxpayers go to make a filing in 2016 seamless. Mr. Wagemaker said that
unfortunately it has not been very well coordinated to date. He said that the State has been
direct; staff can help taxpayers with filings, etc. but they cannot answer taxpayer questions.
 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 14, 2015                          4 



 
Mayor Nabours said, for clarification, that every business in town right now should have
either a TPT or BL. With what staff is proposing sales tax will be handled by the State and
everyone in Flagstaff should have a business license. Mr. Wagemaker said that was correct.
Staff was asking for Council’s support in moving in this direction.
 
Consensus of Council was to move forward; however, Councilmember Oravits said that he
was not there yet and wanted to see the outreach reactions.

 

8. Public Participation

None
 

9. Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager; requests for Possible
Future Agenda Items.

 
  Councilmember Putzova said that she would like to request a possible future agenda item

for the City joining the lawsuit against the State.

Vice Mayor Barotz reported that she and the Mayor, along with Mr. Meilbeck and Mr. Copley,
and others, met with General Toy with the Corps of Engineers and talked for one and
one-half hours. She thought it was one of the most productive meetings and feels cautiously
optimistic.

Vice Mayor Barotz reported that today was Equal Pay Day, and it was selected each year by
the National Commission on Pay Equity to show how much longer a woman must work to
receive the same as a man. Her hope is to get a CCR from staff that shows the City does
not have such a pay gap.

Mr. Meilbeck reported that Stephanie Smith was at a Transforming Local Government
conference in Phoenix and was presenting with the author of Extreme Government
Makeover.

Mayor Nabours reminded everyone that next week there was no Work Session, but the
budget session would be starting at noon on Tuesday, and noted there was the roundtable
discussion this coming Friday. Vice Mayor Barotz requested that the setup for the roundtable
be done in such a way that Councilmembers do not have their backs to the public.

 

10. Adjournment
 
  The Work Session of the Flagstaff City Council held April 14, 2015, adjourned at 6:58 p.m.

 

 _______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 14, 2015                          5 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL WORK SESSION
APRIL 17, 2015

COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

8:00 A.M.
 

MINUTES
               

1. Call to Order
 
  Mayor Nabours called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.
 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

 
  PRESENT ABSENT

  
MAYOR NABOURS NONE
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ  
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER  
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS  
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS  
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON  
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA  

Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck; Police Chief Kevin Treadway, Deputy Police
Chief Dan Musselman

 

3. Roundtable Discussion on Police and Dispatch Staffing Needs   

 
  Police Chief Kevin Treadway thanked Council for the opportunity to have an open discussion

about the staffing challenges in the Police Department. He introduced Deputy Chief Dan
Musselman who provided a PowerPoint presentation that covered the following:
 
DISCUSSION OUTLINE
29.4% VACANCY RATE SINCE 2013
THE 43 OFFICERS WE LOST
DEMOGRAPHICS AFFECTING RETENTION
STAFF REDUCTIONS
 
Councilmember Oravits pointed out that 60% of the officers have less than two years of
experience and he asked how that compared with the rest of the state. Chief Treadway stated
that it illustrates that Flagstaff has a young department. He added that most every law
enforcement agency is experiencing some turnover; it is just that Flagstaff’s turnover is much
more than others.
 



 
Councilmember Putzova asked why the hiring process and recruitment is targeting new
graduates. Chief Treadway stated that the biggest problem is with retention but recruitment has
also changed. Flagstaff tests every six weeks with around 20 applicants. Typically 50% will fail
and then of that 50% will fail the physical and then 50% of the remaining will fail the background
process. Of the initial 20 that were brought in for testing there are only two or three potential
hires; that is very different in the valley because they have approximately 1100 applicants for six
positions. The candidate pool is much larger to choose from in the valley.
 
Mayor Nabours asked about hiring already trained police officers that can transfer from another
agency. Chief Treadway stated that agencies love to hire laterals as they get an experienced
employee that is already certified and they can go directly into field training. At Flagstaff’s current
salary rate there are not many lateral applicants. For example the department just picked up its
first lateral in two years from Prescott. There were a few officers that attended training in the
valley and they thought that they had a good lateral recruit for Flagstaff however, when he
inquired about pay he discovered about a $20,000 cut in pay.
 
Councilmember Putzova suggested using a more targeted approach such as a recruitment firm
to find officers. There are costs associated with this kind of recruitment but with the training and
retention issues it may be beneficial. Chief Treadway noted that the Police Department has
worked extremely hard on its recruitment process. The biggest issue is retention; while it would
be nice to increase the applicant pool there are officers leaving Flagstaff on a consistent basis.
The most success has come from the home grown applicants who have an ingrown stake in the
community.
 
Councilmember Evans added that the officers that do come to Flagstaff as a lateral officer most
times take a reduction in pay and that significantly affects their retirement benefits. Chief
Treadway noted that it works in reverse as well because officers want to increase their
retirement benefits so they are looking to communities with a higher pay scale.
 
Councilmember Putzova stated that while she understands the retention issues she would like to
focus more on hiring officers that are in a place in their life that they are most likely to stick with
Flagstaff. Chief Treadway stated that these attributes are factored into the interview process but
those applicants are few and far between. Chief Treadway stated that he does personally speak
with each interviewee to discuss what they can expect in Flagstaff in regards to the high cost of
living and housing. The department does its best to not hire anyone who cannot assure them that
they want to stay in Flagstaff.
 
Deputy Chief Musselman continued the presentation.
 
WORKLOAD OVERVIEW
MARKET DRIVEN INDUSTRY
MARKET COMPARISON IN PATROL
SCOTTSDALE ARTICLE/COMPARISON
SCOTTSDALE ARTICLE/COMPARISON OF PAY INCREASES/DECREASES
 
Councilmember Putzova asked the ratio of police officers to population in Flagstaff. Chief
Treadway explained that historically in Flagstaff there have been approximately 1.7 officers per
1000 citizens and the Arizona average is 2.0 per 1000 and nationally it is 2.4 per 1000.
Councilmember Putzova requested this information for other Arizona municipalities.
 
Councilmember Overton asked how the cities listed in the article provided for the pay increases.
Chief Treadway stated that many valley cities have strong unions and agreements were put into

Flagstaff City Council Special Work Session April 17, 2015                          2 



place for the increases.
 
Deputy Chief Musselman continued the presentation.
 
AGENCY PAY COMPARISON
 
Chief Treadway added that the proposed budget does help the Department and it is a step in the
right direction but Flagstaff is still at the tail end of other agencies in terms of pay. There has
been no movement for existing officers since 2009 when merit increases were eliminated. It is
taking a lot longer for officers to max out on their pay plans. There are other agencies in the state
that have guaranteed pay steps. Flagstaff lost an officer to Buckeye and he has reported that he
has received a 17% increase in pay over three years; this is the same situation with the
Department of Public Safety who gives a healthy increase at six years of service and the officers
get to stay in Flagstaff which is lucrative to lateral officers.
 
Deputy Chief Musselman continued the presentation.
 
SNAPSHOTS FROM 23 OFFICERS' EXIT INTERVIEWS 2014-2015
THEMES FROM EMPLOYEE SURVEYS
DISPATCH STAFFING OVERVIEW
DISPATCH CHALLENGES
 
Chief Treadway stated that staff recently contacted the City of Chandler and got some interesting
numbers from them. Over the last two or three years Chandler has lost seven dispatch
employees. They pay really well. The biggest issue is that there are many jobs that are similar
that do not have the stress and shift schedules. There are significant recruitment and retention
issues with regards to dispatch as well. The City Manager’s budget proposal includes some
funding to develop a strategies to retain dispatch employees. Deputy Chief Musselman added
that the department sends people to a dispatch academy to get baseline training and
certifications and they are working on the dispatch program to make it less stressful but
effective.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz asked if the cost burden for the dispatch center fall fully on the City for
funding. Chief Treadway stated that Flagstaff has a regional dispatch center that dispatches for
Flagstaff Fire Department, Flagstaff Police Department, Coconino County Sherriff’s Office and
several private fire agencies as well as other federal programs. Each of those agencies is billed
on a cost per call basis; this is a great arrangement and it assists the City in spreading the high
costs for services to other agencies.
 
Deputy Chief Musselman continued the presentation.

MARKET COMPARISON DISPATCH
DISPATCH SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY
HIRING AND RETENTION EFFORTS
RETENTION EFFORTS SUPPORTED BY COUNCIL
FY2016 CM RECOMMENDATIONS
 
Chief Treadway completed the presentation.
 
WILL IT HELP?
RECAP
 
A break was held from 9:16 a.m. through 9:26 a.m.

Flagstaff City Council Special Work Session April 17, 2015                          3 



 
Mayor Nabours stated that the cost of hiring and training new people is so expensive that there is
little to nothing left in the budget to address retention. Chief Treadway agreed stating that the
Police Department overtime is significantly attributed to new officer training and having to stay
late. It is about a year after the training is complete that the officers are running at full speed and
there are a lot of silent costs not even brought forward in that $53,000 budget number.
 
Councilmember Oravits asked about the housing program that was mentioned and if it is
something that is being explored. Deputy Chief Musselman stated that the Police Department
has been working with the Housing Department to propose a program; it is currently out for bid.
 
Councilmember Putzova asked about the housing situation for most of the police officers. Chief
Treadway stated that it is all over the board. The Department lost one of its female officers to
Gilbert and she stated that her husband is a cook who came to Flagstaff in hopes of finding a job
and in the three years they were here her husband could not find work. Gilbert hired her at $4 an
hour less with a reduced benefits package; while she hated leaving Flagstaff she wanted to find
her daughter a bedroom of her own. There are many officers who live with each other, too.
Councilmember Putzova asked if the housing situation was to the officer’s satisfaction if the pay
and benefits they receive be enough to keep them in Flagstaff. Chief Treadway stated that they
are not seeing that based on the exit interviews, the number one reason people leave is the pay
and benefits and housing was around number three.
 
Councilmember Putzova asked if there has been a focus group to probe a little bit more to
understand the pay on its own. Chief Treadway stated that there has not been a focus group but
an in depth conversation is had with every employee who is leaving to understand their reasons.
This helps the department identify areas of needed improvement. Additionally, all potential new
employees are talked to about the high cost of living and they are urged to look carefully at the
market before committing to take the job and live in Flagstaff.
 
Councilmember Overton stated that in an ideal world the Police Department would have enough
recruits to fill its needs and reduce overtime; he asked if there would be a net effect on existing
officers when overtime is reduced and if it would be seen as a detriment. Chief Treadway stated
that the department has been very fortunate in the last few years to be successful with grant
awards that cover overtime for various activities. It has been difficult to get officers to sign up for
these additional projects because they are already working significant overtime. If the overtime
for calls for service is reduced there is ample opportunity to get overtime through the other grant
funded programs if officers would like the additional overtime.
 
Councilmember Evans stated that the main issue with the officers and dispatchers is pay and
benefits; she asked if it would be helpful to employees if housing was included. Chief Treadway
stated that he is unable to answer that because housing has never been included. The housing
program is exciting but it is for first time home buyers and the match is up to $5000. It is a difficult
answer but pay consistently rises to the top.
 
Mayor Nabours asked what the housing program would look like. Councilmember Evans stated
that a more robust program is needed. She would like to have a roundtable discussion with other
agencies that are having struggles with housing to develop a housing program for employees.
 
Mayor Nabours asked for the average hourly wage of police officers. Human Resources Director
Shannon Anderson stated that the starting salary of a police officer is $22.91 per hour; they are
hired in at 5% less while they are in academy and once complete they are increased to 2.5%
less until field training is complete.
 

Flagstaff City Council Special Work Session April 17, 2015                          4 



Councilmember Putzova stated that if pay was addressed at the midpoint, Flagstaff is about
$5,000 below annually. Officers are thinking about discretionary funds after expenses are paid.
The stated problem is actually a perceived problem. The City may be able to make incremental
improvements in pay but the differences in the housing markets will remain. The key is creating
an environment for officers that feel similar to areas that have a lower cost of living and a
strategic solution is to get together and consider the housing issue in Flagstaff. There are other
employers that are in similar situations so there are opportunities to partner. Councilmember
Brewster stated that several weeks ago she suggested that a discussion with the City, NAU,
Gore, and Purina is needed to identify possible solutions to the housing issue. No one agency
can solve the problem alone so if everyone can get together to find a solution where agencies
can help out incrementally it would help those in the middle range that are not able to qualify for
Section 8 but are still struggling to find affordable housing.
 
Councilmember Overton suggested that those discussions typically do not get off the ground. He
stated that the data suggests that employees are not moving as quickly within the pay plan as
they are with other agencies. Employees look at their hourly rate and what they bring home and
the cost of insurance. At the end of the day it is the employees discretion how they spend their
money. He does not feel that the solution is a housing program.
 
Councilmember Oravits stated that the housing discussion is a separate issue. The issue is pay
and starting an officer at $4,000 or $5,000 more is helpful and helps keep them in the community.
 
Councilmember Evans stated that there is no way that Flagstaff can compete with straight salary
from other communities and looking at alternatives to the benefit package would help even the
playing field; if housing was out of the equation that would be a boost to police salaries.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz stated that at this time it is difficult to continue the conversation without
looking at the full budget. She added that she would be in support of having a conversation
about the collective housing problem and get the perspective of other employers about solutions.
 
Mayor Nabours asked Police Communications Manager Irene Hunkler to give a description of the
typical dispatcher, the schedule they work, the shift work involved, and any other things involved
with being a dispatcher. Ms. Hunkler explained that the shift work is two, ten hour shifts and two,
twelve hour shifts and include overtime. The department is currently short eight employees and
the staff is tired; they have accrued a lot of overtime and comp time. People call 911 on the worst
day of their life and the staff is often the first and only contact between the community and first
responder. The stress is real and complicated by the fact that there is no face to face
communication. The job tends to draw females but there is one male on staff right now.
Multi-tasking is an essential function of the dispatcher job. Dispatchers are often juggling multiple
incidents at one time and a good number of the people that leave do so because they are unable
to do that. Additionally, employees leave due to the shift work and others leave because they just
realize that dispatch is not the job for them and they miss life events and holidays. Dispatchers
are proud of the work they do and they practice all the time to be even better. Ms. Hunkler stated
that the differential pay that is being proposed will be a big help in retaining employees.
 
Mayor Nabours stated that Ms. Hunkler did some research on the 3% differential pay for swing
shift and 5% differential pay for the overnight shift; he asked if the proposal is comparable to
other cities. Ms. Hunkler explained that the proposed numbers actually came directly from other
cities as an average of what is offered.
 
Mayor Nabours asked how long it takes after hiring a new dispatcher before they are able to go
live on their own. Ms. Hunkler stated that there are two phases of each component; two phases
of non-emergency at two weeks each and two phases of dispatch at two weeks each. To have

Flagstaff City Council Special Work Session April 17, 2015                          5 



employees fully trained on every channel is one year.
 
Mayor Nabours asked if the dispatchers volunteer for the overtime or if it is a required part of
their job. Ms. Hunkler explained that there are minimum staffing levels to handle all of the radios;
overtime hours are tracked for each employee and for the most part they volunteer for the extra
shifts but if there are no volunteers an employee can be ordered to come in.
 
Mayor Nabours asked about the rate of pay for Flagstaff dispatchers and how that compares with
other cities. Deputy Chief Musselman stated that dispatchers start at $36,000 per year and that is
15% below market.
 
Mr. Meilbeck stated that the Police Department is an excellent department and that the
presentation was a fair representation of the challenges they are facing. He noted that doing a
round table to talk about a single department’s staffing and resource needs outside of the
organization is a risk and that should be considered as the Council gives direction. The budget
presentations that are next week will give a comprehensive look at the organization. There are
things that can be done and have been recommended in the budget but the Council can also
apply resources to additional needs that exist.
 
Councilmember Oravits thanked staff for the thorough report and stated that he is comfortable
with taking the risk of hosting a roundtable discussion about the Police Department. The City
cannot keep losing 30% of its officers each year; the City has an obligation to compensate its
Officers appropriately and he asked for a commitment from the Council to move forward and
solve the problem at the budget meetings next week.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz stated that she cannot make a commitment to anything without seeing the
budget. She stated that there will be a lot of information presented and there will be important
decisions to make. She wants to help solve the problem but it is important to look at everything
in the budget as a whole.
 
Mayor Nabours stated that he feels that the issue has come to a level of urgency and priority.
 
Councilmember Evans stated that she supports the Police Department but to state that the
Council is going to directly impact and get the department to the funding level needed for the
officers is not realistic. She also supports the other City departments and employees and would
like to look at what the Council can do to impact the salary and benefits package for all
employees.
 
Councilmember Brewster offered that public safety is a priority in the community. She thanked
the Chief and Deputy Chief for the work they put into preparing and presenting the report. It is
helpful to see the comparison of Flagstaff to other communities and agencies in the state.
 
Councilmember Putzova thanked staff for their presentation. She stated that Council is
committed to improving employees. She urged Council to consider all of the tools available to
make changes and forward progress with the budget. She stated that she is interested in seeing
a long term, multi-year plan established to address employee compensation.

 

Flagstaff City Council Special Work Session April 17, 2015                          6 



           

4. Adjournment
 
  The Special Work Session of April 17, 2015, adjourned at 10:17 a.m.

 

 _______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:

 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

Flagstaff City Council Special Work Session April 17, 2015                          7 



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
APRIL 28, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBER
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

6:00 P.M.
 

MINUTES
               

1. Call to Order
 
   Mayor Nabours called the Flagstaff Work Session of April 28, 2015, to order at 6:02 p.m.
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance
 
  The Council and audience recited the pledge of allegiance.
 

3. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

 
  PRESENT ABSENT

  
MAYOR NABOURS NONE
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ  
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER  
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS  
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS (telephonically)  
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON  
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA  

Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.
 

4. Preliminary Review of Draft Agenda for the May 5, 2015, City Council Meeting.*
 
* Public comment on draft agenda items may be taken under “Review of Draft Agenda Items”
later in the meeting, at the discretion of the Mayor. Citizens wishing to speak on agenda items
not specifically called out by the City Council for discussion under the second Review section
may submit a speaker card for their items of interest to the recording clerk. 

 
  Mayor Nabours asked, with regard to Items 9-D, E and F of next week's agenda, if staff could

report to the Council the average account balance of the write-offs. The numbers in the staff
summary are large so breaking it down by the number of accounts may add perspective to the
discussion. Additionally, he would like information on the efforts made to collect once they are
written off.
 
With regard to Item 15-B, Mayor Nabours also asked for information regarding the red stickers



Tucson uses for their party ordinance enforcement. Police Chief Kevin Treadway stated that
suggestions are welcome but staff felt that the red sticker was too much for Flagstaff so they
eliminated the placarding element from the proposed ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Putzova stated that the title of item 17-A is incorrect; she sent corrected
language to the City Clerk who will include it in the final agenda. Mr. Meilbeck stated that the
Clerk did receive the corrected language and he has discussed it with the City Attorney; the
final agenda will reflect an updated title for the item.

 

5. Public Participation 

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on the
prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at the
end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone wishing to
comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the recording clerk.
When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may address the
Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public
Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone to have an
opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting
and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes
to speak.

 
  Adam Shimoni addressed Council about working to minimize the use of plastic bags. He also

voiced concern about the State overreaching into City matters.

Mayor Nabours changed the order of the meeting to the following:

Item 6 - Visitor Intercept Survey Results/National Travel & Tourism Week
Item 10 - US 180 Winter Congestion Report
Item 8 - Plastic Bag Focus Group Final Report
Item 7 - 2015 Legislative Session Report from Richard Travis, Triadvocates, and Discussion of 

 Potential 2016 League Resolutions
Item 9 - Discussion of Procurement Preferences Regarding Carbon Footprint and

 Disadvantaged Businesses
Item 11 - FY 2016 Budget Confirmation

The minutes are reflective of the original order of the agenda.
 

6. Visitor Intercept Survey Results/National Travel & Tourism Week  (Survey result
about visitors to Flagstaff)

  

 
  Flagstaff Convention and Visitor's Bureau Director Heidi Hansen, introduced Dr. Cheryl Cothran

of the Arizona Hospitality Research and Resource Center who provided a PowerPoint
presentation that covered the following:
 
FLAGSTAFF VISITOR AND ECONOMIC IMPACT STUDY
SURVEY METHODS
 
Mayor Nabours asked how the survey was administered and how it was determined that the
people taking the survey were visitors. Dr. Cothran stated that researchers went to places that
they knew they would find visitors and they would personally ask if they were visiting Flagstaff.
Mayor Nabours asked how many questions were in the survey. Dr. Cothran stated that it was a

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          2 



two page survey packed with information on various things. She continued the presentation.
 
COMPARISON: 2009 VS. 2014
VISITOR ORIGINS
ECONOMIC IMPACT
FLAGSTAFF…A TOURISM STAR
 
Councilmember Brewster asked how long the survey was distributed. Dr. Cothran stated that
they typically survey for twelve months and they typically single out one week a month to really
focus their attention on getting surveys.

Councilmember Overton asked if they found anything in the data that suggests Flagstaff should
change or adjust anything. Dr. Cothran stated that the results were all pretty positive and the
recommendation would be to continue on that path.
 
Councilmember Putzova asked if any of the data targeted the participants' specific reason for
visiting Flagstaff. Dr. Cothran explained that many visitors come to ski and for special events
and most come for vacation and leisure.
 
Ms. Hansen stated that National Travel and Tourism week begins on May 2, 2015 and this
year’s theme is “Travel is blank “ allowing people to fill in their own definition of travel so that it
is unique and personal to them.

 

7. 2015 Legislative Session Report from Richard Travis, Triadvocates, and Discussion of
Potential 2016 League Resolutions

  

 
  Deputy City Manager Jerene Watson introduced State Lobbyist from Triadvocates Richard

Travis who provided Council with an update on the 2015 Legislative session. Mr. Travis
explained that the Legislature and the Governor were very efficient this session with the
shortest session since 1968. There was only one major issue that could not be agreed upon
and that was the appointment of the Inspector General. Common Core and implementation
repeal took a lot of time and energy at the Legislature. Other big topics included
microbreweries, Real ID and the elimination of the Department of Weights and Measures.
 
Flagstaff did not push any bills this year and because of that it was difficult to keep up with the
legislature. The bills that Flagstaff was involved in were bills that were introduced through other
means.
 
Key bills for Flagstaff that will likely be seen next session or in special session include sales tax
and pension reform. The sales tax reform was supposed to come online in January of 2015; the
audit is extremely important to Flagstaff so it is important that it is done right. In regards to the
pension reform the reason it was pulled was because the City of Phoenix had a pension issue
on their ballot.
 
There were two bills Flagstaff worked on this year. The first was the Waste Collection Bill that
would have taxed the City for out of city collections. By working with the League and
Representatives an amendment was crafted that would limit City exposure; the amendment
passed.
 
The other bill was guns in public places. This was very contentious and it did not pass the
Senate by one vote. Staff had exhausted all of its ability to get votes and came up short so they
reached out to partners in the private sector who were willing to talk about the impacts to them.
 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          3 



 
Councilmember Putzova asked for additional information on what activities the City was
involved in with regards to the plastic bag issue. Mr. Travis stated that the League handled that
bill because it was so clearly preempting city and town control. The issue had such tremendous
support from the business community and was not something that was introduced at the
beginning of the session. It was a strike everything bill and it was introduced at the last minute.
It made it extremely difficult to lobby against due to how late in the session and how quickly it
was introduced. Vice Mayor Barotz asked who provided the strike everything amendment to
which Mr. Travis responded Warren Peterson.
 
Councilmember Evans stated that there have been a lot of recent bills that minimize the power
that local governments have to dictate policy; she asked if Mr. Travis sees this trend continuing.
Mr. Travis stated that it is likely to continue in next session with the current Legislature and
Governor.
 
Mayor Nabours asked for the bills that passed that will have an impact of the City. Mr. Travis
stated that the two primary bills were the waste bills. The first bill is the bill that will give
multi-housing owners the ability to chose a private hauler or municipal hauler. He explained that
it is not a level playing field; in the waste hauling world the trash only component is a good
money maker, the bulk trash and hazardous products are money losers. The cities will be left to
cover the fixed costs of waste management and will still have the obligation to pick up bulk and
hazardous products. There has been discussion about an ordinance that dictates that bulk trash
and hazardous materials must be picked up by the private hauler in the event that they are
selected for trash service.
 
Mr. Travis stated that the other bill is the one that charges cities in-lieu tax for land and
equipment used for trash services. There will have to be calculations done to determine what
impacts there will be but it is highly likely there will be a significant impact on cities.
 
Mr. Travis stated that the Veteran’s Home is a big topic and he recommends setting priorities
now in that regard so that there is the ability and time to make modifications if needed. The
narrower and more specific the agenda the more chance at success; getting $10 million next
session will be tough and it will require a united mission and a united voice and bringing in
people from the community to support the effort.
 
Mayor Nabours stated that he has noticed that resolutions can be sent to the League and
before the League will champion the issue other cities have to come on with support. He noted
that it will be important to remember this as they work on possible resolutions to bring forward.
Mr. Travis explained that the League does also consider the varying degrees of impact when
choosing which resolutions to bring forward.
 
Mr. Travis stated that higher education funding is also another big topic. The Governor and
Legislature have set universities on a path to wean higher education off the general fund.
Councilmember Brewster asked for the reasoning behind the action. Mr. Travis stated that every
member has a different answer; what they rely on is that the funding is such a small percentage
of the university’s overall budget and because of that it should not be seen as a drastic cut.
However, the money received from the state has a lot of flexibility associated with it and it can
be applied to many areas. The concern is that most of the federal money that comes into the
universities as well as grant money cannot be used for things such as personnel or overhead
facility costs. While it may only be 2% of their overall budget removing that funding has a vast
effect on how the universities fund their operations. Councilmember Putzova stated that she
would appreciate it if people would stop referring to the 2% because it has been misused
completely for political benefit. It is not actually 2% of the institution's real budget but a political

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          4 



spin and the sooner people stop repeating the figure the sooner the community will realize that
something needs to be done in 2016.
 
Councilmember Evans stated that she would like to see a resolution regarding local control.
Ms. Watson explained that local control is one of the guiding principles of the League.
Councilmember Evans stated that there needs to be a stronger statement. Ms. Watson stated
that something can be put into writing to see if the League feels that there is a bill that can be
brought forward to that effect. Vice Mayor Barotz added that a resolution could be a very
powerful statement to the state. It should include a statement that powerfully reflects that
dissatisfaction with a list of bills that are overreaching into local control. This approach may be
more impactful then the language that is currently being used as a guiding principle.
Ms. Watson asked for Councilmembers to send specific ideas and language to her for
drafting. Councilmember Overton expressed concern about the reception the resolution will
have and he is not sure that it will be as effective as it is hoped. The Legislature may respond
negatively and he cautions against stirring a hornet’s nest. Mayor Nabours reminded Council
that the resolutions that are being proposed are draft resolutions to the League. The League will
filter them and vote on which will be pushed forward for consideration and tweaking. Mr. Travis
stated that there is a natural tension between the Legislature and cities and towns. It used to be
that in the 70s and 80s there was a lot more deference paid; there were a lot of people who
came to the Legislature from cities and towns that had practical experience as town Mayors or
Councilmembers. The Legislature today does not have that history and it is something that has
to be re-taught every two years with the new legislature. If the resolution is worded correctly it
could be a good tool, but what will be done with that tool needs to be defined.
 
Councilmember Putzova suggested putting forward a resolution to repeal SB1241. There will
likely be other cities who would be interested in joining that effort. She added that resolutions
are important for communicating with the public and it is important for the public to know how
unfriendly the Legislature is to the cities and towns.

 

8. Plastic Bag Focus Group Final Report   

 
  Mr. Meilbeck addressed Council stating that the purpose of this item is to thank the

Sustainability Commission and the Plastic Bag Focus Group for their work. The commission
was very supportive of the focus group. He offered thanks to the focus group and officially
relieved them of their duties. With the passage of SB1241 there are some changes that will
need to be made in the approach taken by the City and more time is needed before staff can
return to Council with a recommendation. Mr. Meilbeck asked the committee to come to the
podium to be recognized. He thanked Kathy Flaccus, Moran Henn, Madison Ledgerwood,
Stuart McDaniel, Rick Resnick, Judy Sal, and Rob Wilson for their work on the committee.
 
Stuart McDaniel addressed Council thanking them for allowing such a diverse group to meet. It
was gratifying to come together in good faith and trust to work together and find some common
ground on an issue that is important.
 
Moran Henn addressed Council and thanked the Sustainability Program for all the work they did
on the issue and being 100% available to the group. She thanked the Commission for being
gracious in allowing another group to take a stab at what they had already put so much work
into. This is an issue that was very important to a lot of people in Flagstaff and it is frustrating to
have it trampled by the State. This is a passionate issue and there is still a lot of work to be
done to identify options.
 
Rob Wilson addressed Council and thanked Kari Blume who was the facilitator of the group and
played a very vital role. The group was a great success; despite having a diverse group of

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          5 



played a very vital role. The group was a great success; despite having a diverse group of
people there was more in common than originally thought. The group succeeded in putting
together a plan and that has since been overcome by State issues. He suggested that
additional funding be directed to the Sustainability Department for further work, research and
education about plastic bags. There are still things that can and should be done.
 
Cathy Flaccus addressed Council and thanked them for the opportunity to be a part of the
group. She was not sure how it would go as one of the conservative voices in the group but
they worked very well together. She stated that in talking to some people at the state level she
found that they were not aware of the budget issues that exist in Flagstaff with regards to
Flagstaff’s effort to reduce plastic bags. There are great ideas out there and it would be great
for Flagstaff to increase its education to help people further understand what is recyclable.
Education works and getting stronger information and better alternatives out to people is key.
 
Mayor Nabours thanked the committee again for their work and stated that Council will be
having future discussions about plastic bag use.

 

9. Discussion of Procurement Preferences Regarding Carbon Footprint and Disadvantaged
Businesses  

  

 
  Purchasing Director Rick Compau provided a PowerPoint presentation that covered the

following:
 
PROCUREMENT PREFERENCES
CARBON FOOTPRINT
 
Mayor Nabours stated that the intent of the request was not how to measure one company's
footprint versus another but rather if a company has to mobilize from out of town there is a
presumption that there will be repeated travelling and burning of gasoline compared to a local
company that is not traveling as much or moving equipment as far. Mr. Compau agreed that the
wording could be simplified but more research is still needed to determine how that can be
applied in a fair and equitable way and within the purchasing statutes. Mr. Meilbeck stated that
one of the concerns is presumption; this is something that is very hard to quantify legally. Staff
must have a measure to quantitatively make the assessment. There is a significant need to
protect the interest of the City in its procurement practices. Mr. Solomon added that the concern
is that it must be quantified at some point legally, it has to be measured some way. Legal can
look into simple ways to measure that but it has to be made in a way that is legally defensible.
Mayor Nabours stated that if a simple step can be identified that is what the intent of Council
was when they agreed to look at this issue further.
 
Mr. Compau continued the presentation.
 
BUSINESSES WHO SERVE OR EMPLOY DISABLED PERSONS
 
Councilmember Overton stated that it is great for employers to take on disabled persons. This
section limits these employers to three categories; he asked if there is any legal room to expand
the categories to include deserving employers, such as those who employ deaf or physically
handicap persons. Mr. Compau explained that a lot of the public sector agencies that have
adopted this kind of language have limited their preference to these three categories. It would
require further research to determine if other options exist. Councilmember Overton noted that
is seems odd to call out only one disability. He would be very interested in determining if the
City is able to broaden that category. Councilmember Brewster stated that there are a number
of agencies that employ disabled persons but are for profit and would not qualify. Mr. Compau

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          6 



of agencies that employ disabled persons but are for profit and would not qualify. Mr. Compau
offered that in order to be certified as a non-profit agency in Arizona the disabled workforce has
to be a minimum of 65%.
 
A majority of Council is in favor of moving forward with further research as well as the
development of an ordinance for the businesses that serve or employ disabled persons.

 

10. US 180 Winter Congestion Report   

 
  Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization Manager Dave Wessell provided a PowerPoint

presentation that covered the following:

US 180 WINTER TRAFFIC STUDY
BACKGROUND

  PROBLEM IDENTIFICATION
MINDMIXER RESULTS
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS
ALTERNATE ROUTE SIGNAGE
MANAGED LANE CONCEPT
 
Mr. Wessel introduced Kent Lane who represents ADOT as the Regional Transportation
Engineer.
 
Mayor Nabours asked if it is possible to have three lanes on US 180 and with use of cones or
other traffic devices dedicate two lanes inbound and one lane outbound during peak times.
Mr. Lane stated that the issue would be that there would be no left turn capabilities for people
travelling northbound; additionally, the equipment used would cost around $12,000 per day
which is a budget impact that ADOT is unable to accommodate. It is a complex production that
would have a few days of planning for each instance. ADOT is not in the business of trying to
accommodate fluctuating traffic that is recreational based. What was presented was a much
smaller concept and would require consistent traffic movement on Milton to be of any success.
To that accord, an alternative timing plan has been in production since 2011 and it adds ten
additional seconds to green lights along Milton; the downfall is that it takes timing away from
side streets and people have to wait through numerous cycles to get to the main road, if at all.
There is little benefit to further adjusting the signal timing at this time.
 
With regards to the alternate routes that have been signed and advertised, people are not
utilizing them. Milton has the eateries, gasoline, the ski rental returns, and other amenities.
People do not see the benefit of taking alternative routes. It comes down to determining how big
of a problem it truly is and how much the City and State are willing to spend on addressing it.
 
Councilmember Overton stated that the root cause of the traffic issue is snow play. The ski
resort has been here for decades but once the snow play areas moved out to the same relative
vicinity it created a severe bottleneck. If the snow players can be moved to another area of
Flagstaff it may help with the problem. Mr. Lane stated that Wing Mountain opened up as a
permitted area to address safety problems and concerns along US 180; they have been open
about being willing to look at other locations. There may be some need to restrict activity there
to drive down the demand in the corridor because the mountain is the magnet.
 
JR Murray addressed Council stating that in a strange way Flagstaff has a success story that
cannot be labeled as such. Flagstaff has always been the winter capital of Arizona and it is a

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          7 



novelty and everyone wants to play in the snow. This is the community history and now with
growth there is a traffic problem. Flagstaff wants people to come but it does not do a good job
of welcoming them. Citizens in that corridor are concerned about emergency response. The
County had a meeting last week to talk about this situation and the solution is to disperse snow
play. Flagstaff needs eight snow play areas; it needs parking, utilities, restroom facilities, and
private industries. He suggested making the snow and getting the snow play visitors off of US
180 and get them into the City where facilities and infrastructure exist. Every City park could be
a snow play area. He stated that Snowbowl is part of the solution and now is time to make
changes happen.
 
Councilmember Putzova asked for additional information on transit being a possible solution.
She also asked for ideas on possible public/private partnerships. Mr. Wessel explained that the
key to making transit successful is to replace cars with transit. This may work well for skiers but
the issue is snow players who have a lot of equipment with them. There would need to be
some incentives or decentives to utilize transit or shuttles otherwise there will be the same
amount of cars plus the buses. Another suggestion has been for shoulder widening on US 180
which would allow for lane passing and provide emergency service access but that is a long
distance with a heavy expense.
 
Councilmember Evans stated that she would like more information on those types of
suggestions. The Council and public are aware of the history and what needs to be done; cost
estimates and possible funding sources is what is needed to further the conversation and make
decisions. Mr. Wessel stated that there are a number of funding sources that can be
researched; BBB revenues might be a possibility along with cost recovery from users.
Additionally, a transportation tax or other sales tax may be an option for larger capital
improvements. In terms of the actual costs there are costs that came out of the study that can
be provided. NAIPTA also did some analysis on costs for running a shuttle system. One of the
concerns is that without a predictable season there may be capital with limited funding.

 

11. FY 2016 Budget Confirmation   

 
  Mr. Meilbeck explained that Council had a great budget advance but staff would like to clarify

the direction and conclusion before moving forward. He asked if the spreadsheet was what
Council was approving.
 
Councilmember Putzova stated that among the first items discussed as investments is merit
based pay and the Council was supportive of that then but moved on to different items to
discuss. After they discussed the other items the issue was brought up again and the
conversation went back and forth between merit based pay and market based pay. At the end
of the day the Council did not come to a consensus to support merit based pay or move to
market based pay. She does not think that there was a consensus at the end of the session.
 
Mayor Nabours stated that there were several more revenue sources that were up for
discussion and none of them passed with a majority of Council who wanted to enact them.
 
Councilmember Oravits stated that he felt that there was a clear consensus and Council went
through all the expense and revenue options.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz stated that when she read the email to City staff from Mr. Meilbeck she felt
that there was some confusion on the direction and did not think that the spreadsheet was the
final accepted proposal.
 
A majority of Council agreed that the spreadsheet was the approved summary of the budget

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          8 



A majority of Council agreed that the spreadsheet was the approved summary of the budget
direction.

 

12. Review of Draft Agenda Items for the May 5, 2015, City Council Meeting.*
 
* Public comment on draft agenda items will be taken at this time, at the discretion of the
Mayor.

 
  None
 

13. Public Participation
 
  None
 

14. Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager; and requests for
possible future agenda items.

 
  Councilmember Putzova stated that at the special work session regarding Police Department
  staffing issues it was suggested that a roundtable discussion be had with other employers in

the City to discuss employee housing. She asked for staff to work on getting major employers
together for the discussion. Councilmember Evans added that it would be a great topic for
Council to be involved in to get a sense of what can be done and what other employers may be
willing to do.
 
Councilmember Evans asked for a status on a future discussion item request for SB1241; she
would like to know what the City can do legally and the public is interested as well. Mr. Meilbeck
explained that he is unsure when it will come back for Council discussion as the City Attorney is
researching possible options. Councilmember Evans stated that she would like to know all of
the options available including a challenge or referendum of the bill. She asked for information
on any deadlines for bringing forward a challenge.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz requested a Possible Future Agenda Item on a possible ordinance that
would require multi-family landlords to continue to provide for the removal of bulk and
hazardous materials even if they chose to move to a private trash hauler. Mr. Solomon stated
that the Legal Department is already working on the issue and will have more information to the
Council soon.
 
Mr. Meilbeck stated that in terms of employer housing this is something that staff is currently
working on. Vice Mayor Barotz asked if it would be coming back to Council for further
discussion. Mr. Meilbeck explained that he feels that the item falls under the goals Council has
set and he will be bringing it back for full discussion outside of the Possible Future Agenda Item
request process. Councilmember Oravits asked for the information to include what the City is
doing that is causing the cost of land and housing to be higher. He also would like information
on what the City is doing in terms of resource protection. He would like the perspective of staff
and what the costs are in terms of this discussion. Mayor Nabours stated that he would like to
have that information as well but feels that it is a separate issue from asking other employers if
they would be interested in getting together to discuss and possibly devise solutions related to
employee housing. Vice Mayor Barotz agreed that it is two different issues and should be
handled as such. Councilmember Evans stated that when the conversation occurs about the
regulatory piece that Councilmember Oravits is referring to she would like to know what the true
cost of development is; the true prices and why things are priced a certain way. She would also
like to know what the City controls and what is driven by the private market.

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          9 



like to know what the City controls and what is driven by the private market.
 

15. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff City Council Work Session of April 28, 2015, adjourned at 8:37 p.m.

 

 _______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session April 28, 2015                          10 



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
MAY 12, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

6:00 P.M.
 

MINUTES
               

1. Call to Order
 
  Mayor Nabours called the Flagstaff City Council Work Session of May 12, 2015, to order at

6:02 p.m.
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance
 
  The audience and City Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
 

3. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS (telephonically)
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
 

ABSENT:

COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA (excused)

 
Others present: Interim City Manager Josh Copley and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.

 

4. Preliminary Review of Draft Agenda for the May 19, 2015, City Council Meeting.*
 
* Public comment on draft agenda items may be taken under “Review of Draft Agenda Items”
later in the meeting, at the discretion of the Mayor. Citizens wishing to speak on agenda items
not specifically called out by the City Council for discussion under the second Review section
may submit a speaker card for their items of interest to the recording clerk. 

 
  Vice Mayor Barotz requested that the Party Ordinance listed under Routine on the agenda for

May 19, 2015, be moved to the 6:00 p.m. portion of the meeting.

Councilmember Overton asked about Item 9-A, Cinder Lake Landfill Excavation. He said that it
appears that SDB is going to do that work, but it was not clear on where the material would be
going. Mr. Meilbeck said that he would ask staff to clarify that information in the Final Agenda
packet.

 

5. Public Participation 



5. Public Participation 

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on the
prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at
the end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone wishing
to comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the recording
clerk. When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may address the
Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public
Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone to have an
opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting
and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen
minutes to speak.

 
  Moran Henn, representing Friends of Flagstaff's Future, said that on May 19, 2015, the Council

would be voting on whether to authorize the donation of land for the Veterans Home. She
thanked the Council for taking care of the veterans, but said they had concerns with the State
not agreeing to comply with the City's zoning or building codes.

Merle Henderson, Flagstaff, passed out an invitation to attend the Flagstaff Tea Party's
Thursday night meeting where they would be having a special speaker.

James Connell, Flagstaff, asked the Council what the City was doing to address the traffic
issues associated with the roundabout at Basis School.

A written comment was received from Jill Lynn Farrell asking that speed limits in town be
lowered.

 

6. Consideration of non-substantive revisions to the Flagstaff City Code   

 
  City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea said that the City Attorney's office has been working with

various divisions to clean up some language in the City Code. She then gave a brief
PowerPoint presentation which addressed the following:

WHY DO IT?
WHAT CHANGES?
NEIGHBORHOOD PLANS
ENFORCEMENT FOR PARKING
REGULATION OF LAKE MARY
DAMAGE TO PUBLIC STREETS AND ROADS
CLERK'S AUTHORITY TO CORRECT THE CODE

After a brief discussion, Council's direction was to move forward and bring back an ordinance
addressing these sections. 

 

7. Presentation of McMillan Mesa Land Use: Flagstaff Regional Plan, Zoning and Specific
Plans  

  

 
  Planning Director Dan Folke said McMillan Mesa has been the subject of several public

planning processes which have resulted in a number of outcomes.  Some outcomes regulate
land use while others are meant to provide a vision and guidance for future uses.  As the
community needs and priorities have changed, it is appropriate to review prior work and assess
what is best for Flagstaff today.  He then gave a PowerPoint presentation which addressed the
following:

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          2 



PRESENTATION TEAM
PRESENTATION OVERVIEW
DIAGRAM
PLANNING DOCUMENTS
CHARACTERISTICS
ZONING
PROPERTY OWNERSHIP MAP
FUTURE GROWTH ILLUSTRATION
ZONING MAP
MCMILLAN MESA VETERANS' HOME
MCMILLAN MESA SPECIFIC PLAN
MCMILLAN MESA PARCEL MAP
MCMILLIAN MESA EXISTING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE PLAN
CURRENTLY UNDER REVEIW
2007 CONCEPT PLAN FOR PUBLIC PROPERTIES

Vice Mayor Barotz thanked staff for the presentation. She asked if they felt that the City should
include language in its resolution of its vision for the project. Mayor Nabours said that it was his
understanding that there was nothing to preclude a Veterans Home from being on the property
they are looking at, although it would require a Conditional use Permit.

Mr. Folke said that was correct. The Conditional Use Permit process says that the use is
permitted, but there may be impacts that need to be looked at carefully and it gives the
Commission an opportunity to consider those things.

Councilmember Brewster said that it looks like there is a lot of mixed uses in the area. She
asked if any of the plans have gone forward. Mr. Folke replied that the only applications they
have are the two site applications. There was a neighborhood meeting for a potential rezone
with Miramonte Homes, but staff has not seen anything further on that.

Councilmember Evans thanked staff for the presentation. She said that it was good to have the
overview to review what zoning is and is not. She said that there is a lot of fear in the
community as to what the Veterans Home may look like. She thinks they can articulate in their
resolution what the vision is. She has talked with some in Phoenix regarding dark skies,
viewshed, etc. and they understand those concerns.

 

The following individuals addressed the Council:

Kathy Marron, Flagstaff
Rick Lopez, Flagstaff
Steve Hirst, Flagstaff

The following comments were received:  

The neighbors of McMillan Mesa have been meeting and will continue to meet regarding
the future development. She did not represent them, but did share their concerns and
interest.
"X" marks the spot and McMillan Mesa is the "X" for Flagstaff. There needs to be a
balance on the stewardship of this property.
Urged the Council to show visionary leadership and asked that any rezoning of the
private lands proceed slowly
Was on the Council in the 1990's when the McMillan Mesa Plan was developed and that
time has now come. He wants the Council to really understand that the design and how it
is developed is going to be critical.
McMillan Mesa is special and they have the opportunity now to carefully consider what

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          3 



McMillan Mesa is special and they have the opportunity now to carefully consider what
gets developed, and how it is designed, to make sure that it deserves to be in that
location.
Retired member of the Open Spaces Commission and the Open Spaces Commission
submitted a letter outlining its position on the Mesa.
As they consider the new Veterans facility and planning for housing, they see the
Veterans Home as something to bring great pride to Flagstaff.
This is an opportunity to make some overall determination of the treasure in McMillan
Mesa.

Vice Mayor Barotz asked staff what action the City could take to ensure that the land owned by
the City was protected as best as it could be. Mr. Folke said that they could rezone it to Open
Space and do a Plan Amendment. 

 

C.      Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-16 :  A resolution of the
Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, memorializing direction for staff to bring an ordinance
for consideration providing eight acres of land on McMillan Mesa to the Arizona Department of
Veterans' Services (AZDVS)for use as a skilled nursing facility to serve veterans.    (Item 15-A
of the May 19, 2015, agenda)

 
  Assistant to City Manager for Real Estate David McIntire said that they recently went through a

series of steps to preserve properties in the City, understanding that it could be overturned by
future councils, but it was determined to be the best way to go at it at that time. He then
introduced Gail Jackson with Economic Vitality who gave a PowerPoint presentation which
addressed:

REGIONAL FACILITY 
 60 beds 80 jobs
10-15 acres was requested; functions with 8 acres
State will provide 35%   Feds will provide 65%
City not being asked to pay any operation/construction costs outside of land
provision
Staff provided ADVS staff a brief tour

OPTIONS 
Provide direction to use resources
Provide direction for staff to research private parcels that may be less expensive –
did an informal RFI

VISUAL DEPICTION OF SITE LOCATION 
Behind the new Starbucks being built on Route 66 – 11.963 acres for $2.7 million 

Currently zoned RR with access to shopping, bus service; FMC is not too far
away

Woodlands Business Center – 8.1 acres for $5.6 million 
Currently zoned LI

Woody Mountain Campground – 8.73 and 5.66 acres 
Currently $1.5 million for two parcels; will not sell separately

9.12 acres State land 
Currently zoned RR 

PUBLIC OUTREACH 
Parks and Recreation Commission
Open Spaces Commission
Two Open House Meetings
Flyers and individual comments

PARKS AND RECREATION AND OPEN SPACES COMMISSION 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          4 



Voted supporting use of McMillan Mesa land
TUCSON FACILITY

Ms. Jackson showed a picture of the Tucson Facility. Councilmember Oravits said that it was a
good example of them adapting to the local feel as that facility looks like it belongs in Tucson.
 
Ms. Jackson said that they have talked with the ADVS and they will work with cities where they
put up these buildings to ensure that they meet the local architecture style. 

MCMILLAN MESA 
Staff recommendation for any transfer         
Deed has a recapture provision in case the project did not proceed
Deed has a provision requiring the AZDVS to work with City Code / building
requirements

Councilmember Overton asked what exempts them from the building process now. Mr.
McIntire replied that the State is a sovereign entity, similar to NAU not having to come to the
City to build.
 
Mayor Nabours said that the resolution that has been drafted does not make any reference to
meeting the City requirements. He would like to see that added before next week and if it
causes a problem later they could address it then. He asked what the specific purpose of the
resolution was. Mr. McIntire said that they had asked for some formal indication to get the
process started; to give staff direction to put together the property survey work, deed, legal
pieces and then they would still need to bring an ordinance forward to transfer the property at a
later time. It gives the State an indication that the City is serious and they should move forward
with obtaining funding.
 
The following individuals addressed the Council: 

Joe Ray, Flagstaff
Marilyn Weismann, representing Friends of Flagstaff’s Future

The following comments were received: 

He, as well as the Sunnyside Association, supports the Veterans Home project and if
there is anything they can do to help, let them know.
Appreciates that they want to add conditions to the resolution
Concerned that the State is not interested in following the conditions
Values of most of the residents of the City who walk on McMillan Mesa should not be
threatened by a State that doesn’t respect the citizens 

Councilmember Oravits said that his one concern with placing too many restrictions in the
resolution in that there are a lot of cities around the nation trying to get these facilities. It is
important for the City to move and be flexible. Mr. McIntire said that it is his understanding that
Yuma did request the same provision and the State said it was opposed, but the State has said
they are willing to work with the City on some level.
 
Councilmember Oravits asked who would control the project. Mr. McIntire said that it would be
a State project; the deed would be in the State’s name and it would run through the State
agency.
 
Councilmember Oravits said that he was fine with putting in the conditions; however, if it will
thwart their ability, he would not support it.
 
Mr. Meilbeck said that they are looking for a definitive answer from the State at a time when it
is not prepared to give one. Staff hears the Council’s concerns and if the Council decides to

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          5 



is not prepared to give one. Staff hears the Council’s concerns and if the Council decides to
move forward and the limitations are a deal breaker, they may want to reconsider at a later
date.

Written comments were received from the following individuals with concerns of placing the
Veterans Home on McMillan Mesa: 

Dawn Dyer
Adam Shimoni

A break was taken from 7:30 p.m. to 7:42 p.m. 
 

8. Water Resources & Water Conservation Program Status
Update City Council on Flagstaff water topics in light of water issues in other parts of
Arizona and the U.S. Southwest

  

 
  Water Resources Manager Erin Young addressed the Council to give a PowerPoint

presentation on the City’s Water Resources & Water Conservation Program which addressed:

TONIGHT’S AGENDA
CONSERVATION
CONSERVATION ACHIEVEMENTS   
LONG-TERM PLANNING
LONG-TERM PLANNING WATER RESOURCES
OUTREACH

Councilmember Oravits said that it was great to see the reduction in water use. He asked
where the City stood in the state, in relation to other communities. Mr. Hill added that Flagstaff
is the second lowest in the State, with Payson being the lowest.
 
Mayor Nabours said that he assumed that a big part of the drop in the early 1990’s was with
the reclaimed water extension and it becoming more readily available. Ms. Young said that
1994 is when the Rio Plant came on and also when they built the reclaimed water system. She
said that today reclaimed water is 20% of their water delivered.
 
Councilmember Overton asked if they still thought the water leaks were around 10%.
Ms. Young said that in the report to the Water Commission, they showed an 11% loss, down
from the prior 14%. Mr. Hill said that 10% is the target. They still have half of the system to do
so in two more years they will have looked at the entire system. 

 

9. Review of Draft Agenda Items for the May 19, 2015, City Council Meeting.*
 
* Public comment on draft agenda items will be taken at this time, at the discretion of the
Mayor.  

 
  A.       Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2015-17 and Ordinance No. 2015-07:

A resolution of the Flagstaff City Council declaring the Revised Stormwater Utility Credit
Manual a public record and an ordinance adopting the Revised Stormwater Utility Credit
Manual by reference.  (Updates and revisions to Stormwater Utility Credit Manual)  
 (Item 15-C of the May 19, 2015, agenda)

Stormwater Manager Malcolm Alter addressed the Council and gave a PowerPoint
presentation which addressed the following:

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          6 



STORMWATER UTILITY CREDIT MANUAL

He said that if someone does a development and they are required to do stormwater controls,
the credit manual gives them a way to reduce their bill. This was first contemplated with
creation of the utility, as the ordinance requires that they have one. He said that he rewrote the
manual and had it approved in 2006 as the one originally written by the consultant was very
cumbersome.

Mr. Alter said that the Water Commission considered the manual changes at two meetings and
is recommending approval of the document before the Council.

STRATEGIES
♦Provides credits that are as quantitative as possible - tied to effectiveness and programs
♦Program changes since 2006 do not change credit amounts
♦Changes are primarily updates and housekeeping

WATER COMMISSION CONSIDERATIONS
♦Considered three options: do nothing; housekeeping changes; and revise credit amounts
♦Recommended housekeeping changes
♦Considered financial impacts to the utility
♦Recommended to reduce excessive mathematical computations
♦Discussion on rain barrel credit
♦Discussion on conservation easement

Discussion was held on the amount of credits available which are not being requested. It was
noted that oftentimes the developer will build the required detention basin, sell the property, and
then move on and a lot of times the homeowner does not know it is available. Mr. Alter said
that they do advertise in CitySpace etc. Vice Mayor Barotz suggested that they advertise this
information to realtors so that a property owner will know to look into it further to see if they are
eligible for a credit.

  B.      Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-19 and Ordinance No.
2015-09:   A resolution and ordinance of the Flagstaff City Council adopting by reference
revised sewer discharge limitations.  (Updates and revisions to local limits for industrial
sewer discharge)    (Item 15-B of the May 19, 2015, agenda)

Regulatory Compliance Section Manager Steve Camp addressed the Council and introduced
Industrial User Supervisor James Boyer and a representative of GHD Engineers (consultants).

Mr. Boyer then gave a PowerPoint presentation which addressed:

KNOWLEDGE
♦Holistic Approach
♦Reached out to GHD (consultant)
♦Collaboration with City staff
♦Industry and public comment and input
♦Connection to regional goals
     Develop/adopt integrated master plan including wastewater collection & treatment
     Maintain reliable, safe cost-effective wastewater services
♦Connection to Council Goals
     Ensure long-term water supply
     Provide sustainable and equitable infrastructure
♦Key issues relating to regional plan
     Improve engagement of City programs, policies and services

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          7 



WHO IS IMPACTED

COMPLIANCE AND IMPACT
♦Compliance
     ADEQ reviewed and approved GHD Study in March 2015
     Meets Federal requirements
♦Previous Council Decisions on Topic
     Last modification to the City Code to change local industrial sewer discharge limits was
March 2007
♦Internal Financial Impact
     City staff advises that the update to the local industrial sewer discharge limitations on the
City Code should not have a financial impact to the City or department
♦Impact of Adopting Proposed Modification
     Gain the tools and guidance to maintain compliance
     Protect existing investments in critical infrastructure and to protect public health

RECOMMENDED LOCAL LIMITS

Mr. Camp said that they have discharge limits and those limits are what the City has to meet.
Some of them the City does not have recourse to the discharger because they are within
compliance, without having the local rules. He said that is why they do this study to make sure
they do meet that compliance.

Mr. Boyer explained that when a new business comes to town they have a mechanism that vets
them; it tells the City what their process is and what chemicals they use and estimated flows
and volumes. That helps the City establish permit levels and discharge. If something new
comes in the City always expressly reserves the ability to change the regulations. They have a
diligent program of annual inspection of industries and small businesses in town.

Mr. Boyer explained that staff has had outreach with the different businesses in town and have
addressed their concerns. They understand that this is crucial and ensures a good supply of
reclaimed water. He said that there were representatives from two industries present at the
meeting today.

Councilmember Overton asked how quickly they can react to something introduced into the
plant that should not be there. Mr. Boyer said that he communicates well with the plants. When
they see levels coming in, it will take one to two days to find the source and a lot of times they
can tell him what is going on.

Mayor Nabours asked if staff could guarantee that if the Council adopted the ordinance that
they will not have a business coming to them saying these regulations have put them out of
business. Mr. Boyer said that he cannot speak for those industries, but from what he has
gathered it is not going to happen.

 

10. Public Participation

None
 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          8 



           

11. Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager; and requests for possible
future agenda items.

 
  Councilmember Brewster said that yesterday she attended the Hydrology and Law seminar

which included presentations by different types of lawyers from various large law firms. They
talked about different laws relating to groundwater and surface water, reclaimed water and
different terminology.

Mayor Nabours reported that last Friday he and Paul Summerfelt with the Fire Department were
part of a presentation at a two-day seminar on wildfire management and forest management. He
said that it was fun to be involved because Flagstaff is the example that all of the southwest
points to with their FWPP and $10 million bond project. He said that Flagstaff has attained a
national reputation in that regard.

 

12. Adjournment
 
  The Work Session of the Flagstaff City Council held May 12, 2015, adjourned at 8:47 p.m.

 

 _______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session May 12, 2015                          9 



SPECIAL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION)
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 3, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

1:40 P.M.

 
MINUTES

               

1. Call to Order

Mayor Nabours called the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 3, 2015, to order at
1:42 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS (telephonically at 1:46 p.m.)
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA
 

ABSENT:

COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

 
Others present: Contract Attorney Gordon Lewis and Human Resources Director Shannon
Anderson

 

3. Recess into Executive Session.
 
  The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 1:42 p.m.
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Scott Overton to recess into

Executive Session. 
 

Vote: 6 - 0 - Unanimously
 

4. Executive Session:
 

A. Discussion or consideration of employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal,
salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, appointee or employee of any public body, except
that, with the exception of salary discussions, an officer, appointee or employee may demand that the
discussion or consideration occur at a public meeting. The public body shall provide the officer, appointee
or employee with written notice of the executive session as is appropriate but not less than twenty-four
hours for the officer, appointee or employee to determine whether the discussion or consideration should
occur at a public meeting, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(1)

City Manager finalists selection
 

5. Adjournment



5. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff City Council reconvened into Open Session at 3:30 p.m. at which time the Special

Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held June 3, 2015, adjourned.
 

 

_______________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
City Clerk

 

  

Flagstaff Special Meeting (Executive Session) June 3, 2015      2 



SPECIAL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION)
TUESDAY, JUNE 9, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

3:00 P.M.

 
MINUTES

               

1. Call to Order

Mayor Nabours called the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 9, 2015, to order at
3:01 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS (telephonically)
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT:

NONE                                       

 

Others present:  Contract Attorney Gordon Lewis and Human Resources Director Shannon
Anderson (partially).

 

3. Recess into Executive Session.
 
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to recess

into Executive Session. 
 

Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously
  The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 3:01 p.m.
 

4. Executive Session:
 

A. Discussion or consideration of employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal,
salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, appointee or employee of any public body, except
that, with the exception of salary discussions, an officer, appointee or employee may demand that the
discussion or consideration occur at a public meeting. The public body shall provide the officer, appointee
or employee with written notice of the executive session as is appropriate but not less than twenty-four
hours for the officer, appointee or employee to determine whether the discussion or consideration should
occur at a public meeting, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(1)

 

i. City Manager Finalists Selection
 



 

B. Discussion or consideration of records exempt by law from public inspection, including the receipt and
discussion of information or testimony that is specifically required to be maintained as confidential by state
or federal law; d iscussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public
body; and discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public body in order to consider its position
and instruct its attorneys regarding the public body's position regarding contracts that are the subject of
negotiations, in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to
avoid or resolve litigation, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(2), (3) & (4), respectively.

 

i. Open Meeting Law Violation Complaint
 

C. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body; discussion or
consultation with the attorneys of the public body in order to consider its position and instruct its attorneys
regarding the public body's position regarding contracts that are the subject of negotiations, in pending or
contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation; and
discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body in order to consider its
position and instruct its representatives regarding negotiations for the purchase, sale or lease of real
property, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(3), (4) & (7), respectively.

 

i. Hopi v. City of Flagstaff; City of Flagstaff vs. Arizona Snowbowl; Snowbowl property negotiations
 

D. Discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body in order to consider its
position and instruct its representatives regarding negotiations for the purchase, sale or lease of real
property, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(7)

 

i. Court property negotiations
 

5. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff City Council reconvened into Open Session at 5:27 p.m. at which time the Special

Meeting of June 9, 2015, adjourned.
 

 

_______________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
City Clerk

 

  

Flagstaff Special Meeting (Executive Session) June 9, 2015        2 



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
JUNE 9, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

6:00 P.M.
 

MINUTES
               

1. Call to Order
 
  Mayor Nabours called the Work Session of the Flagstaff City Council held June 9, 2015, to

order at 6:02 p.m.
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance

The audience and City Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance.
 

3. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA
 

ABSENT:

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS (excused)

 
Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.

 

4. Preliminary Review of Draft Agenda for the June 16, 2015, City Council Meeting.*
 
* Public comment on draft agenda items may be taken under “Review of Draft Agenda Items”
later in the meeting, at the discretion of the Mayor. Citizens wishing to speak on agenda
items not specifically called out by the City Council for discussion under the second Review
section may submit a speaker card for their items of interest to the recording clerk. 

None
 

5. Public Participation 

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on the
prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at
the end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone
wishing to comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the
recording clerk. When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may
address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made
during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow



during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow
everyone to have an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons
present at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no
more than fifteen minutes to speak.

 
  Emily Davalos, Flagstaff, addressed the Council stating that she was astounded at what she

witnessed last week and now there was racist hate mail being sent. She said that the
changes made by Councilmember Putzova were the only ones that made sense.

 

6. Review of the Draft La Plaza Vieja Neighborhood Specific Plan   

 
  Comprehensive Planning Manager Sara Dechter addressed the Council and provided a

PowerPoint presentation which addressed the following:

♦TIMELINE
♦WHAT WAS CONSIDERED AS PART OF THE COMPREHENSIVE UPDATE?
♦WHAT IS THE CONTENT OF THE PLAN?
              Chapters 1) site and area analysis
                              2) concept plan
                              3) goals and policy recommendations
                              4) implementation Plan
♦LAND USE – ZONING
            Current Zoning   split between Commercial and Low/High density residential
♦LAND USE – FRP30
♦LAND USE POLICY AREAS
            Goal 6.N Neigborhood Core
            Goal 6.T Transition Area
            Goal 6.C Commercial Edge
♦LAND USE GOALS AND POLICIES
♦HISTORIC IDENTITY
            Preserve and Enhance Existing Housing Stock
            Preserve Historic Structures and Landmarks
            Develop Gateways
♦TRANSPORTATION
            Clay Avenue Extension
♦CLAY AVENUE EXTENSION
♦CONCEPT PLAN
            Concept Map 1: Land Use
            By fall hope to have more info – from FMPO – studying
♦3D VISUALIZATION   Illustration #4
            Illustration #6, #2, #3
            None of these sketches indicate any type of approval        
♦ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
♦NEIGHBORHOOD CHALLENGES
            Existing Entitlements
            Clay Avenue Extension
            Arrowhead Village Mobile Home Park
            Housing Occupancy - currently 6% owner occupied
            Nonconforming Uses
 ♦QUESTIONS

Ms. Dechter said that the boundary of the area was established during the prior planning
efforts led by Kim Sharp. She said that the railroad tracks were not always fenced and
families owned homes on both sides and they did not have the train volume at that time.

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          2 



families owned homes on both sides and they did not have the train volume at that time.

Mayor Nabours asked if the businesses included in the commercial edge were contacted.
Ms. Dechter said that she was not sure she could answer that. Since they started this
process back up recently they have sent out mailers to every property owner and fliers to the
businesses, and they went door to door, encouraging them to be involved in the process.

Mayor Nabours asked if there was any discussion about the dilapidated building ordinance
since there were some buildings in the area that are uninhabitable. Mr. Eastman said that
with regard to abatement of those buildings, the building official enforces subject to the
standards in that code. Many of the buildings have been boarded up; others they have not as
they have not received complaints. From talking to Laura Meyers and other residents they
are concerned and would like them removed or rehabilitated.

Mayor Nabours asked if the plan included any design review of new buildings. Ms. Dechter
said that the plan cannot change the current design standards without further action by
Council. They could bring that forward in an overlay district and the details of what that would
include could be a number of things.

Councilmember Brewster said that the area is bisected by the railroad track and asked if
there were any plans for residents to access those areas back and forth. Ms. Dechter said
that there is currently a plan and programmed project that would connect Florence with a ten
foot high tunnel to allow for bikes and pedestrians. She said that BNSF has a lot of illegal
trespass into the park north of the tracks and the fences are always down. This is a proposal
to provide access to connect these two parts.

  Councilmember Overton said that in looking at the implementation strategies he noticed two
distinct areas--private parcels where the City has little control without working with the
property owners, and then those that the City has control over. To make the biggest impact
they could encourage those private property owners. He asked what easy things the City
could do to help kick off the improvements. Ms. Dechter said that there are things in the
street scapes that could be done, such as providing space for a planting strip and provide
mechanisms to help do some reinvestment in the parks. She said that when they were doing
the renovations in the Old Spring Park they found footprints for a saloon and commercial
strip. The neighborhood would like to find a partnership with museums and NAU to do a
good job in gathering that information.

Ms. Dechter said that this document could be a tool in the Capital Improvements Plan and
budgeting process. This will be the first one to come online in awhile.

Jesse Dominguez said that he was excited now; it has been a long time. He said that he
serves as President of the La Plaza Vieja Neighborhood Association and represented them.
This afternoon a letter was hand delivered to the Mayor and Council, and he read the letter
into the record, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

He said that they support no boundary change to the neighborhood, but they do not support
the Clay Avenue Extension. He said that they feel that the McCracken connection would be
better since the playground is on the southside of Clay Avenue.

Moran Henn, representing Friends of Flagstaff's Future, said that they were in support of the
plan as reviewed and adopted and supports the neighborhood plan that allows them to
communicate their needs.

Adam Shimoni, Flagstaff, said that they went through a hard time, but he was pleased with
the work they are doing today and knows that the intentions have been good. He would like

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          3 



to see the Council push for more neighborhoods to put plans together.

Councilmember Evans said that she was happy to see this document before them, but she
did not think it was ready to be approved. There are still issues to be worked out and she
was interested in understanding what happens when it is approved and how it will be used.
She said that one of the areas of concern is the Clay Avenue Extension and she was happy
to see an alternative. She said that the issue of parking needs to be addressed as well as the
aging infrastructure. She said that they need to have a separate plan that talks about the
Arrowhead Trailer Park and a true revitalization of the park. She said that the neighborhood
association has been asking for assistance for years with regard to homeownership and she
would like to see CDBG funds designated for that purpose. She said that she would like to
see a plan adopted by the end of the year.

Ms. Dechter said that the Planning and Zoning Commission had a work session on the
working draft and they are currently in their 60-day comment period. She has sent the plan to
all of the utility companies, the County, two state departments, and it has been posted on the
websites. She sent out another postcard and a trifold with more information. They will have
another neighborhood meeting for input and hope to receive a lot of feedback about this by
July 27. Then it would go before Planning and Zoning Commission for another work session,
after which there are two public hearings and one public hearing with the Council. It is
possible they could have it to Council by October, perhaps November or December.

 

7. Presentation of Flagstaff Regional Plan 2014 Annual Report    

 
  Ms. Dechter then gave a PowerPoint presentation on the Annual Report of the Flagstaff

Regional Plan 2014 which addressed:

♦MEASURE PROGRESS
♦REPORT ON FRP30 ACTIVITIES
♦IDENTIFY PLAN AMENDMENTS
♦NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
♦WHAT’S MISSING
♦BUILT ENVIRONMENT
♦EXISTING DISTRIBUTION OF ZONING CATEGORIES BY PLACE TYPE
            Outside Activity Center vs. In Activity Centers
            Commercial – fairly balanced
            Industrial, Public/OS Residential – little in activity center
♦WHAT’S MISSING?
            Heritage resources
            100-year water demand studies per project
            Connectivity of roadways
♦HUMAN ENVIRONMENT
♦CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORTS
♦PROPOSED PLAN AMENDMENTS
            Task #1: Table of Major and Minor amendments (2015-16)
            Task #2: Map 25 Major Plan Amendment (2015)
            Task #3: Clarify the use of terminology “Great Streets” and “corridors” (2016)
            Task #4: Clarify terms and descriptive information in the Land Use Chapter (2016)
            Task #5: Non-substantive editing errors (2016-17)
♦STAFF DIRECTION REQUESTED
            Would you like something different in next year’s report?
            What missing metrics should we prioritize for next year’s report?
            Feedback on the proposed amendments – strategy or content

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          4 



On request, Ms. Dechter said that the population indicated came from the recent DES
numbers.

Vice Mayor Barotz said that one statistic she would like to see is how many Regional
Plan Amendments came through the process, what they were and what the outcome was.

Councilmember Putzova said that she would like to see some trend data--identifying the
policy decisions made that may contribute to those trends. She said that she would also like
to see the information online in a dashboard format, understanding that it requires funding. 

Councilmember Overton said that it would be nice to have a way to identify or monitor as
projects start using this document, to capture those things that went well or things that could
be modified to make it work better.

Mayor Nabours suggested that the tasks listed be brought back to the Council one at a time.
 

8. Update on and Discussion of City of Flagstaff Resiliency and Preparedness Efforts   

 
  Sustainability Specialist Tamara Lawless gave a PowerPoint Presentation which addressed:

 
♦OVERVIEW
            Review background information
            Review current resiliency projects
            Garner Council direction
 
♦BACKGROUND INFORMATION
            Climate projections for the Flagstaff area
                        Changing precipitation patterns
            COF Resiliency and Preparedness Study – 2012
                        Participants from City, County, National Weather Service
                        Assessed key components of government for vulnerability and risk
 
♦RESOLUTION 2012-22
            Policy 1 – Built partnerships with local/regional stakeholders
            Policy 2 – Consider impacts of weather on vulnerable populations
            Policy 3 – Institutionalize resiliency within City operations
            Policy 4 – Take weather extremes into City development planning
            Policy 5 – Prioritize resilience education within City operations
            Policy 6 – Develop comprehensive criteria into planning efforts
            Policy 7 – Allocate municipal resources to building adaptation
 
♦COUNCIL PRIORITIES AND REGIONAL PLAN POLICIES
            Council Goal 11
            Regional Plan Policies
 
♦FOREST MANAGEMENT – FWPP
            Approved by voters in November 2012
            Fosters resiliency through reducing threat of severe fire and post-fire flooding
            Update on current progress
 
At this time, Ms. Lawless asked Malcolm Alter to come forward as one of the City’s
Champions of the Resiliency Program.
 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          5 



 
Stormwater Manager Malcolm Alter continued the PowerPoint presentation:
 
♦STORMWATER & UTILITIES
            FEMA Grant
            Projects to increase active and passive rainwater capture in community
            Increase resiliency and preparedness by reducing community flooding, preserving
                 functionality of wastewater treatment plants and conserving community water
                 resources
 
Vice Mayor Barotz said that she appreciated the mention of rainwater harvesting as she has
not heard any feedback. Mr. Alter said that there was a disincentive to do it which led most to
go away from the thirsty plans, which was one of the motives they had.
 
The next Champion to speak was Adam Miele, Public Works Project Manager, who
continued the presentation:
 
♦ASPHALT INNOVATIONS – ADAM MIELE
            Freeze-thaw cycles have a detrimental impact on the integrity of asphalt projects
            Innovations in asphalt composition may improve the longevity of our roads,
                  conserving natural and fiscal resources
                        Potential additives: fibers, rubber
                        Portland cement vs. hydrated lime
            2016 construction season may incorporate pilot projects
 
Mayor Nabours said that over the last few years they have been using the millings from
street overlays to pave some of the dirt roads, and he asked how that was working. Mr. Miele
said that it worked well. They have recycled those millings, which have a higher “R” value,
and are stronger than traditional base material. As they remove that material they are
creating new surfaces which hold up well and that also reduces the amount removed from
pits. They have also been using it for shoulder build-up.
 
Councilmember Brewster talked about the newer type of roads constructed, and their use of
more rubberized asphalt, which produces less road roar. Mr. Miele said that they were using
that a lot more in the overlay program. He said that they were not using it for that purpose but
it was an added benefit.
 
Mr. Miele noted that Flagstaff has the highest freeze-thaw cycles in the country, with Boston
coming in a close second.
 
At this time, Police Chief Kevin Treadway continued the presentation, as the final Champion:
 
♦POLICE DEPARTMENT
            Officers are often first responders in climatic events like flood and fires
            Increased fire prevention outreach and action
 
♦PROJECTED RESILIENCY WORK
            Workshops with key staff from each department
            Importance of strong leadership
            Discussion: How to support resilience and preparedness in this organization and
                community into the future
 
Vice Mayor Barotz said that one thing that occurred to her in looking through the information
was she would like to see something about the City’s water supply in the face of these

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          6 



weather events. Ms. Lawless said that they did a workshop with the Utilities department and
there is a lot of room to discuss that issue.
 
Vice Mayor Barotz said that she appreciated the report as it was very important and very
relevant.
 
Mayor Nabours asked if staff also works with the gas company, APS, etc, or if they have
their own plans. Ms. Lawless said that when they have their big meetings of collaborators,
the utilities are normally involved. She said that she would assume they will be at the table
with the COOP.
 
Councilmember Brewster said that it reminded her of months ago when the fiber optic line
went down, and she asked if part of their plan involved the private companies. Ms. Lawless
said that they were very vulnerable when that happened and they will make sure that the
communication companies are at the table.
 
Ms. Lawless asked how else the Council would like to be involved in this program.
Councilmember Brewster suggested that when they hold these emergency planning
meetings, that they invite the Council.
 
Councilmember Putzova said that she appreciated the report; it was very valuable for them
to understand the context. She said that she would be interested in getting more information
with regard to prioritization of resources so that by the time the next budget discussion
comes, everything is settled. She would like to know staff’s thoughts on where they should
invest their resources to avoid costs down the road. Ms. Lawless said that she would be
happy to put together a report with ideas and related costs.
 
Councilmember Evans said that the concept of resiliency is abstract when talking to
individuals. It is complicated and diverse. She asked how they can make themselves more
resilient, with short information statements and perhaps a spot on the city’s website with
weekly updates, tips, etc. She said that if they are going to have meetings covering different
topics perhaps they should videotape it and post it for the public.
 
The Council then took a break from 7:57 p.m. to 8:05 p.m.

 

9. Liquor License Presentation   

 
  Sgt. Matt Wright with the Flagstaff Police Department gave a PowerPoint presentation,

Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof, which addressed:
 
♦TYPES OF LICENSES
            Non-Quota license – not available for sale on the open market
            Quota license – issued by lottery – only have so many allotted per county based on
                 population
♦LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION PROCESS
♦CONSIDERATIONS BY CITY COUNCIL
♦NORTHSIDE & SOUTHSIDE
♦LIQUOR LICENSES BY TYPES
 
Councilmember Evans said that 32% of the City’s liquor licenses are in downtown, including
retail, convenience, etc. She asked what percentage it would be if they backed out the retail
and convenience. Sgt. Wright said that he did not have the number in front of him but could
get it to the Council.
 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          7 



 
♦2015 TOTALS
♦2013 VS. 2015
♦SATURATION PATROL
 
Councilmember Evans asked what the cost of resources were compared to other areas in
town. Sgt. Wright said that from the patrol force’s perspective, they actually like having all of
the bars in one area as it is easier to patrol.
 
Chief Treadway said that occasionally they will bring in officers on holiday weekends and the
first few weeks of school and the few weeks before school gets out. He said that it is
granted-funded overtime that handles that extra patrol.
 
Councilmember Evans said that she had not heard of the patrol force’s perspective before
and was concerned that perhaps the businesses downtown should be addressing the extra
costs rather than all of the residents.
 
FDBA Director Terry Madeksza address the Council stating that there is an emerging
entertainment scene downtown and some of those restaurants and bars have become
destinations, attracting visitors and residents alike. She said that any downtown needs to
have a healthy mix of business. The key is management, product and experience offered.
She said that rather than regulate the number of licenses in the downtown area, they would
like to have the DBA, Chamber, City, etc. work together to support the overall business
climate.
 
Ms. Madeksza said that they will work with property owners to seek the best use of the
space, not necessarily the first one willing to pay. She said that they can also work with the
retailers downtown to help them evolve their business model. She said that sometimes
retailers will forget to change their window displays, etc. and by making the pedestrian
experience better would probably draw more people in.
 
Mayor Nabours thanked Ms. Madeksza for attending the meeting and addressing the issue.
He asked her if it was to be left to the downtown property owners or if the City had a role.
Ms. Madeksza said that the City’s role is to review the applications that come before them
and make recommendations, but she did not think there needs to be a cap put on the number
of licenses. She said that in order to be the best downtown, they need to bring the different
resources and talented staff together and be proactive with the business community.
 
Mayor Nabours asked Ms. Madeksza if she thought it could swing too far. He said that he
would hate to see the downtown become a place where no one wants to go unless they are
drinking. Ms. Madeksza said that was exactly why she was in Flagstaff.
 
Councilmember Evans thanked her for coming as well and agreed that they needed to have
a vibrant downtown. She said that they also need to be mindful of the people that do not live
in the downtown area, but just outside, as they are impacted as well.
 
Brief discussion was held on the verification of restaurants and meeting the 60/40 rule. She
said that she heard there is one liquor control officer for the entire northern part of the state.
She said that there has to be a different way for the bars to report things such as fake id’s.
She believed that discouraged bars from calling in.
 
Ms. Madeksza said that she has lived on the corner of San Francisco and Aspen for the past
three months and she can tell them what is happening downtown at 2:00 in the morning. She
said that there is a true night time economy happening, but she does not know that the story

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          8 



is being defined and told. She said that it is not just students. People are spending money in
the restaurants that stay open until 3:00 a.m. She wondered if there was a way to keep
people downtown instead of having them roaming the streets, perhaps a better management
of their exiting and control of the process.
 
Councilmember Evans said that if someone lives at the corner of San Francisco and Aspen,
they can assume they are going to be woken up at 2:00 a.m. The issue is around Verde and
Franklin, outside of the downtown area, but still being impacted.
  
Stuart McDaniel, representing the Greater Flagstaff Chamber of Commerce, said that he
echoed a lot of the comments previously made. They are against any arbitrary limit on the
number of licenses for many of the same reasons.
 
Mayor Nabours asked, if there were eight more bars downtown, if people are still going to
want to bring their kids down to the Movies on the Square. Mr. McDaniel said that he would
hope they could get eight other types of establishments as well.
 
Councilmember Overton said that the Mayor brings up a valid concern. The only oversight
the community has is at the recommending body. He said that if the Chamber’s position
changes in the future they need to come to the public hearings and voice their concerns.
 
Councilmember Evans said that they talk a lot about the free market. She asked what the
Chamber thinks about the quality of life issues related to the liquor licenses. She would like
to see that get into the conversation at some point. She said that it is great to talk about
economic development, but she asked how they can ensure that they will maintain the
quality of life.
 
Mr. McDaniel said that he completely agreed with Councilmember Evans. The responsibility
is there and it is a critical element in everything they do. They are all charged to be good
stewards and good neighbors.
 
Councilmember Brewster said that she agreed with both sides. Mr. McDaniel said that they
have a nice mix right now. If it becomes oversaturated, they will be before the Council.
 
Mayor Nabours said that he wanted the word to go out that there may be a time where they
hit that tipping point, and let the landlords consider that before they invest several hundred
dollars, that it may not get approved.

 

10. Review of Draft Agenda Items for the June 16, 2015, City Council Meeting.*
 
* Public comment on draft agenda items will be taken at this time, at the discretion of the
Mayor.

 

A. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-26:  A resolution of the City
Council of the City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, calling a Special Election for
November 3, 2015, and approving the ballot language for said election

 
  Ms. Burke briefly reviewed the process, noting that the resolution before the Council included

wording on the six questions which Council had directed staff to bring forward.
 
Ms. D’Andrea reviewed the two personnel questions, explaining that currently the Personnel
Rules and Regulations are adopted by the City Council, which is not entirely consistent with
the Council/Manager form of government. The one question would turn over the
establishment of the Personnel Rules and Regulations to the City Manager and the other

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          9 



establishment of the Personnel Rules and Regulations to the City Manager and the other
question would include an exception that provides the Council with the ability to still have
oversight on the due process for employees.
 
On question from Councilmember Overton, Ms. D’Andrea explained that there are different
types of employees—those appointed by the Council directly, those that salary but do not
report to Council and they still have due process right of appeal with a Deputy City Manager
or City Manager, and then there are the other hourly employees, who have made it through
their probationary period, and they have the right to go before a Personnel Board. 
 
She said that if Council does not want to have Question No. 2 proceed, or the citizens vote
against it, then the City Manager could establish those rules as well, but if Council would like
to hold on to the ability to determine the due process, they would want to move Question No.
2 forward.
 
Mayor Nabours said that the discussion previously started with how they felt about these
questions, rather than whether they should be moved forward to allow the voters to
determine the outcome. An example being that Councilmember Overton had a personal
opinion on the purchasing contracts, and he happens to agree, but perhaps they should allow
the voters to determine that issue.
 
Councilmember Putzova said that she has still not heard what the arguments are for
changing the Charter. Councilmember Evans agreed. She said that if they were going to
follow the Mayor’s logic, they would forward the entire list to the voters.
 
Ms. Burke explained that the list previously brought back to Council included the arguments
on both sides of each of the questions. It was not staff’s place to make the arguments; the
intent of the public outreach was to receive comments from the public.
 
Councilmember Putzova said that she was bothered by the entire process. Tonight they
were discussing this after they had previously given direction on which questions to bring
forward, and there was nothing included in the agenda packet to allow the public to know
they would be discussing this. She said that these were very political questions.
 
Councilmember Evans said that she was very upset with what was going on this evening.
She felt that last time they discussed this they gave staff direction; now they are being told
that their personal opinions should be taken out of it. She said that she did not have the
original list but she knew that districts were on the list. If they are moving these other items
forward, they should just move everything forward from the original list. She did not feel the
process this evening was transparent and it was disingenuous.
 
Ms. Burke explained that the Committee sent forward to the City Manager a list of 30
questions, with a recommendation to take the top 20 to the voters. The City Manager then
added a few questions of his own and brought everything back to the Council; Districts did
not make the top 20 list.
 
Mayor Nabours said that he brought this issue up because he does not want to wait until next
week and have amendments to questions being made. By discussion it this evening they
could provide further direction to staff if needed so it could be decided next week.
 
Councilmember Evans said that if they were going to be bringing back additional questions,
they need to allow the Council to vote on them separately, because she would not support
the additional questions.
 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          10 



Vice Mayor Barotz said that she was struggling with the notion of not considering personal
opinion. If they are going to argue that, then they should send all 15 of these questions,
although she did not support that.
 
Councilmember Putzova requested that next week’s presentation include an over view of the
entire process, including the committee application process and a complete list of the 30
questions.
 
Mr. Meilbeck said that last week he had asked staff to put the entire list back into the packet.
It was not clear to him that the six questions presented were the final list.
 
Ms. D’Andrea said that they have drafted the six questions as directed; the rest they have
not. She would assume that if Council wanted to direct further questions to be considered
that they would go on a future ballot. Mayor Nabours said that it was his understanding that
they had until the first meeting in July to adopt the final language for the ballot, so that would
allow a little more time for Legal to prepare ballot language.

 

11. Public Participation

None
 

12. Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager; requests for future
agenda items.

 

13. Adjournment
 
  The Work Session of the Flagstaff City Council held June 9, 2015, adjourned at 9:35 p.m.
 

 
_______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

Flagstaff City Council Work Session June 9, 2015                          11 



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 16, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M.
 

4:00 P.M.
               

1. CALL TO ORDER

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and to
the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into executive
session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the City’s
attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means .

PRESENT

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA
 

ABSENT

NONE

 
Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT

The audience and City Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance and Mayor Nabours read the City
of Flagstaff's Mission Statement.
 

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its citizens.
 



           

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
 

A. Consideration and Approval of Minutes:  City Council Work Session of March 31, 2015;
Regular Meeting of May 19, 2015; and Regular Meeting  of June 2, 2015.

  

 
  Moved by Vice Mayor Celia Barotz, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to

approve the minutes of the City Council Work Session of March 31, 2015; Regular Meeting
of May 19, 2015; and Regular Meeting of June 2, 2015. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not on
the agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments relating to items
that are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is discussed. If you wish to
address the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a comment card and submit it to
the recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be called when it is your turn to
speak. You may address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including
comments made during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per
item to allow everyone an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more
persons present at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who
may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak. 

None
 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

None 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive session, which
will not be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or considering employment,
assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or
resignation of a public officer, appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).

None
 

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

A. Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:   Lauren Merrett,
“Continental Country Club", 2380 N. Oakmont Blvd., Series 06 (bar- all spirituous
liquor), Person Transfer. 

  

 
  Mayor Nabours opened the Public Hearing. There being no public input, the Public Hearing

was closed. He noted that Community Development, Police and Sales Tax had no issues
with the application.

  Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          2 



  Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to
forward a recommendation for approval to the State for the application of Continental
Country Club, 2380 N. Oakmont Blvd., Flagstaff, Arizona. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

9. CONSENT ITEMS

All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and will
be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. Unless
otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items.

 
  Mayor Nabours noted that items 9-B and 9-C had comments, so they would take each item

separately on the Consent agenda.
 

A. Consideration of Appointment:  City Attorney   

 
  Mayor Nabours asked if they were considering just Ms. D'Andrea's appointment or her

contract as well. Ms. D'Andrea replied that the contract had been included in the packet,
and asked that it be approved as part of the motion.

Mayor Nabours reported that the Council met with Ms. D'Andrea in a prior Executive
Session to provide her feedback. Vice Mayor Barotz thanked her for the terrific work she
does on behalf of the City.

  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to reappoint
Ms. D'Andrea as the Flagstaff City Attorney on the terms and conditions as set forth in the
contract provided in the agenda packet. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

B. Consideration and Approval of Multiple Contracts:   On-Call Legal Services Contracts.   

 
  Ms. D'Andrea said that they followed the same process as they have in the past with asking

various law firms to present to the City a Request for Proposal that outlined their
qualifications and pricing structure. Staff put a team together of all of the civil attorneys, the
Risk Manager and City Engineer to go through and look for those that are most qualified and
have reasonable prices.

She said that this would not preclude staff from coming back to Council before deciding to
engage in some litigation. She said that they would always talk to the Council first; this
allowed for the City to hire one of these firms without having to first come back to Council to
respond to litigation. She said that staff provides a quarterly report to Council on pending
litigation.

  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Eva Putzova to award
contracts, not to exceed $250,000 annually per firm, for On-Call Legal Services to the
following fourteen (14) firms:
       1.)  Jones, Skelton & Hochuli
       2.)  Gust Rosenfeld
       3.)  Struck Wieneke
       4.) Ayers & Brown
       5.)  Ryley, Carlock & Applewhite
       6.)  Udall Law Firm
       7.)  Dickinson Wright

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          3 



       7.)  Dickinson Wright
       8.)  Curtis, Goodwin & Sullivan
       9.)  Lee Story
     10.) Coppersmith Brockelman
     11.)  Mangum, Wall, Stoops & Warden
     12.)  Ellen Van Riper
     13.)  Holm, Wright, Hyde & Hays
     14.)  Hufford, Horstman & Mongini
B) and authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents. 

 
Vote: 6 - 1 

 
NAY: Councilmember Scott Overton 

 

C. Consideration and Approval of Final Plat (PFPL2015-0002):   A request by
Evergreen-Trax, LLC for The Trax - Phase 1, a subdivision of 8 lots on approximately 18.46
acres located at the southwest corner of Route 66 and Fourth Street within the Highway
Commercial (HC) zone (conditional).  (Subdivision of 18.46 acres into 8 lots located at
the southwest corner of Route 66 and Fourth St.)

  

 
  Planning Development Manager Elaine Averitt briefly reviewed the request noting that the

two conditions recommended by staff had been met since writing the staff summary. She
then reviewed what could be considered when approving a final plat. She added that there
has been some public comment regarding the temporary closure of the FUTS trail, but that
was not a finding for the Council to consider with regard to the final plat.

The following individuals then spoke about the closure of the FUTS trail:

Anthony Quintile, Flagstaff Biking Organization
Ken Lane, Absolute Bikes

Comments received included: 

The original Development Agreement required the building of an alternate route
before closing the existing pathway, but provides no penalties
Lack of penalties in the Development Agreement allows them to do whatever they
want
Member of the City's Bicycle Advisory Committee and past member of the City's
Transportation Commission
Evergreen (developer) has a role to be a good neighbor
Closure of the FUTS trail is unsafe, inconvenient and a violation of the contract
City of Flagstaff should have constructed the entire alignment of the trail along the
tracks

Laura Ortiz, representing the developer, said that she did not want to get into a legal debate
or argument, but wanted to express her view of the situation. She said that when they first
received notification that they were in default of the Development Agreement, they verbally
and in writing disagreed in the reading of the Development Agreement, and she was the
person that negotiated it. She said that it was a difference of interpretation and there was no
deliberate, intentional violation. She said that she felt they had been persecuted negatively
that they were deliberately doing this, which is not the case.

Ms. Ortiz said that they are trying to rectify the problem as quickly as possible. She said that
they are pushing the contractor hard and they are working with them daily. She said that
they have asked the contractor to hire additional crews to get the work done faster and
authorized them to spend $45,000 in overtime. The contractor has told her they will be
completed by July 15.

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          4 



In response to a question by Vice Mayor Barotz, Ms. Ortiz reviewed the various routes and
where they were currently attempting to send the riders as an alternate.

  
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Scott Overton to approve

the final plat of Phase I of the TRAX. 
 

Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously
 

Mayor Nabours told those representing the biking organization that the Council has heard
them and they appreciate their concerns. He said that they all hope this gets rectified as
quickly as possible.

 

10. ROUTINE ITEMS
 

A. Consideration of Authorizing the Submission and Acceptance of a Grant
Application:  To the U.S. Department of Justice, FY 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice
Assistance Grant in the amount of $20,749 to pay for Police Staff Overtime and Crisis
Intervention Training for the Coconino County Sheriff's Department and authorizing the
acceptance upon award of the grant agreement

  

 
  Support Services Manager Jennifer Brown briefly reviewed this request, noting that the

Police Department has a proven track record with these funds. She explained that the
funds are shared with the County (next agenda item) and they are used for various things
within the department each year.

  Moved by Councilmember Scott Overton, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster 
to aprove the submission of a Grant Application and authorize acceptance upon award for
the U.S. Department of Justice, FY 2015 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
(JAG) for an amount of $20,749.

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

B. Consideration of Authorizing the Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement: :
Between the City of Flagstaff and Coconino County (County) for submission of a grant
application and approval upon award to the U.S. Department of Justice, FY 2015 Edward
Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance (JAG) Grant.

  

 
  Moved by Councilmember Scott Overton, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster 

to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with Coconino County for the FY 2015
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant in an amount of $5,735 for the County to
utilize for Crisis Intervention Training to use in the field by officers.

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

C. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution Number 2015-23 and Ordinance No.
2015-13:   A resolution and ordinance of the Flagstaff City Council adopting by
reference minor amendments to the City Code.

  

 
  Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to

adopt Resolution No. 2015-23.

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          5 



  Moved by Councilmember Karla Brewster, seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to
read Ordinance No. 2015-13 by title only for the final time.

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA,
AMENDING THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE: TITLE ELEVEN: GENERAL PLANS AND
SUBDIVISIONS; TITLE NINE, TRAFFIC; TITLE EIGHT, PUBLIC WAYS AND PROPERTY;
TITLE SIX, POLICE REGULATIONS; AND TITLE ONE, ADMINISTRATIVE; BY
ADOPTING THE "2015 MINOR AMENDMENTS TO THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE" AS
SET FORTH IN THAT PUBLIC RECORD ON FILE WITH THE CITY CLERK RELATING
TO PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS TO THE REGIONAL PLAN, REPEALING
REGULATIONS OF THE LAKE MARY AREA, REPEALING REGULATIONS REGARDING
DAMAGE TO PUBLIC WAYS, PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR UNLAWFUL PARKING,
AND ALLOWING THE CLERK TO MAKE FORMATTING AND TECHNICAL
CORRECTIONS TO CITY ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
ORDINANCES; SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

  Moved by Councilmember Karla Brewster, seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to
adopt Ordinance No. 2015-13.

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

D. Consideration and Approval of Agreement:  Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with
the Arizona Department of Revenue for Uniform Transaction Privilege (Sales) Tax
Administration. (IGA for Uniform Sales Tax Administration)

  

 
  Revenue Director Andy Wagemaker said that he had no formal presentation, but was

available to answer any questions. He said that this IGA adopts what they knew was
coming with the State administering sales tax. He said that the IGA itself is actually effective
as of July 1, 2015, with an automatic renewal. The State has until September 1 of this year
to determine if they will be ready to take over the administration on January 1, 2016.

Mr. Wagemaker said that the City still has most of the audit powers. The only difference is
that when they think they have someone needing an audit, they have to turn the findings
over to the State and get final approval from ADOT to go ahead with an audit. In most
cases, they think they will be able to do their own because Flagstaff has a lot of local
businesses in Flagstaff only. If it was a business located in other cities as well, that is where
the State would come in and audit on behalf of all of them.

  Moved by Councilmember Scott Overton, seconded by Mayor Jerry Nabours 
to approve the intergovernmental agreement between the City of Flagstaff and the Arizona
Department of Revenue regarding the uniform administration, licensing, collection, and
auditing of transaction privilege tax, use tax, severance tax, jet fuel excise and use tax and
rental occupancy taxes imposed by the State or cities or towns.

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          6 



           

E. Consideration and Approval of Contract:   Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the
State Office of Manufactured Housing. (IGA for the City of Flagstaff to perform set-up
inspections)

  

 
  Building Official Mike Scheu briefly reviewed the IGA, noting that this is required to be

approved every five years to allow the City to permit the mobile home setups and do the
inspections necessary for getting them into their homes faster. They comply with state
requirements for the setup.

Mayor Nabours asked if staff also looks at the internal wiring, etc. Mr. Scheu said that they
do not. That is done under HUD standards by the State in the factories in the Valley. All that
City staff does is look at the stands, connections to utilities, and outside improvements such
as stairs, garage, etc.

  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Eva Putzova to approve
the IGA between the City and the State Office of Manufactured Housing regarding the City
performing set-up inspections to help owner(s) occupy the home sooner.  

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

RECESS 

The 4:00 p.m. portion of the June 16, 2015, Regular Council Meeting recessed at 4:53 p.m.

6:00 P.M. MEETING
 

RECONVENE

Mayor Nabours reconvened the Regular Council Meeting of June 16, 2015, at 6:00 p.m.
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

 

11. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT:       

NONE

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          7 



Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck, City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea and
Deputy City Attorney Sterling Solomon.

 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 
  Adam Dunstan, Flagstaff, said that he was soon leaving the area, but he had recently read

about the easement across City property for the Snowbowl and he was glad to see that it
was going to be a temporary easement. He said that there were environmental, financial,
and cultural reasons for not supporting reclaimed water on the peaks, and it was good to
revisit the issue.

 

13. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA

None 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS
 

A. Public Hearing For Proposed FY 2015 – 2016 Budget and Property Tax Levy.   

 
  Finance Director Rick Tadder reviewed the process to be followed for adoption of the final

budget and tax levy.

Mayor Nabours opened the Public Hearing. There being no public input, the Public Hearing
was closed, and the meeting was recessed at 6:08 p.m.

SPECIAL MEETING

 
Mayor Nabours called the Special Meeting to order at 6:08 p.m.
 

  Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-20:  A resolution of the City
Council of Flagstaff, Arizona, for the adoption of the Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16 and
Public Hearing for Budget and Levy.

Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Mayor Jerry Nabours to read
Resolution No. 2015-20 by title only.

Vote :  7 - 0  Unanimous

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF FOR FISCAL YEAR
2015-2016

Councilmember Putzova said that during the work sessions they heard a lot of need for
funding area services. She said that the time to address funding is during the budget retreat
and she would hope that in the future the Council will consider increasing the property tax so
they can fund services and make a difference. She hoped they had the political will to do so.
 
Moved by Councilmember Scott Overton, seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to
adopt Resolution No. 2015-20.

Vote: 7 - 0 Unanimous
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          8 



  The Special Meeting of June 16, 2015, adjourned at 6:11 p.m. and Mayor Nabours
reconvened the Regular Meeting.

 

15. REGULAR AGENDA
 

A. Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-11:   An ordinance levying upon the
assessed valuation of the property within the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, subject to taxation a
certain sum upon each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of valuation sufficient to raise the
amount estimated to be required in the Annual Budget, less the amount estimated to be
received from other sources of revenue; providing funds for various bond redemptions, for
the purpose of paying interest upon bonded indebtedness and providing funds for general
municipal expenses, all for the Fiscal Year ending the 30th day of June, 2016.
(Property Tax Levy for FY 15-16)

  

 
  Mayor Nabours asked what change, if any, there was from last year's tax. Mr. Tadder said

that overall it is a flat levy this year, with the addition of new construction added to the tax
rolls.

Mayor Nabours asked, if he has a home that has gone up in value by the assessor, if he
would pay more property tax. Mr. Tadder said that it would depend on the value increase.
The averages across the City taxation is about 2.2%, so if the property increased by 3%
they would see a little, if it was lower than the 2.2% they may see a decrease.

Councilmember Oravits said that he thought they did a great job this year and they
accomplished it without increasing the property tax.

  Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to
read Ordinance No. 2015-11 by title only for the first time.

 
Vote: 6 - 1 

 
NAY: Councilmember Eva Putzova 

 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING UPON THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY
WITHIN THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, SUBJECT TO TAXATION A CERTAIN
SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT
TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE REQUIRED IN THE ANNUAL BUDGET,
LESS THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM OTHER SOURCES OF
REVENUE; PROVIDING FUNDS FOR VARIOUS BOND REDEMPTIONS, FOR THE
PURPOSE OF PAYING INTEREST UPON BONDED INDEBTEDNESS AND PROVIDING
FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES, ALL FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING
THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE, 2016 
 

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          9 



           

B. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-27:    A Resolution of the Council
of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, stating its support for the development of U.S. Bicycle
Route 66 

  

 
  Multimodal Planner with FMPO Martin Ince said that there is a national network of 50,000

miles of planned bike routes, and 9,000 of them have been designated across 18 states. He
said that ADOT has submitted a request for four routes to be included, and this includes
Route 66 through Flagstaff. As part of the request, they have to get local support of the
designation. He said that there is no specific obligation. They could put up signs if they
would like, but they do not have to.

  Moved by Councilmember Karla Brewster, seconded by Councilmember Eva Putzova to
read Resolution No. 2015-27 by title only. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

   
RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, STATING
ITS SUPPORT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF U.S. BICYCLE ROUTE 66 
 

  Moved by Councilmember Karla Brewster, seconded by Councilmember Eva Putzova to
adopt Resolution No. 2015-27. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

C. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-26:  A resolution of the City
Council of the City of Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, calling a Special Election for
November 3, 2015, and approving the ballot language for said election

  

 
  City Clerk Elizabeth Burke briefly reviewed the timeline of the past 18 months associated

with this project. She said that the proposed resolution includes the ballot language of the
six questions previously directed to move forward and staff was available to answer any
questions that anyone may have on any of the other questions. She then reviewed the
proposed language of each of the six questions.

Vice Mayor Barotz voiced concern with the wording of the 'no" statement for Question No. 2
and discussion was held on the impact if one of these questions was approved and the
other was not.

Ms. D'Andrea explained how Questions No. 2 and 3 work together. She said Question No. 3
gives the City Manager authority to adopt the personnel rules. If that was voted down,
Question No. 2 would not matter because currently the Council adopts all of the rules.
Ms. D'Andrea said that she would look at the wording further and try to clarify.

Ms. D'Andrea explained that if Question No. 2 and 3 both passed, the Council would still
decide the due process, but would not review actual situations. She clarified that a prior
question raised by Councilmember Oravits about an employee being able to run for an
office would not come before Council if both of these questions passed.

Councilmember Putzova asked if there was a way to separate the procedural and policy
issues within the personnel rules and regulations to keep the Council in control of the policy
issues. Mr. Meilbeck said that the attempt is to leave the personnel issues out of the Council
oversight. Ms. D'Andrea said that the exception is very specific as to the Council adopting
the due process procedure, but nothing more.

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          10 



Discussion was then held on effects of Questions 4, 5 and 6 regarding possible election
dates.

Mayor Nabours then asked Councilmembers to vote on each of the questions:

Councilmember Oravits said that he was on the fence with No. 3 last time and he is now a
no vote, and would then be with No. 2 as well, as he believed the Council should retain
more of the authority over personnel rules and regulations.

Councilmember Putzova said that she did not support Question No. 5 because it was a
date on which they have never held elections, and she agreed with Councilmember Oravits
in removing No. 2 and 3, and Councilmember Evans agreed.

  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Scott Overton to read
Resolution No. 2015-26 by title only.

Councilmember Brewster said that she understood not liking some of the questions, but she
believed they should go to the voters and let them decide.

Moved by Councilmember Putzova and seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans  to
amend the motion to remove Question No. 2, 3 and 5; seconded by Councilmember Coral
Evans.

Vote: 2 - 5      Failed

NAY   Mayor Jerry Nabours
           Vice Mayor Celia Barotz
          Councilmember Karla Brewster
          Councilmember Jeff Oravits
          Councilmember Scott Overton

Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits and seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to
amend the motion by deleting Question No. 2 and 3.

Vote: 3 - 4      Failed

NAY  Mayor Jerry Nabours
          Vice Mayor Celia Barotz
         Councilmember Karla Brewster
         Councilmember Scott Overton

Motion (to read Resolution No. 2015-26 by title only) 
 

Vote: 4 - 3 
 

NAY: Vice Mayor Celia Barotz 
  Councilmember Coral Evans 
  Councilmember Eva Putzova 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, COCONINO
COUNTY, ARIZONA, CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION FOR NOVEMBER 3, 2015, AND
APPROVING THE BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR SAID ELECTION 
  

  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours to amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 7;

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          11 



  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours to amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 7;
motion failed for lack of a second.

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours to amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 8;
motion failed for lack of a second.

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours and seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to amend
Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 9.

Vote :  2 - 5    Failed

NAY:  Vice Mayor Celia Barotz
          Councilmember Karla Brewster
          Councilmember Coral Evans
          Councilmember Scott Overton
          Councilmember Eva Putzova

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours and seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to amend
Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 10.

Vote :  2 - 5    Failed

NAY:  Vice Mayor Celia Barotz
          Councilmember Karla Brewster
          Councilmember Coral Evans
          Councilmember Scott Overton
          Councilmember Eva Putzova

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours to amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 11;
motion failed for lack of a second.

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours to amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question
No. 12; motion failed for lack of a second.

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours and seconded by Councilmember Scott Overton to
amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 13.

Vote :  4 - 3   Passed

NAY:  Vice Mayor Celia Barotz
           Councilmember Coral Evans
           Councilmember Eva Putzova

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours to amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question
No. 14; motion failed for lack of a second.

Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours and seconded by  Councilmember Karla Brewster to
amend Resolution No. 2015-26 to add Question No. 15.

Vote :  4 - 3    Passed

NAY:  Vice Mayor Celia Barotz
          Councilmember Jeff Oravits
          Councilmember Scott Overton

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          12 



  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to adopt
Resolution No. 2015-26 as amended (adding Question No. 13 and No. 15). 

 
Vote: 4 - 3 

 
NAY: Vice Mayor Celia Barotz 
  Councilmember Coral Evans 
  Councilmember Eva Putzova 

 

D. Consideration of Suggested Change to Rules of Procedure for Possible Future
Agenda Items .

  

 
  Mr. Meilbeck briefly reviewed his recommended change, to rename Possible Future Agenda

Items (PFAI) to Future Agenda Item Request (FAIR) and to take public comment on such
items at the time they appear on the agenda rather than during Public Participation earlier
in the meeting.

  Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to
amend the Flagstaff City Council Rules of Procedure as recommended. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

16. DISCUSSION ITEMS

None
 

17. POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Verbal comments from the public on any item under this section must be given during
Public Participation near the beginning of the meeting. Written comments may be submitted
to the City Clerk. After discussion and upon agreement of three members of the Council, an
item will be moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.

 

A. Request by Councilmember Putzova to place on a future agenda item the discussion of the
Board/Commission/Committee appointment process.

 
  Councilmember Putzova said that she would like to place on a future agenda a discussion

on the Citizen Committee appointment process. She said that she would like to receive
information on the various boards and commissions and related ordinances for review, but
not for discussion at the meeting. She said that if there is no policy on the citizen
committees she would like to have them craft one. Consensus was to move this to a future
agenda.

 

18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, REQUESTS
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 
  Councilmember Evans welcomed Josh Copley as the next City Manager, effective in

September 2015.

Vice Mayor Barotz asked for information as to what is taking place in the corner of the
Public Works Yard.

Mr. Meilbeck congratulated the City Council and Mr. Copley for his appointment as City
Manager. 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          13 



Mr. Meilbeck said that he would be taking off the next three days with his family.
 

19. ADJOURNMENT

The Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held on June 16, 2015, adjourned at
7:41 p.m.

 

 
_______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:

 

 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

CERTIFICATION
STATE OF ARIZONA, )  
 )    ss.
Coconino County. )  

I, ELIZABETH A. BURKE, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Flagstaff, County of
Coconino, State of Arizona, and that the above Minutes are a true and correct summary of the Meeting of
the Council of the City of Flagstaff held on June 16, 2015. I further certify that the Meeting was duly called
and held and that a quorum was present.

DATED this 7th day of July, 2015.             
  
 ________________________________

CITY CLERK

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting June 16, 2015                          14 



SPECIAL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION)
THURSDAY, JUNE 11, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

7:00 A.M.

 
MINUTES

               

1. Call to Order
 
  Mayor Nabours called the Special Meeting of June 11, 2015, to order at 7:05 a.m.
 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT

COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

 

Others present: Contract Attorney Gordon Lewis (telephonically) and Human Resources
Director Shannon Anderson.

 

3. Recess into Executive Session.
 
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Scott Overton to recess into

Executive Session. 
 

Vote: 6 - 0 - Unanimously
  The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 7:05 a.m.
 

4. Executive Session:
 

A. Discussion or consideration of employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal,
salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, appointee or employee of any public body, except
that, with the exception of salary discussions, an officer, appointee or employee may demand that the
discussion or consideration occur at a public meeting. The public body shall provide the officer, appointee
or employee with written notice of the executive session as is appropriate but not less than twenty-four
hours for the officer, appointee or employee to determine whether the discussion or consideration should
occur at a public meeting, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(1)

City Manager finalists selection
 



5. Adjournment
 
  The Special Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held June 11, 2015, reconvened into Open

Session at 7:53 a.m. at which time the meeting was adjourned.
 

 

_______________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
City Clerk

 

  

Flagstaff Special Meeting (Executive Session) June 11, 2015        2 



SPECIAL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION)
FRIDAY, JUNE 12, 2015
COUNCIL CHAMBERS

211 WEST ASPEN
9:00 A.M.

 
MINUTES

               

1. Call to Order
 
  Mayor Nabours called the Special Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held on June 12, 2015, to

order at 9:00 a.m.
 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT:

COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON

 

Others present: Contract Attorney Gordon Lewis (telephonically) and Human Resources Director
Shannon Anderson.

 

3. Recess into Executive Session.
 
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to recess into

Executive Session. 
 

Vote: 5 - 0 - Unanimously
 

The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 9:00 a.m.
 

4. Executive Session:
 

A. Discussion or consideration of employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion,
dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, appointee or employee of any
public body, except that, with the exception of salary discussions, an officer, appointee or
employee may demand that the discussion or consideration occur at a public meeting. The public
body shall provide the officer, appointee or employee with written notice of the executive session
as is appropriate but not less than twenty-four hours for the officer, appointee or employee to
determine whether the discussion or consideration should occur at a public meeting, pursuant to
ARS 38-431.03(A)(1)

City Manager finalists selection



City Manager finalists selection
 

5. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff City Council reconvened into Open Session at 9:38 a.m. at which time the Special

Meeting of June 12, 2015, adjourned.
 

 

_______________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
City Clerk

 

  

Flagstaff Special Meeting (Executive Session) June 12, 2015        2 



SPECIAL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION)
TUESDAY, JUNE 30, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

3:00 P.M.

 
MINUTES

               

1. Call to Order
 
  Mayor Nabours called the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 30, 2015, to order at

3:02 p.m.
 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT:

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT:

NONE

                                       

 

Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck (all but Item 4A1); City Attorney Michelle
D'Andrea (all but Item 4A1); Human Resources Director Shannon Anderson and Contract
Attorney Gordon Watkins (telephonically) (Item 4A1 only); Acting Deputy City Manager
Stephanie Smith (all but Item 4A1); and City Clerk Elizabeth Burke.

 

3. Recess into Executive Session
 

4. Executive Session:
 
  Mayor Nabours said that they had four items to discuss in Executive Session and asked if any

councilmembers wished to remove any items from the agenda. He clarified that they will only
be reviewing the Magistrates; there would be no action taken as that will be on next week's
Regular Meeting agenda.

Additionally, he clarified that the item regarding water capacity fees is a legal issue and is
separate from the setting of the fees which would be done in a public session.

There were no requests to remove an item from the Executive Session agenda.

  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to recess into



  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to recess into
Executive Session. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 3:05 p.m.
 

A. Discussion or consideration of employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion,
dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, appointee or employee of any
public body, except that, with the exception of salary discussions, an officer, appointee or
employee may demand that the discussion or consideration occur at a public meeting. The
public body shall provide the officer, appointee or employee with written notice of the executive
session as is appropriate but not less than twenty-four hours for the officer, appointee or
employee to determine whether the discussion or consideration should occur at a public
meeting, pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(1).

 

1. Reviews of Presiding Magistrate and Magistrates:

Thomas Chotena
Michael Araujo
Paul Julien

 

B. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body; and
discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public body in order to consider its position
and instruct its attorneys regarding the public body's position regarding contracts that are the
subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions
conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation, pursuant to ARS 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4),
respectively.

 

1. Hopi v. City of Flagstaff; City of Flagstaff vs. Arizona Snowbowl
 

2. General Litigation Update
 

3. Water Capacity Fees
 

5. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff City Council reconvened into Open Session at 4:52 p.m. at which time the

Special Meeting (Executive Session) of June 30, 2015, adjourned.
 

 

_______________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
City Clerk

 

  

Flagstaff Special Meeting (Executive Session) June 30, 2015        2 



  7. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Library Board.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Make three (3) appointments to term expiring November 2017.

Executive Summary:
The Flagstaff City-Coconino County Public Library Board consists of two County residents, four City
residents, and one each non-voting member of the City Council and Board of Supervisors.  The Library
Board serves as a citizen's advisory board to the Library Director.

There are currently three seats available; Joanne Parkes is seeking reappointment and there are two
vacant seats. It is important to fill vacancies on Boards and Commissions quickly so as to allow the
Commission to continue meeting on a regular basis.

There are three applications on file for consideration by the Council, they are as follows:

Troy Campbell (new applicant)
Joanne Parkes (current commissioner)
Dorothy Renstrom (new applicant)

COUNCIL INTERVIEW TEAM: Councilmember Evans and Councilmember Overton

Financial Impact:
These are voluntary positions and there is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
There is no Council goal that specifically addresses appointments to Boards and Commissions; however,
boards and commissions do provide input and recommendations based on City Council goals that may
pertain to the board or commission work plan.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None. 
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
1) Appoint three board members: By appointing members at this time, the Library Board will be at full
membership, allowing the board to continue meeting and provide recommendations to the City Council.

2) Table the action to allow for further disucssion or to expand the list of candidates.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The City's boards, commissions, and committees were created to foster public participation and input
and to encourage Flagstaff citizens to take an active role in city government.

Community Involvement:
INFORM: The vacancies are posted on the City's website and individual recruitment and mention of the
opening by Board members and City staff has occurred, informing others of this vacancy through word of
mouth.

Attachments:  Library Board Roster
Library Board Authority
Library Board Applicant Roster
Library Board Applications



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

LIBRARY BOARD  MEMBERS

TRAINING 
COMPLETED

211 W. Aspen Ave.

Brewster, Karla

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Councilmember/City of Flagstaff

Indefinite No

CITY REPRESENTATIVE (Non Voting)

10004 Heritage Dr.

Browning, Dural (Dave)

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Retired

04/15/2014 11/18 02/19/2015

Term: (1st 4/14-11/18

COUNTY RESIDENT

219 E. Cherry Avenue

Fowler, Lena

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Board of Supervisors/Coconino County

Indefinite No

Work Phone: 928-679-7151

COUNTY REPRESENTATIVE (Non Voting)

2441 W. Blue Willow Rd.

Garrison, Ruth

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Artist/Self Employed

02/19/2013 11/15 02/16/2012

Home Phone: 928-774-8641
Term: (1st 4/10-11/12; 2nd 11/12-11/15)

CITY RESIDENT

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

1738 W. University Hts. S.

Parkes, Joanne

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Director, Children's Health Ctr./Flagstaff 
Medical Center

02/19/2013 11/14 02/19/2015

Cell Phone: 928-699-3209
Term: (1st 5/09-11/11; 2nd 11/11 - 11/14)

CITY RESIDENT

5840 E. Waki

Young, Harriet H.

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

NAU - Adjunct Professor/Retiree

04/15/2014 11/17 No

Home Phone: 928-527-1001
Term: (1st 8/07-11/10; 2nd 11/10-11/13, 3rd 
11/13-11/17)

COUNTY RESIDENT

Z-VACANT, 11/16 No

CITY RESIDENT

Z-VACANT, 11/17 No

CITY RESIDENT

Staff Representative: Heidi Holland

As Of: June 24, 2015

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 2 of 2



















City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

LIBRARY BOARD  APPLICANTS

TRAINING 
COMPLETED

216 E. Mountain View Rd.

Campbell, Troy

Flagstaff, AZ  86011

Residence Hall Director/Northern Arizona 
University

No

Cell Phone: 909-213-4476

CITY RESIDENT

1738 W. University Hts. S.

Parkes, Joanne

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Retired

02/19/2013 11/14 02/19/2015

Cell Phone: 928-699-3209
Term: (1st 5/09-11/11; 2nd 11/11 - 11/14)

CITY RESIDENT

5125 So Opal Rd

Renstrom, Dorothy

Flagstaff, AZ  86005

Social Worker/Retired

No

Home Phone: 928-556-0263

CITY RESIDENT

Staff Representative: Heidi Holland

As Of: July 01, 2015

Wednesday, July 01, 2015 Page 1 of 1

















  7. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Planning and Zoning Commission.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Make one appointment to a term expiring December 2017.

Executive Summary:
The Planning and Zoning Commission consists of seven citizen members, and serves as an advisory
board to the Council on matters relating to the growth and physical development of the City. The
commission also conducts hearings on amendments to the Zoning Map, tentative subdivision plats, and
Development Review Board appeals. There is currently one seat available. It is important to fill vacancies
on Boards and Commissions quickly so as to allow the Commission to continue meeting on a regular
basis.

There are nine applications currently on file, they are as follows:

Bart Bartel (new applicant)
Ed Dunn (new applicant)
Robert Hubbard (new applicant)
Robert Kelty (new applicant)
Thomas Klimas (new applicant)
Jeff Knorr (new applicant)
Alaxandra Pucciarelli (new applicant)
Margo Wheeler (new applicant)
David Zimmerman (new applicant)
 

It is important to note that two of the applicants are currently seated commissioners on other
commissions; Jeff Knorr is a member of the Beautification and Public Arts Commission with a term
expiring June 2016 and David Zimmerman is a member of the Heritage Preservation Commission with a
term expiring December 2015. While the handbook states that a commissioner cannot serve more than
one commission at a time, it does not address applying for another commission while seated. The
Council did discuss this situation during a work session and gave direction to the City Attorney to make
changes to the Board and Commission Handbook; those changes are still being drafted and have not yet
come back to Council for review and approval. If the Council appoints either of these two applicants they
will be required to resign from their current commission seats.

Council Interview Team: Councilmember Overton and Councilmember Oravits



Financial Impact:
These are voluntary positions and there is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
There is no Council goal that specifically addresses appointments to Boards and Commissions; however,
boards and commissions do provide input and recommendations based on City Council goals that may
pertain to the board or commission work plan.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
None 

Options and Alternatives:
1) Appoint one Commissioner: By appointing a Commissioner at this time, the Planning and Zoning
Commission will be at full membership, allowing the group to meet and provide recommendations to the
City Council.

2) Table the action to allow for further discussion or expand the list of candidates.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The City's boards, commissions, and committees were created to foster public participation and input
and to encourage Flagstaff citizens to take an active role in city government. 

Community Involvement:
INFORM: The vacancies are posted on the City's website and individual recruitment and mention of the
opening by Board members and City staff has occurred, informing others of these vacancies through
word of mouth. 

Attachments:  P&Z - Roster
P&Z - Authority
P&Z - Applicant Roster
P&Z - Applications



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  MEMBERS

TRAINING 
COMPLETED

1715 E. Tradewinds Ct.

Carpenter, David

Flagstaff, AZ  86005

Owner/Hope Construction

01/15/2013 12/15 03/18/2010

Cell Phone: 928-380-5808
Term: (1st 2/10-12/12; 2nd 12/12-12/15)

1823 W. Heavenly Court

Dorsett, Stephen

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

President/Architect/Shapes & Forms Architects

12/03/2013 12/16 10/20/2011

Work Phone: 928-213-9626
Term: (1st 6/09-12/10; 2nd 12/10-12/13; 3rd 
12/13-12/16)

4417 E. Burning Tree Loop

Jackson, Steve, Co-Chairman

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Owner/Broker/Coldwell Banker NARICO

01/15/2013 12/15 02/19/2015

Work Phone: 928-226-3188
Term: (1st 1/13-12/15)

4391 E. Savannah Cir.

Pfeiffer, Tina

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Mortgage Loan Officer/Prime Lending

01/15/2013 12/15 02/16/2012

Cell Phone: 928-600-3143
Term: (1st 9/11-12/12; 2nd 12/12-12/15)

2819 W. Darleen Dr.

Stigmon, John

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Vice President/ECoNA

01/20/2015 12/17 No

Cell Phone: 928-380-3026
Term: (1st 1/15-12/17)

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

4825 E. Hightimber Lane

Turner, Paul W.

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Principal/President/Turner Engineering, Inc.

12/03/2013 12/16 02/19/2015

Work Phone: 928-779-1814
Term: (1st 12/13-12/16)

Z-VACANT, 12/17 No

Staff Representative: Mark Sawyers

As Of: June 24, 2015

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 2 of 2



CHAPTER 2-01
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

SECTIONS:
2-01-001-0001    CREATION OF COMMISSION
2-01-001-0002    INTENT AND PURPOSE
2-01-001-0003    MEMBERSHIP
2-01-001-0004    MEETINGS
2-01-001-0005    DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

Prior legislation: Ords. 339, 859, 1427, 1826 and 2007-09.

2-01-001-0001 CREATION OF COMMISSION

There is hereby established a Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Flagstaff under the 
provisions of A.R.S. § 9-461.02. (Ord. 339, 10-8-45; Ord. 2010-35, Amended, 11/16/2010)

2-01-001-0002 INTENT AND PURPOSE

The purpose of the Planning and Zoning Commission is to direct the growth and physical development of 
the City in a sound and orderly fashion for the prosperity, health, safety, convenience, and general welfare 
of the citizens of Flagstaff. (Ord. 2010-35, 11/16/2010)

2-01-001-0003 MEMBERSHIP

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consist of seven (7) members appointed by the Mayor and 
Council.

The term of each citizen member shall be three (3) years or until his successor takes office. Vacancies 
occurring otherwise than through the expiration of term shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term.

A.    A Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be elected from and by the voting membership of the 
Commission to serve one (1) year terms. A Chairperson may serve no more than two (2) consecutive 
terms as Chairperson (exclusive of a term as Vice-Chairperson). Upon the conclusion of a second, 
consecutive term as Chairperson, such Commission member shall be ineligible to serve as either 
Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson until a calendar year has expired.

B.    In addition to the causes for removal set out in the Board and Commission Members’ Rules and 
Operations Manual, a member accumulating eight (8) absences from regularly scheduled meetings in any 
given calendar year will be automatically removed from the Commission and a replacement appointed by 
the City Council. An unexcused absence is defined as the failure of the member to notify the Planning and 
Development Services Section of his or her inability to attend a regularly scheduled meeting. (Ord. 2010-
35, 11/16/2010; Ord. 2014-28, Amended, 11/18/2014)

2-01-001-0004 MEETINGS

Unless there are no matters to be considered, the Commission shall hold at least one meeting each 
month and may schedule additional special meetings as needed. A special meeting may serve as the 
minimum one meeting per month. (Ord. 2010-35, 11/16/2010)



2-01-001-0005 DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

The Planning and Zoning Commission created in this chapter shall be and act as the Zoning Commission 
of the City, and all duties and powers granted to zoning commissions under State law shall be exercised 
by the Planning and Zoning Commission. In addition to any authority granted to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission by State law or other ordinances of the City, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall have 
the following duties and functions under the provisions of these regulations:

A.    To review and recommend to the City Council adoption of a comprehensive general plan adopted in 
compliance with the authority provided in A.R.S. Section 9-461.05 for the orderly growth and development 
of the City and for any land outside the City which, in the opinion of the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
bears a relation to the planning of the City.

B.    To hear, review, and make recommendations to the City Council regarding applications for 
amendments to the General Plan or any other plan in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 11-10 
(General Plans).

C.    To serve as an advisory body to the City Council and furnish the Council through the Planning 
Director the facts concerning the adoption of any report or recommendation.

D.    To make its special knowledge and expertise available upon reasonable written request and 
authorization of the City Council to any official, department, board, commission or agency of the State or 
Federal governments.

E.    To hear and review amendments to the Zoning Map and to the text of the Zoning Code in accordance 
with the provisions of Title 10, Zoning Code, Division 10-20.50 (Amendments to the Zoning Code Text and 
the Zoning Map).

F.    To confer with and advise other similar City or County commissions.

G.    To make investigations, maps, reports, and recommendations to the City Council in regard to the 
physical development of the City.

H.    To hear, review and make recommendations to the City Council regarding preliminary subdivision 
plats after recommendation from the Planning Director and City Engineer in accordance with Chapter 11-
20, Subdivision and Land Split Regulations.

I.    To take such other action as authorized in Title 10 (Zoning Code) and Title 11 (General Plan and 
Subdivisions) as necessary to implement the provisions of those titles and the General Plan.

J.    To consider, review and approve Conditional Use Permits, pursuant to the provisions of Section 10-
20.40.050 (Conditional Use Permits).

K.    The Commission shall carry out other such duties as determined by the City Council and present 
other recommendations the City Council deems pertinent. (Ord. 859, 10-24-72; Ord. 2010-35, Amended, 
11/16/2010; Ord. 2014-28, Amended, 11/18/2014)



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  APPLICANTS

TRAINING 
COMPLETED

2650 W. Kiltie

Bartel, Bart

Flagstaff, AZ  86005

Member/BPJRanch LLC

No

Cell Phone: 928-606-5926

21 W. Pine Ave.

Dunn, Ed

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Owner/Solar Design & Construction and ED 
Studio

No

Cell Phone: 928-607-2479

2778 N. Sandstone Way

Hubbard, Robert

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Principal/Hubbard Merrell Engineering

No

Work Phone: 928-526-6174

4100 N. Country Club Dr.

Kelty, Robert

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Senior Managing Director/Teach for America

No

Home Phone: 928-814-9310

2509 S. Highland Mesa Rd.

Klimas, Thomas

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Senior Environmental Specialist/Westland 
Resources, Inc.

No

Cell Phone: 520-419-5638

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

6744 Anazazi

Knorr, Jeff

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

President/JKC Inc General Contractor

11/04/2013

Home Phone: 928-600-3762

1711 N. Turquoise Dr.

Pucciarelli, Alaxandra

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Architect/Loven Contracting Inc

No

Work Phone: 928-774-9040

3528 S. Amanda St.

Wheeler, M. Margo

Flagstaff, AZ  86005

Lecturer/NAU

No

Cell Phone: 760-898-2826

3001 N. Schevene Blvd.

Zimmerman, David

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Historic Preservation Specialist/Arizona 
Department of Transportation

11/04/2013

Cell Phone: 928-380-3057

Staff Representative: Mark Sawyers

As Of: June 24, 2015

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 2 of 2













































  7. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, Deputy City Clerk

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Open Space Commission.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Make one At-Large appointment to a term expiring April 2016.

Executive Summary:
The Open Space Commission consists of the following seven (7) regular members all of whom shall be
appointed by the City Council, except for designee from the Planning and Zoning Commission: four (4)
members from the natural and cultural sciences; one (1) member from the Planning and Zoning
Commission; one (1) member who markets real estate or is a representative from real estate
development; and one (1) public at-large member. All Commission members shall be voting members.
The commission serves as an advisory body on the acquisition, management, use, restoration,
enhancement, protection, and conservation of open space land. There is currently one at-large seat
available. It is important to fill vacancies on Boards and Commissions quickly so as to allow the
Commission to continue meeting on a regular basis.

There are five applications on file for consideration by the Council, they are as follows:

Jim Burton (new applicant)
Bryce Esch (new applicant)
Libby Kalinowski (new applicant)
Andi Rogers (new applicant)
Margo Wheeler (new applicant)

COUNCIL INTERVIEW TEAM: Councilmember Oravits and Vice Mayor Barotz.

Financial Impact:
These are voluntary positions and there is no budgetary impact to the City of Flagstaff.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
There is no Council goal that specifically addresses appointments to Boards and Commissions; however,
boards and commissions do provide input and recommendations based on City Council goals that may
pertain to the board or commission work plan. 
   



   

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
The City Council recently took action to reduce the number of commissioners on the Open Space
Commission from nine members to seven.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Appoint one At-Large Commissioner: By appointing a member at this time, the commission will be at
full membership and able to continue to meet and provide recommendations to the City Council.

2) Table the action to allow for further discussion or expand the list of candidates.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The City's boards, commissions, and committees were created to foster public participation and input
and to encourage Flagstaff citizens to take an active role in city government. 

Community Involvement:
INFORM: The vacancies are posted on the City's website and individual recruitment and mention of the
openings by Board members and City staff has occurred, informing others of these vacancies through
word of mouth. 

Attachments:  Open Space Roster
Open Space Authority
Open Space Applicant Roster
Open Space Applications



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

OPEN SPACES COMMISSION  MEMBERS

TRAINING 
COMPLETED

686 W. Old Territory Trail

Burton, Bryan

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Realtor/United Country Northern Arizona Realty

12/18/2012 04/16 02/19/2015

Cell Phone: 928-556-0556
Term: (1st 12/12-04/13; 04/13-04/16)

REAL ESTATE MEMBER

1715 N.Beaver

Eberly, Carrie

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Program Manager/Diablo Trust

05/06/2014 04/17 02/16/2012

Home Phone: 208-691-8043
Term: (1st 6/11-4/14; 2nd 4/14-4/17))

AT LARGE

1878 N. Mesa Dr.

Gist, Jessica

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Habitat/Research Technician/Arizona Game & 
Fish Department

05/06/2014 04/17 02/16/2012

Cell Phone: 831-521-7916
Term: (1st 6/11-4/14; 2nd 4/14-4/17)

NATURAL & CULTURAL SCIENCES

1200 W. Shullenbarger Dr.

Miller, Richard, Chairman

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Retired

06/05/2012 04/18 03/12/2013

Home Phone: 928-853-6120
Term: (1st 6/12 - 4/15; 2nd 4/15-4/18)

NATURAL & CULTURAL SCIENCES

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

4391 E. Savannah Cir.

Pfeiffer, Tina

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Mortgage Loan Officer/Prime Lending

01/15/2013 12/15 02/16/2012

Cell Phone: 928-600-3143
Term: (1st 9/11-12/12; 2nd 12/12-12/15)

PLANNING AND ZONING REPRESENTATIVE

23 East Judy Street

Wyse, Kristina

Flagstaff, AZ  86005

Business Development Manager/Civil Design & 
Engineering

05/05/2015 04/18 No

Cell Phone: 480-459-1171
Term: (1st 5/15-4/18)

NATURAL & CULTURAL SCIENCES

Z-VACANT, 04/16 No

AT LARGE

Staff Representative: McKenzie Jones

As Of: June 24, 2015

Wednesday, June 24, 2015 Page 2 of 2



CHAPTER 2-20
OPEN SPACES COMMISSION

SECTIONS:
2-20-001-0001    CREATION OF THE COMMISSION:
2-20-001-0002    TERMS OF OFFICE:
2-20-001-0003    DUTIES:
2-20-001-0004    OPEN SPACES LONG RANGE MANAGEMENT PLAN COMPONENTS:
2-20-001-0005    MEETINGS; ATTENDANCE:

2-20-001-0001 CREATION OF THE COMMISSION:

There is hereby created an advisory body to be called the "Open Spaces Commission" ("Commission") 
consisting of the following seven (7) regular members all of whom shall be appointed by the City Council, 
except for designee from the Planning and Zoning Commission: four (4) members from the natural and 
cultural sciences; one (1) member from the Planning and Zoning Commission; one (1) member who 
markets real estate or is a representative from real estate development; and one (1) public at-large 
member. All Commission members shall be voting members. A Chairperson shall be selected by a 
majority vote of those members at a meeting called for that purpose. (Ord. No. 2007-08, Amended 
02/06/2007; Ord. 2014-28, Amended, 11/18/2014)

2-20-001-0002 TERMS OF OFFICE:

Appointments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Parks and Recreation Commission to 
the Open Spaces Commission shall be for no longer than the remaining term of the appointing 
Commission’s designee. Terms of all other appointees shall be for three years except for the first 
appointments creating staggered terms as follows: The City Council shall appoint two members for three 
year (3) terms, two members for two (2) year terms, and two members for one (1) year terms. After the 
initial appointment all terms thereafter will be three (3) year terms.

2-20-001-0003 DUTIES:

A.    It shall be the Commission’s duty to advise the City Council on acquisition, preservation, and 
alternatives for open space land management.

B.    The duties of the Commission shall also include, but not be limited to: Reviewing and advising the 
City Council on the development of an Open Spaces Long Range Management Plan and policies to 
provide broad, long-term direction for planning and decision making for the lands designated as Urban 
Open Space Management Area in the Urban Open Spaces Plan of the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use 
and Transportation Plan.

C.    Advising and assisting the Mayor and City Council on ways to educate and involve the community on 
the value, protection, and stewardship of open space lands.

D.    Advising and assisting the Mayor and City Council on ways to work collaboratively with other 
governmental entities, organizations, and departments to advance and ensure the implementation of the 
Open Spaces Long Range Management Plan and the Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and 
Transportation Plan.



E.    Advising and assisting the Mayor and City Council regarding regional open space issues as well as to 
any regional open spaces coalition that may be formed in the future relative to lands designated as open 
space in the Greater Flagstaff Area Open Spaces and Greenways Plan.

F.    Obtaining public input and participation in various programs such as environmental education and 
interpretation on the use, operation, and management of open space and providing information 
concerning the goals, projects, and operations of the open space program.

2-20-001-0004 OPEN SPACES LONG RANGE MANAGEMENT PLAN COMPONENTS:

A.    The components of the Open Spaces Long Range Management Plan shall include, but not be limited 
to:

1.    Program goals, management decision-making processes, and implementation techniques for 
resource preservation.

2.    Policies to provide the framework for more issue- or site-specific planning and implementation.

3.    Criteria for the acquisition of lands that are consistent with open space goals and policies set 
forth in the Open Spaces Long Range Management Plan.

4.    Plans for the management of the open spaces to achieve the goals of the Open Spaces Long 
Range Management Plan using such studies and data as property inventories, the nature and 
significance of the natural and cultural resources, plant and animal species ecosystems, existing 
uses and conditions, and interactions and connections between natural areas and between 
developed and undeveloped areas.

5.    Developing, identifying, and recommending the use of various methods, such as 
intergovernmental agreements, rights-of-way for access, and grants, to assure protection of critical 
open space lands.

6.    Policies to monitor, maintain, enhance, and restore, where necessary, natural and cultural 
resources, uses, accesses, trails, and facilities.

7.    Public participation, education, and interpretive programs.

2-20-001-0005 MEETINGS; ATTENDANCE:

The Commission shall meet on a quarterly basis, at a minimum, at such times, dates and locations as 
determined by the members, except that the chairperson may call a special meeting with not less than 24 
hours notice. All other rules or procedures shall be established by the members so long as the rules are 
consistent with state law, including the Open Meetings Law, the City charter and this ordinance.

A quorum shall be one more than half of the voting membership of the Commission.

A regular Commission member who is absent for three consecutive regular meetings may be removed 
from the Commission by a vote of the City Council.

(Ord. 2003-03, Enacted, 02/04/03; Ord. No. 2007-08, Amended 02/06/2007)



City of Flagstaff, AZ

NAME APPOINTED TERM EXPIRES

OPEN SPACES COMMISSION  APPLICANTS

TRAINING 
COMPLETED

2466 W. Zepher Ave

Burton, Jim

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Assistant Fire Managment Officer/Kaibab 
National Forest

No

Cell Phone: 480-225-8864

2509 N. Main Street

Esch, Bryce

Flagstaff, AZ  86004

Program Coordinator/Ecological Restoration 
Institute

No

Home Phone: 530-220-4820

3102 W. Ridgeview Dr.

Kalinowski, Libby

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Artist/Self Employed

No

Cell Phone: 928-214-0658

621 W. Beal Rd

Rogers, Andi

Flagstaff, AZ  86001

Senior Program Associate/Southwest Decision 
Resources

No

Work Phone: 928-707-0417

3528 S. Amanda

Wheeler, Margo

Flagstaff, AZ  86005

Lecturer/NAU

No

Home Phone: 928-266-1319

Thursday, June 25, 2015 Page 1 of 2



City of Flagstaff, AZ

Staff Representative: McKenzie Jones

As Of: June 25, 2015

Thursday, June 25, 2015 Page 2 of 2



























  9. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Heather Ainardi, Marketing & PR Manager

Co-Submitter: Heidi Hansen, Economic Vitality Director

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Sole Source Contract:  Sole source advertising contract with Legends
Entertainment District.  (Purchase of the Flagstaff Cool Zone)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the purchase of the Flagstaff Cool Zone with Legends Entertainment District in the amount
of $65,000, as a sole source procurement. 

Executive Summary:
The Flagstaff Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB) is responsible for promoting the city as a year-round
visitor destination. Forty percent of visitors originate from within the state of Arizona so it is a priority of
the CVB to reach them all year. Outdoor signage and experiencial marketing activities in the Legends
Entertainment District are part of an overall marketing initiative to reach this market. The Legends
Entertainment District oversees all outdoor ad placements in this area of downtown Phoenix, specifically
reaching sport event attendees, therefore they are the sole source for this specific placement.

Financial Impact:
The $65,000 for the Flagstaff Cool Zone with Legends Entertainment District has been requested as a
one-time purchase in the Tourism Fund for FY2016. Stakeholder sponsorships will also offset a large
portion of the expenditures.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
Council Goal #9:Foster relationships and maintain economic development commitment to partners.
Regional Plan Goal ED.6: Tourism will continue to provide a year-round revenue source for the
community, while expanding specialized tourist resources and activities.  

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes. Due to the positive feedback and a strong return on investment which the city received the first
year, we propose this marketing installation for a second year in the Legends Entertainment District is
warranted.
  
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
Option A: Approve purchase for the signage asset with Legends Entertainment District.
Option B: Reject the purchase for the signage asset with Legends Entertainment District.

Community Involvement:

Collaborate

Attachments:  Flagstaff Cool Zone Contract
Sole Source Procurement Provision



 

Page 1 of 6 

LEGENDS ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT 

MARKETING PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

 

 This Legends Entertainment District Marketing Partnership Agreement (“Agreement”) is 

entered into as of April 21, 2015, by and between City of Flagstaff Convention and Visitors 

Bureau (“Partner”) and Jefferson Street Signage District, LLC, dba Legends Entertainment 

District (“Legends”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

A. Legends serves as the entity which has the authority to develop, manage, sell, and 

maintain certain signage assets within a specific area of downtown Phoenix, Arizona known as 

the Legends Entertainment District (“District”), as shown on Exhibit A.   

 

B. Partner desires to promote its business within the District. 

 

AGREEMENT: 

 

 1. Term.  The term of this Agreement will begin as of July 1, 2015, and shall end on 

June 30, 2016, unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement (“Term”).   

  

 2. Advertising and Promotion. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, Partner 

will receive: 

 

(A) Static signage located in the “cool zone” area of the Jefferson Street 

Garage as shown on Exhibit B to this Agreement.  Any signage locations with the exception of 

locations 1 through 8 must be pre-approved in writing by Legends. 

 

(B) Eight (8) promotional activation events, the details of which shall be 

mutually agreed upon by Partner and Legends.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Legends agrees 

to provide, space, electricity, and parking for six (6) activators, and $100.00 in “clean-up” credit.  

In the event “clean-up” exceeds $100.00; Partner agrees to pay the amount in excess of $100.00.  

Partner agrees to provide Legends with a certificate of insurance, valid for the duration of the 

Term, no less than ten (10) days prior to the first activation event, which certificate shall 

evidence general liability coverage, proof of workers’ compensation coverage and name the 

Legends and the City of Phoenix as additional insureds.  The coverage amounts of all such 

policies, and any additional insureds shall be as reasonably determined by Legends. 

 

3. Payments. 

 

(A) Amount and Billing.  Partner will pay Legends a sponsorship fee in the 

amount of $65,000.00, net of any agency fees and taxes and charges as set forth in Section 3(B) 

below (“Sponsorship Fee”).  The Sponsorship Fee shall be paid to Legends in one (1) lump sum 

payment on July 1, 2015.  Legends will invoice Partner thirty (30) days prior to all Due Dates. At 

Legends’ option, any invoices remaining unpaid ten (10) days after the invoice date will accrue 

interest at the rate of 1.5% per month. 

 



 

Page 2 of 6 

(B) Taxes.  Any and all taxes and other charges levied, assessed or otherwise 

due (other than income taxes of Legends) in connection with the advertising, promotions, 

signage or other arrangements described herein by any federal, state, or local governmental 

authority will be paid by Partner.  Any such taxes will be charged to Partner annually or on the 

invoices to be submitted to Partner. 

 

4. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including its Recitals, the Terms & 

Conditions, and any Exhibits attached hereto (all of which are incorporated herein by this 

reference), contains the entire agreement and understanding of the parties as to the matters 

contained in this Agreement, and it may not be amended except by a writing signed by all 

parties. There are no oral or written representations, agreements, understandings or 

circumstances which modify any of the provisions hereof. In the event of a conflict between this 

Agreement and any other agreement between the parties including, without limitation, Legends’ 

issued invoices, affidavits, and/or any other documents arising from the advertising elements 

described herein, this Agreement shall control. 

 

5. Duplicates; Counterparts.  This Agreement shall be executed in duplicate, each of 

which may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which, when taken together as a 

whole, shall constitute a single, binding instrument.  Facsimile and electronic copies of a fully 

executed Agreement shall be deemed an original. 

 

  

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]



 

Page 3 of 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the date first above 

written. 

 

 

Partner: City of Flagstaff Convention and Visitors Bureau  

 

 

     By:       

       City Manager  

      

      

 

 Legends:   JEFFERSON STREET SIGNAGE DISTRICT, LLC 

 

 

 

     By:       

     Name:        

      General Manager 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____ 

 

____ 



 

Page 4 of 6 
Partner Initials:    

LEGENDS ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT 

MARKETING PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

 

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

 
1. General Advertising and Promotion Provisions. 

 

(A) Legends Approval, Advertising Guidelines 

and Approval Procedure.  The content of all 

advertising and promotions provided for herein is 

subject to Legends’ approval.  Legends reserves the 

right to refuse to display all or a portion of any 

advertising if Legends reasonably determines that the 

advertising fails to conform substantially with 

standards of quality advertising, conflicts with other 

advertising or agreements of Legends, is in bad taste, 

or is otherwise reasonably objectionable.  Partner 

must submit all proposed advertising that it intends to 

use at least ten (10) calendar days before intended 

use.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the final design 

and placement of all signage contemplated herein 

will be subject to normal governmental approval, 

including but not limited to, approval by the City of 

Phoenix. 

 

(B) Cost of Signage; Changes in Signage.  The 

first production and installation cost of the signage 

will be paid by Partner.  Partner may change the 

content of the signage at its own expense (which 

work shall be done by Legends and billed to Partner, 

subject to Legends’ prior approval as described in 

Section 1(A) of these Terms & Conditions.  Legends 

reserves the right to replace, upgrade or alter any 

signage contained in this Agreement; however, 

regardless of any upgrade or change, Partner will 

continue to receive the equivalent advertising 

exposure provided for in this Agreement.   

 

2. Indemnification. 

 

(A) Partner.  Partner at its own expense will 

defend, indemnify and hold Legends (and its owners, 

partners, members, managers, officials, officers, 

employees and agents) harmless from all third-party 

claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, losses, 

fines, expenses, costs, and damages of every kind and 

description, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 

litigation expenses (collectively, “Claims”), which 

may be brought or made against or incurred by 

Legends, arising out of: (i) the use of any trademark, 

copyright or other intellectual property right arising 

out of, or connected with the signage, advertising or 

promotional materials; or (ii) the accuracy, character, 

form and subject matter of any signage, advertising 

or promotional materials, provided such signage, 

advertising or promotional materials is in a form 

exactly as provided in writing by Partner. 

 

(B) Mutual.  The parties will each indemnify, 

defend and save harmless each other (and their 

respective partners, members, managers, officials, 

officers, employees and agents) from all Claims 

made against or suffered by the other party because 

of or based upon the indemnifying party’s (or its 

officers’, managers’, members’, employees’, agents’, 

independent contractors’ or promoters’) 

misrepresentations, negligence, unlawful act or 

omission, or failure to perform any obligation under 

this Agreement. 

 

(C) Party Obligations.  Each party will give the 

other party prompt written notice of any claim or suit 

coming within the scope of these indemnities.  Upon 

the written request of an indemnitee, the indemnitor 

will assume the defense of any claim, demand or 

action against the indemnitee and will permit the 

indemnitee, at the indemnitee’s expense, to 

participate in the defense of the claim.  Settlement by 

the indemnitee without the indemnitor’s prior written 

consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld, 

will release the indemnitor from the indemnity as to 

the claim, demand or action so settled.  Termination 

of this Agreement will not affect the continuing 

obligations of the parties as indemnitors under this 

Agreement. 

 

 3. Governing Law and Arbitration.  This 

Agreement shall be governed and controlled by the 

substantive laws of the State of Arizona.  Any and all 

disputes (except for a default by Partner for failure to 

timely make payments, which may, at Legends’ 

option, be resolved by a court of competent 

jurisdiction) arising under this Agreement (including 

issues regarding the interpretation of any provision of 

this Agreement and determinations of whether any 

issue arising from or related to this Agreement is 

subject to arbitration) shall be resolved by arbitration 

in accordance with the Commercial Rules of the 

American Arbitration Association. Arbitration 

proceedings shall occur before a single arbitrator and 

take place in Phoenix, Arizona.  The outcome of such 

arbitration proceedings shall be binding on the 

parties.  If a party wishes to seek interim relief, 

whether affirmative or prohibitive, in the form of a 

temporary restraining order,  preliminary injunction 



 

Page 5 of 6 
Partner Initials:    

or other interim equitable relief concerning the 

dispute, including, without limitation, provisional 

remedies, special action relief or stay proceedings in 

connection with special action relief, either before 

commencing or at any point in the arbitration 

proceedings concerning such dispute, such party may 

initiate the appropriate litigation to obtain such relief, 

which may be subject to and controlled by the 

ultimate decision in the arbitration proceedings.  The 

prevailing party in any court or arbitration proceeding 

shall be entitled to recovery of reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs.  

 
4. Default and Remedies. 

 

(A) Default.  If: (i) any party fails to pay any 

fees or other sums when due under this Agreement; 

(ii) any party fails to comply with or perform any of 

the provisions of this Agreement; (iii) Partner 

becomes insolvent; or (iv) a petition is filed by or 

against Partner under any foreign, federal or state 

statute (including, without limitation, Title 11 of the 

United States Code) for the benefit of creditors such 

as debt adjustment, liquidation, winding up, 

dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy, or a 

custodian (as defined in 11 U.S.C. § 101), receiver or 

liquidator takes charge of any of Partner’s  property, 

whether by judicial appointment, agreement or 

operation of law; then such party will be in default of 

this Agreement.  However, if the non-defaulting party 

is not precluded by law from issuing notice of the 

default, the defaulting party will have ten (10) days 

after written notice is given within which to cure the 

default. 

 

(B) Legends’ Remedies.  If, under Section 4(A) 

of these Terms & Conditions, a notice of default is 

not required or if notice is given and a default by 

Partner is not cured within the time provided, then (i) 

Legends will be excused from further performance 

under this Agreement; (ii) Legends may treat this 

Agreement as having been terminated as of the time 

of default; (iii) without further notice and with or 

without terminating this Agreement, Legends may 

remarket Partner's signage and other rights or 

otherwise mitigate damages; (iv) Legends may, 

without further notice or demand, declare any earned 

portion of the entire amount set forth in this 

Agreement that is unpaid (irrespective of the payment 

due date) immediately due and payable in either trade 

value or cash (at Legends’ election); and (v) Legends 

may recover from Partner all losses and damages it 

suffers by reason of a default, including any costs of 

finding a substitute Partner.  In the alternative, at its 

option, Legends may continue this Agreement and 

recover all damages resulting from the default.  

Partner acknowledges that Legends has other 

available advertising and promotional inventory that 

Legends sells to other advertisers.  Partner 

understands that, in the event of a default by Partner, 

Legends may continue to sell other available 

inventory, and shall have no obligation to sell 

Partner’s inventory first. 

 

(C) Partner Remedies.  If, under Section 4(A) of 

these Terms & Conditions, a notice of default is not 

required or if notice is given and a Legends default is 

not cured within the time provided, Partner may: (i) 

treat the Agreement as having been terminated as of 

the time of default and may be excused from further 

performance under this Agreement; or (ii) continue 

this Agreement and recover all damages resulting 

from the default.  In no event shall Legends be liable 

or responsible for any lost income, profits or 

consequential damages of Partner or any person or 

entity. 

 

5. Miscellaneous. 

 

(A) Force Majeure.  In the event Legends is 

unable to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement because of fire, the elements, mob, riot, 

national or local emergency, strikes, lockouts, failure 

of negotiations between broadcast parties, calamity, 

epidemic, war, terrorism, or for any other reason 

outside the control of Legends, at its option Legends 

may provide additional advertising, sponsorship, or 

promotional rights, provide Partner with a refund or 

rebate, or extend the Term to compensate Partner for 

lost rights.  In no event will any such event constitute 

an event of default by Legends which would permit 

Partner to terminate this Agreement pursuant to 

Section 4(A) of these Terms & Conditions or 

otherwise. 

 

(B) Independent Contractors.  The parties are 

independent contractors and are solely responsible 

for the conduct of their respective employees and 

agents in connection with the performance of their 

obligations under this Agreement. 

 

(C) Assignment.  Partner will not assign or 

transfer any of its rights or obligations under this 

Agreement without the prior written consent of 

Legends. This Agreement inures to the benefit of, 

and is binding upon, the parties and their respective 

permitted successors and assigns.  Legends may 

make a collateral assignment of its rights under this 

Agreement to a financial institution (“Lender”), and 

Partner consents to the grant by Legends to Lender of 

a first priority security interest in the interest of 

Legends under this Agreement.  Upon foreclosure by 



 

Page 6 of 6 
Partner Initials:    

Lender on Legends’ interest in this Agreement, 

Partner consents to the transfer of Legends’ right, 

title and interest in this Agreement (and related rights 

and interest) to Lender (or other party designated by 

Lender).   

 

(D) Waiver.  The delay or failure of a party to 

assert or exercise any right, remedy or privilege 

under this Agreement or to insist on strict and prompt 

performance of the covenants and agreements herein, 

does not constitute a waiver of any right, remedy, or 

failure to perform, nor will it be construed as a 

waiver or relinquishment of the party's right to later 

enforce the same according to its rights under this 

Agreement if there is a continuous r later default. No 

waiver is effective unless in writing, and then only in 

the specific instance for which it was given. 

 

(E) Notice. Any notices, consents or approval 

required or permitted under this Agreement will be 

properly given if in writing, whether personally 

delivered, delivered by facsimile machine or 

forwarded by mail or overnight courier, postage 

prepaid, addressed to the following addresses (or 

such other addresses as may from time to time be 

designated in writing by each party): 

 

To Legends:   

Jefferson Street Signage District, LLC 

Attn:  Jason Rowley 

201 East Jefferson Street 

Phoenix, Arizona 85004 

Facsimile No. (602) 379-2462 

 

and:   

Jefferson Street Signage District, LLC 

 Attn:  Blake Edwards  

 401 East Jefferson Street 

 Phoenix, Arizona  85004 

 Facsimile No. (602) 462-6309  

 

With a copy to:  

Jefferson Street Signage District, LLC 

 Attention:  Cullen Maxey 

 401 E. Jefferson Street 

 Phoenix, Arizona 85004 

Facsimile No. (602) 462-6599 

and: 

 Jefferson Street Signage District, LLC 

 Attn:  General Counsel 

 201 East Jefferson Street 

 Phoenix, Arizona  85004 

 Facsimile No. (602) 379-2462 

 

To Partner:   

City of Flagstaff Convention and Visitors 

Bureau 

Attn:  Heather Ainardi 

211 West Aspen Avenue 

Flagstaff, AZ  86001 

Facsimile No.  (928) 556-1305 

 

(F) Time.  Time is of the essence in this 

Agreement. 

 

(G) Reservation of Rights.  Legends reserves all 

rights hereunder which are not expressly granted to 

Partner. 

 

(H) Authority.  Each individual executing this 

Agreement on behalf of, or as representative for, a 

person, partnership, corporation or other entity 

represents that he or she is duly authorized to execute 

and deliver this Agreement on behalf of such person 

or entity and that this Agreement is binding upon 

such person or entity in accordance with its terms. 

 

(I) Interpretation.  The parties acknowledge and 

confirm that each of their respective attorneys has 

participated jointly in the review and revision of this 

Agreement and that it has not been written solely by 

counsel for one party.  The parties hereto therefore 

stipulate and agree that the rule of construction to the 

effect that any ambiguities are to be or may be 

resolved against the drafting party shall not be 

employed in the interpretation of this Agreement to 

favor any party against another. 

 

(J) Severability.  If any provision of this 

Agreement is determined to be illegal or 

unenforceable by an arbitrator, court or government 

agency of competent jurisdiction, this Agreement 

shall remain valid as though such provision had not 

been contained herein. 

 

Attn:  Nona Lee 

401 East Jefferson Street 

Phoenix, Arizona 85004 

Facsimile No. (602) 462-6588 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit A 

 

(Location of Advertising and Promotion Elements) 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit B 

(Cool Zone Elements) 
 

 
 

 

 



 

The Purchasing Section has researched and reviewed sole source justification and we are 

recommending a “Sole Source” procurement under Article 18 “Sole Source” of the 

City’s Procurement Code Manual as follows: 

 

A contract may be awarded for a material, service or construction item 
without competition if the director determines in writing that there is 
only one source for the required material, service or construction item. 
The director may require the submission of cost or pricing data in 
connection with an award under this section. Sole source procurement 
shall be avoided, except when no reasonable alternative sources exist. 
A written determination of the basis for the sole source procurement 
shall be included in the contract file.  
 
 

 

   



  10. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Scott Mansfield, Police Lieutenant

Co-Submitter: Stacey Brechler-Knaggs, Grants Manager

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and approval of Grant Agreement: To the U.S. Department of Justice, through the
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission, for the  Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant funds in the
amount of $291,660.00 for the Northern Arizona Street Crimes Task Force (aka METRO unit). 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the acceptance of the grant from the U.S. Department of Justice, through the Arizona
Criminal Justice Commission, Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant funds in the amount of
$291,660.00 for FY2016.

Executive Summary:
Approval of this grant in the amount of $291,660 will provide the continued operation of the Northern
Arizona Street Crimes and Narcotic Task Force (aka METRO) to protect life, property, and the rights of
the individuals by participating agencies through sustained, coordinated, multi-agency effort to reduce
drug and gang related crimes.  This will be accomplished by vigorous investigations, apprehensions,
prosecution, and community participation.

Financial Impact:
The grant award is in the amount of $218,745.00 (75%) with required matching funds of $72,915.00
(25%) for a total grant award of $291,660. The METRO board has authorized matching funds from the
account set up through the federal Act known as RICO (Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt
Organizations), based on money and assets seized by various law enforcement agencies. The RICO
account has provided matching funds in the past years and the Board has agreed to provide the above
matching funds for this year's grant. This amount will include all City costs, estimated in kind and
administrative costs if above normal departmental allocation. The grant award will be the 29th funding
cycle (FY 2016) for the METRO unit and is budgeted in Fiscal Year 2016.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
Effective governance. 

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes, the Flagstaff City Council has approved the acceptance of this grant money for the past twenty-eight
years.



Options and Alternatives:
Approve the acceptance of the grant or decline the acceptance of the grant.

Background/History:
This federal funding source has been applied for and received over the past 28 years.  This is the 29th
cycle of this grant in which the Flagstaff City Council has approved the previous 28 cycles.

Key Considerations:
This grant and the investigative officers this funds are supported by nearly every law enforcement entity
in Coconino County including the Coconino County Sheriff’s Office (CCSO), the Flagstaff Police
Department (FPD), Northern Arizona University (NAU) Police, federal agencies of ATF (Alcohol, Tobacco
and Firearms), FBI (Federal Bureau of Investigation), DEA (Drug Enforcement Agency) and the
Department of Public Safety (DPS). This grant provides specialized police investigations to all the
communities located within Coconino County.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Officers in the METRO unit continuously provide support to numerous community groups including
Citizens Against Substance Abuse, local schools, and Citizens Academy programs, etc. in the form of
training and educational presentations, drug awareness, and proactive investigations.

Community Involvement:
To work directly with the public through the process to ensure that public issues and concerns are
consistently understood and considered.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
If approved, the grant would allow for the acceptance of $291,660.00 in federal funds that will provide
proactive enforcement that would otherwise not be available to our citizens.

Attachments:  Grant Agreement FY16 METRO #DC-16-002



ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
DRUG, GANG, AND VIOLENT CRIME CONTROL 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number 16.738 

 
This Grant Agreement is made this 3rd day of June, 2015, by and between the ARIZONA CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE COMMISSION hereinafter called “COMMISSION” and CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, through CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF hereinafter called “GRANTEE”.  The COMMISSION enters into this Agreement pursuant to 
its authority under the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-2405 (B)(6), and having satisfied itself as to the 
qualification of GRANTEE; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed between the parties as follows: 

 
1. This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2015 and terminate on June 30, 2016.  This 

Agreement expires at the end of the award period unless prior written approval for an 
extension has been obtained from the COMMISSION.  A request for an extension must be 
received by the COMMISSION sixty (60) days prior to the end of the award period.  The 
COMMISSION in its sole discretion may approve an extension that furthers the goals and 
objectives of the program and shall determine the length of any extension. 

 
2. GRANTEE agrees that grant funds will be used in accordance with applicable program rules, 

guidelines and special conditions. 
 

3. The COMMISSION will monitor GRANTEE performance against program goals and performance 
standards and those outlined in the grant application.  Substandard performance as 
determined by the COMMISSION will constitute noncompliance with this Agreement.  If the 
COMMISSION finds noncompliance, the GRANTEE will receive a written notice which identifies 
the area of noncompliance, and the appropriate corrective action to be taken.  If the GRANTEE 
does not respond within thirty (30) calendar days to this notice, and does not provide sufficient 
information concerning the steps which are being taken to correct the problem, the 
COMMISSION may suspend funding, permanently terminate this Agreement or revoke the 
grant.  
 

4. Any deviation or failure to comply with the purpose and/or conditions of this Agreement 
without prior written COMMISSION approval may constitute sufficient reason for the 
COMMISSION to terminate this Agreement, revoke the grant, require the return of all unspent 
funds, perform an audit of expended funds, and require the return of any previously spent 
funds which are deemed to have been spent in violation of the purpose or conditions of this 
grant. 

 
5. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by the Executive 

Director or by persons authorized by the Executive Director on behalf of the COMMISSION and 
GRANTEE.  Any notice given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
considered to have been given when actually received by the following addressee or their 
agents or employees: 

A. If to the COMMISSION: 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 230 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
Attn: Program Manager 

 
 
  

 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 2 
 

B. If to the GRANTEE: 
City of Flagstaff 

211 W Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 

Attn: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck 
 

For grant awards above $100,000, GRANTEE may make budget adjustments of up to ten 
(10) percent of the total grant within any approved budget category excluding equipment.  
Written approval from the COMMISSION in advance is required if GRANTEE wishes to make 
adjustments or reprogram in excess of ten (10) percent or if GRANTEE wishes to purchase 

equipment not previously approved.  
 
For grant awards less than $100,000, the GRANTEE may make budget adjustments within 
approved categories excluding equipment as long as there are no changes to the purpose or 
scope of the project.  If GRANTEE wishes to purchase equipment not previously approved, 
written approval from the COMMISSION in advance is required.   
 

APPROVED LINE ITEM PROGRAM BUDGET 
Personnel: 
              Salaries 
              Fringe Benefits (for salaries/overtime)* 
              Overtime 
Professional & Outside/Consultant & Contractual Services 
Travel In-State 
Travel Out-of-State 
Confidential Funds 
Operating Expenses: 
             Supplies 
             Registration/Training 
             Other  
Equipment  
             Capital 
             Noncapital 
TOTAL 

 
$134,641.00 
$80,267.00 
NOT APPROVED 
$76,752.00 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
 
NOT APPROVED 
NOT APPROVED 
$291,660.00 

Positions Funded: 
Flagstaff PD Sergeant (1.00 FTE), Flagstaff PD Investigator (1.00 FTE), Coconino County SO 
Investigator (0.90 FTE)  
Equipment Type: NOT APPROVED 

*Reference the ACJC Grant Management Manual for definition of approved Fringe Benefit 
 

6. The total to be paid by the COMMISSION under this Agreement shall not exceed $116,664.00 
in federal funds awarded to the COMMISSION by the U.S. Department of Justice (USDOJ), 
Office of Justice Programs (OJP) and $102,080.00 in State Funds.  If this grant has a matching 
requirement GRANTEE understands that other federal grant funds cannot be used as a match 
for this grant. The matching amount for this award is $72,916.00.   

 
7. Every payment obligation of the COMMISSION under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 

availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may be 
terminated by the COMMISSION.  No liability shall accrue to the COMMISSION in the event this 
provision is exercised, and the COMMISSION shall not be obligated or liable for any future 
payments or for any damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 
 

8. GRANTEE agrees that if it currently has an open award of federal funds or if it receives an 
award of federal funds other than this award, and those award funds have been, are being or 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 3 
 

are to be used, in whole or in part, for one or more of the identical cost items for which funds 
are being provided under this award, GRANTEE will promptly notify, in writing, the 
COMMISSION, and if so requested by the COMMISSION, seek a budget modification or 
change-of-project-scope grant adjustment notice (GAN) to eliminate any inappropriate 
duplication of funding.  
 

9. GRANTEE agrees to retain all books, account reports, files and other records, (paper and/or 
electronic) relating to this Agreement and the performance of this Agreement for no less than 
five (5) years from the last financial report submitted to the COMMISSION. All such documents 
shall be subject to inspection and audit at reasonable times, including such records of any 
subgrantee, contractor, or subcontractor. GRANTEE also understands and agrees that USDOJ 
and the United States General Accounting Office (USGAO) are authorized to interview any 
officer or employee of the GRANTEE (or of any subgrantee, contractor, or subcontractor) 
regarding transactions related to this award. 
 

10. GRANTEE agrees that activities funded under this award will be closely coordinated with 
related activities supported with Office of Justice Programs (OJP), State, local or tribal funds.  
Grant funds may only be used for the purposes in the GRANTEE’s approved application.  
GRANTEE shall not undertake any work or activities not described in the grant application, 
including staff, equipment, or other goods or services without prior approval from the 
COMMISSION.  
 

11. GRANTEE agrees to track, account for, and report on all funds (including specific outcomes and 
benefits) separately from all other funds for the same or similar purposes or programs.  
 
Accordingly, the accounting systems of GRANTEE and all subgrantees must ensure that funds 
from this award are not commingled with funds from any other source.   

 
12. GRANTEE agrees to abide by Federal and State laws and provide accounting, auditing and 

monitoring procedures to safeguard grant funds and keep such records to assure proper fiscal 
controls, management and the efficient disbursement of grant funds.   

 
13. For the purpose of this grant, a capital expenditure is $5,000 or above.  If GRANTEE’S policy 

defines a capital expenditure as less than $5,000, GRANTEE will use its own policy. 
 

14. GRANTEE agrees to maintain property records for equipment purchased with grant funds and 
perform a physical inventory and reconciliation with property records at least every two years 
or more frequently based on GRANTEE policy.  GRANTEE agrees that funds will not be used for 
the construction of new facilities. 
 

15. GRANTEE agrees to follow equipment disposition policies outlined in OMB Circulars A-102 or 2 
CFR, Part 215 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements as 
codified in (1) 28 CFR, Part 66 or (2) 28 CFR, Part 70 when the equipment is no longer needed 
for the grant program.   
Link: OMB Circulars http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/ 

 
16. GRANTEE agrees that all salaried personnel (including subgrantee personnel) whose activities 

are to be charged to the award will maintain timesheets or certifications to document hours 
worked for activities related to this award and non-award related activities. GRANTEE agrees to 
keep time and attendance sheets for hourly employees signed by the employee and 
supervisory official having firsthand knowledge of the work performed by the grant-funded 
employees.  
 

17. GRANTEE agrees that it will submit financial and activity reports to the COMMISSION in a 
format provided by the COMMISSION, documenting the activities supported by these grant 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 4 
 

funds and providing an assessment of the impact of these activities which may include 
documentation of project milestones. In the event reports are not received on or before the 
indicated date(s), funding may be suspended until such time as delinquent report(s) are 
received.   
 

18. These reports are to be submitted according to the following schedule(s): 
 

ACTIVITY REPORTS   
Report Period:  Due Date: 
July 1 to September 30 
October 1 to December 31 
January 1 to March 31 
April 1 to June 30 

 October 15 
January 15 
April 15 
July 15 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS       
Report Period: Due Date: Report Period: Due Date: 
July 1 – July 31 August 25 January 1 – January 31 February 25 
August 1 – August 31 September 25 February 1 – February 29 March 25 
September 1 – September 30 October 25 March 1 – March 31 April 25 
October 1 – October 31 November 25 April 1 – April 30 May 25 
November 1 – November 30 December 25 May 1 – May 31 June 25 
December 1 – December 31 January 25 June 1 – June 30 July 25 

Additional reporting requirements may be required for GRANTEES who are considered high risk. 
 

19. GRANTEE understands that financial reports are required as an accounting of expenditures for 
either reimbursement or COMMISSION-approved advance payments.  

  
20. The final request for reimbursement of grant funds must be received by the COMMISSION no 

later than sixty (60) days after the last day of the award period.    
 

21. All goods and services must be received or have reasonable expectations thereof and placed in 
service by GRANTEE by the expiration of this award.   

 
22. GRANTEE agrees that all encumbered funds must be expended and that goods and services 

must be paid by GRANTEE within sixty (60) days of the expiration of this award.  
 

23. GRANTEE agrees to remit all unexpended grant funds to the COMMISSION within thirty (30) 
days of written request from the COMMISSION.   

 
24. GRANTEE agrees to account for interest earned on federal grant funds and shall remit interest 

earned in excess of the allowable amount as indicated in the Office of Justice Programs 
Financial Guide.  
Link: OJP Financial Guide http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/ 

 
25. GRANTEE agrees to obtain written COMMISSION approval for all sole source procurements in 

excess of $150,000. 
 

26. GRANTEE agrees to obtain written COMMISSION approval prior to the expenditure of grant 
funds for consultant fees in excess of $650 per day.  

 
27. GRANTEE agrees to not use federal grant funds to pay cash compensation (salary plus 

bonuses) to any employee paid by the grant at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum 
annual salary payable to a member of the federal government’s Senior Executive Service (SES) 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 5 
 

at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System for that year. (An award 
recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in excess of this 
compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.) Unless otherwise noted in the grant 
solicitation. 
 

28. GRANTEE agrees not to use grant funds for food and/or beverage unless explicitly approved in 
writing by the COMMISSION. 

 
29. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies and guidance 

(including specific cost limits, prior approvals and reporting requirements, where applicable) 
governing the use of grant funds for expenses related to conferences, meetings, trainings, and 
other events, including the provision of food and/or beverages at such events, and costs of 
attendance at such events unless explicitly approved in writing by the COMMISSION. 
Information on pertinent laws, regulations, policies, and guidance is available in the OJP 
Financial Guide Conference Cost Chapter. 

 
30. No funds shall be used to supplant federal, state, county or local funds that would otherwise 

be made available for such purposes.  Supplanting means the deliberate reduction of state or 
local funds because of the existence of any grant funds. 

 
31. GRANTEE assigns to the COMMISSION any claim for overcharges resulting from antitrust 

violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services applied by third 
parties to GRANTEE in exchange for grant funds provided under this Agreement. 

 
32. The parties agree to use arbitration in the event of disputes in accordance with the provisions 

of A.R.S. § 12-1501-12-1518. The laws of the State of Arizona apply to questions arising under 
this Agreement and any litigation regarding this Agreement must be maintained in Arizona 
courts, except as pertaining to disputes which are subject to arbitration.  

 
33. GRANTEE understands that grant funds may not be released until all delinquent reports and 

reversion of funds from prior grants are submitted to the COMMISSION.  
 

34. GRANTEE agrees that grant funds are not to be expended for any indirect costs that may be 
incurred by GRANTEE for administering these funds unless explicitly approved in writing by the 
COMMISSION.  This may include, but is not limited to, costs for services such as accounting, 
payroll, data processing, purchasing, personnel, and building use which may have been 
incurred by the GRANTEE. 

 
35. Each party (as “Indemnitor”) agrees to  defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party 

(as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses, 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Claims”) arising 
out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent 
that such Claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee are caused by 
the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indeminitor, its officers, 
officials, agents, employees, or volunteers.  If the GRANTEE is a State agency, board, 
commission, or university of the State of Arizona, this paragraph shall not apply. 
 

36. Should GRANTEE utilize a contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) the indemnification clause 
between GRANTEE and its contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) shall include the following: 
 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify,  and hold harmless the GRANTEE and the State of Arizona, 
and any jurisdiction or agency issuing any permits for any work arising out of this Agreement, 
and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and 
employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, 
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 6 
 

costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for 
bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible 
property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the contractor or any of the directors, officers, agents, or employees or 
subcontractors of such contractor.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of 
or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such 
contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or 
court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all 
instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by such contractor from and against any and all claims. It is 
agreed that such contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and 
judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.  Additionally on all applicable 
insurance policies, contractor and its subcontractors shall name the State of Arizona, and its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and 
employees as an additional insured and also include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the 
State. Insurance requirements for any contractor used by GRANTEE are incorporated herein by 
this reference and attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “A”. 
 
 

37. GRANTEE agrees to notify the COMMISSION within ten (10) days in the event that the project 
official is replaced during the award period. 
 

38. No rights or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned by GRANTEE without prior written 
approval of the COMMISSION. 
 

39. GRANTEE will comply with the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, 
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and provide the COMMISSION with the audit 
report and any findings within 90 days of receipt of such finding. If the report contains no 
findings, the GRANTEE must provide notification that the audit was completed. 
Link: OMB Circulars: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/ 
 

40. GRANTEE certifies that it will comply with OMB Circulars A-102 and 2 CFR, Part 215 Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements as codified in (1) 28 CFR, 
Part 66.32 or (2) 28 CFR, Part 70.34 and Cost Principles (1) 2 CFR, Part 225, (2) 2 CFR, Part 
220 or (3) 2 CFR, Part 230, the OJP Financial Guide and the most current version of the ACJC 
Grant Management Reference Manual.  
Link: OMB Circulars http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_attach/ 
 OJP Financial guide: http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/ 
 ACJC Grant Management Reference Manual: 
http://www.azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/pubs/home/021104_Manual_GrantReferenceManual.pdf 
 

41. GRANTEE agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either directly or indirectly, in support of 
any contract or sub award to either the Association of Community Organizations for Reform 
Now (ACORN) or its subsidiaries, without the express written approval of the Office of Justice 
Programs through the COMMISSION.  
 

42. GRANTEE understands and agrees that misuse of award funds may result in a range of 
penalties, including suspension of current and future funds, suspension or debarment from 
federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under an award, and civil and/or criminal 
penalties. 

 
43. GRANTEE agrees not to do business with any individual, agency, company or corporation listed 

in the Excluded Parties Listing Service.   
Link: System for Award Management https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/ 
 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 7 
 

44. GRANTEE agrees to ensure that, no later than the due date of the GRANTEE’s first financial 
report after the award is made, GRANTEE and any subgrantees have a valid DUNS profile and 
active registration with the System for Award Management (SAM) database.  

 
45. GRANTEE certifies that it presently has no financial interest and shall not acquire any financial 

interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of services required under this Agreement. 
 

46. GRANTEE understands and agrees that any training or training materials developed or 
delivered with funding provided under this award must adhere to the OJP Training Guide 
Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees. 
Link: OJP Training Guide Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees  
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/funding/ojptrainingguidingprinciples.htm 
 

47. GRANTEE agrees to cooperate and participate with any and all assessments, evaluation efforts 
or information and data collection requests, and acknowledges that the federal or state grantor 
agency has the right to obtain, reproduce, publish or use data provided under this award and 
may authorize others to receive and use such information. 

 
48. GRANTEE shall provide the COMMISSION with a copy of all interim and final reports and 

proposed publications (including those prepared for conferences and other presentations) 
resulting from this Agreement.  Submission of such materials must be prior to or simultaneous 
with their public release. 
 

49. GRANTEE agrees that any publications (written, visual, or sound) excluding press releases and 
newsletters, whether published at the GRANTEE’S or COMMISSION’S expense, shall contain the 
following statement: 

 
“This was supported by Award No. 2013-DJ-BX-0049 and 2014-DJ-BX-1020 awarded by the 
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.  The 
opinions findings, and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this 
publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the 
views of the Department of Justice.” 
 

50. GRANTEE agrees to comply with the non-discrimination requirements of the Omnibus Crime 
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, 42 USC §3789d(c)(1); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, 42 USC §2000d; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 USC § 794; Subtitle A, 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 USC § 12132; Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972, 20 USC § 1681; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 USC § 
6102; the Department of Justice implementing regulations, 28 CFR pt. 42, subpts. C, D, E, G, 
and I, 28 CFR pt. 35, and 28 CFR pt. 54; all applicable state laws of A.R.S. § 41-1463; and 
Executive Order 2009-9.  The above-referenced federal laws prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, religion, sex, disability, and national origin (including limited English 
proficiency) in the delivery of services and employment practices, and prohibit discrimination 
on the basis of age in the delivery of services.  If in the three years prior to the date of the 
grant award a Federal or State Court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding 
of discrimination after a due process hearing against GRANTEE, GRANTEE will forward a copy 
of the findings to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs and the COMMISSION. 

  
“Applicants must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access to the 
services under this program(s).  National origin discrimination includes discrimination on the 
basis of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI and the Safe 
Street Act, the applicant is required to take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to programs.  Meaningful access may entail providing language assistance 
services, including oral and written translation when necessary.” 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 8 
 

Link: Limited English Proficiency A Federal Interagency Website   http://www.LEP.gov 
 

51. GRANTEE agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 28 CFR Part 38, the 
Department of Justice regulation governing "Equal Treatment for Faith Based Organizations" 
(the "Equal Treatment Regulation"). The Equal Treatment Regulation provides in part that 
Department of Justice financial assistance may not be used to fund any inherently religious 
activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization.  Recipients of Department of 
Justice financial assistance may still engage in inherently religious activities, but such activities 
must be separate in time or place from the Department of Justice funded program, and 
participation in such activities by individuals receiving services from GRANTEE must be 
voluntary.  The Equal Treatment Regulation also makes clear that organizations participating in 
programs receiving financial assistance from the Department of Justice are not permitted to 
discriminate in the provision of services on the basis of a beneficiary’s religion.  
Notwithstanding any other special condition of this award, faith-based organizations may, in 
some circumstances, consider religion as a basis for employment.  
Link:  http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/about/ocr/equal_fbo.htm 

 
52. GRANTEE should be mindful that the misuse of arrest or conviction records to screen either 

applicants for employment or employees for retention or promotion may have a disparate 
impact based on race or national origin, resulting in unlawful employment discrimination. As of 
June 2013 OJP has issued an advisory that grantees should consult local counsel in reviewing 
their employment practices. If warranted, grantees should also incorporate an analysis of the 
use of arrest and conviction records in their Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP). See 
Advisory for Recipients of Financial Assistance from the U.S. Department of Justice on the U.S. 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s Enforcement Guidance: Consideration of Arrest 
and Conviction Records in Employment Decisions Under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
(June 2013), available at http://www.ojp.gov/about/ocr/pdfs/UseofConviction_Advisory.pdf.  
 

53. GRANTEE assures that it will comply with all state and federal laws regarding privacy during 
the course of the award.  All information relating to clients is to be treated with confidentiality 
in accordance with 42 USC section 3789g or 42 USC 14132(b)(3) that are applicable to the 
collection, disclosure, use and revelation of data information.  GRANTEE further agrees to 
submit a privacy Certificate that is in accordance with requirements of 28 CFR Part 22 if 
applicable to the program. 

 
54. GRANTEE agrees to formulate and keep on file an EEOP (if GRANTEE is required pursuant to 

28 CFR 42.302).  GRANTEE certifies that they have forwarded to the Office for Civil Rights, 
Office of Justice Programs the EEOP, or certifications that they have prepared and have on file 
an EEOP, or that they are exempt from EEOP requirements.  Failure to comply may result in 
suspension of grant funds.  Copies of all submissions such as certifications to or 
correspondence with the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs regarding this 
requirement must be provided to the COMMISSION by GRANTEE. In the event a federal or 
state court or federal or state administrative agency makes an adverse finding of discrimination 
against GRANTEE after a due process hearing, on the ground of race, color, religion, national 
origin, or sex, GRANTEE will forward a copy of the findings to the Office for Civil Rights, Office 
of Justice Programs and the COMMISSION.  
 

55. GRANTEE agrees to participate in any required civil rights related training to ensure compliance 
with all federal and state civil rights laws. GRANTEE will inform the COMMISSION of the 
position responsible for civil rights compliance and will inform the COMMISSION of change in 
personnel responsible for civil rights compliance within ten days. 
Link: http://azcjc.gov/ACJC.Web/Grants/civilrights/default.aspx  

 
56. To support public safety and justice information sharing, GRANTEE, if a governmental 

subdivision, shall use the National Information Exchange Model (NIEM) specifications and 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 9 
 

guidelines for this grant.  GRANTEE shall publish and make available without restrictions all 
schemas generated as a result of this grant to the component registry as specified in the 
guidelines.  
Link:  https://www.niem.gov/aboutniem/grant-funding/Pages/implementation-guide.aspx 
 

57. In order to promote information sharing and enable interoperability among disparate systems 
across the justice and public safety community, OJP requires the grantee to comply with DOJ’s 
Global Justice Information Sharing Initiative (DOJ’s Global) guidelines and recommendations for 
this particular grant. Grantee shall conform to the Global Standards Package (GSP) and all 
constituent elements, where applicable, as described at:  

       Link: http://www.it.ojp.gov/gsp_grantcondition.  
 

      Grantee shall document planned approaches to information sharing and describe compliance   
      to the GSP and appropriate privacy policy that protects shared information, or provide detailed  
      justification for why an alternative approach is recommended. 

 
58. To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives for law enforcement 

information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between jurisdictions, such 
systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the communication 
backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless GRANTEE can demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the COMMISSION that this requirement would not be cost beneficial or would 
impair the functionality of an existing or proposed IT system. 
 

59. If GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, the GRANTEE should, to the extent 
possible and practical; share criminal justice information with other authorized criminal justice 
agencies.  The process control number (PCN) shall be used in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-
1750 when sharing data with other criminal justice agencies as electronic data systems are 
developed or improved.  

 
60. If GRANTEE is a state agency and the award is for the development of information technology 

projects for more than $25,000, GRANTEE must complete a Project Investment Justification 
(PIJ) and submit the justification to the Arizona Department of Administration (ADOA), with a 
copy to the COMMISSION.  GRANTEE agrees to submit required project status reports to ADOA 
by the due dates and submit copies to the COMMISSION.  

 
If GRANTEE is not a state agency and the award is for the development of information 
technology projects, GRANTEE will follow local technology policies and guidelines. 

 
61. GRANTEE must promptly refer to the COMMISSION any credible evidence that a principal, 

employee, agent, contractor, subgrantee, or other person has either 1) submitted a false claim 
for grant funds under the False Claims Act; or 2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws 
pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving grant 
funds.  The COMMISSION shall forward the referral to the Department of Justice, Office of the 
Inspector General. 

 
62. The COMMISSION encourages GRANTEE to establish workplace safety policies and conduct 

education, awareness and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, 
including adopting and enforcing policies banning employees from text messaging while driving 
any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this grant. Executive Order 13513, 
“Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,” 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 
2009). 
 

63. GRANTEE certifies to comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented in 
28 CFR Part 83, Subpart F, for grantees, as defined in 28 CFR, Part 83 Sections 83.620 and 
83.650.  



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 10 
 

 
64. GRANTEE agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, Immigration and Naturalization 

Form (I-9).  This form is to be used by recipients to verify that persons are eligible to work in 
the United States. Additionally GRANTEE ensures compliance with A.R.S. § 41-4401 federal 
immigration laws by state employers and contractors. 

 
65. GRANTEE acknowledges that immigration laws require them to register and participate with 

the E-Verify program (employment verification program administered by the United States 
Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration or any successor 
program) as they both employ one or more employees in this state.  GRANTEE warrants that 
they have registered with and participate with E-Verify. If the GRANTOR later determines that 
the GRANTEE has not complied with E-Verify, it will notify the non-compliant GRANTEE by 
certified mail of the determination and of the right to appeal the determination. 

 
66. GRANTEE certifies that no federal funds will be paid, by or on behalf of, to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 
making of any Federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and for the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, 
loan or cooperative agreement.  If any funds other than Federal funds are paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal award, grant loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the GRANTEE will complete and submit to the COMMISSION Standard 
Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions. 

 
67. GRANTEE understands and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either directly or 

indirectly, in support of the enactment, repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation 
or policy at any level of government, without the express prior written approval of the 
Commission.  

 
68. GRANTEE agrees that no funds provided, or personnel employed under this Agreement shall be 

in any way, or to any extent, engaged in conduct of political activities in violation of USC Title 
5, Part II, Chapter 15, section 1502. 
 

69. GRANTEE understands and agrees that award funds may not be used to discriminate against 
or denigrate the religious or moral beliefs of students who participate in programs for which 
financial assistance is provided from those funds, or of the parents or legal guardians of such 
students.  

 
70. GRANTEE understands and agrees that- (a) no award funds may be used to maintain or 

establish a computer network unless such network blocks the viewing, downloading and 
exchanging or pornography, and (b) nothing in subsection (a) limits the use of funds necessary 
for any Federal, State, tribal or local law enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out 
criminal investigations, prosecution, or adjudication activities.  

 
71. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations 

applicable to the development and implementation of activities to be funded under this award.  
Additional requirements may be found in Grant Agreement Continuation Sheet.  
  

72. GRANTEE agrees that all income generated as a direct result of this award shall be deemed 
program income. All program income must be accounted for and used for the purpose under 
the conditions applicable for the use of funds under this award, including the effective edition 
of the OJP Financial Guide and, as applicable, either (1) 28 CFR part 66 or (2) 28 CFR part 70 
and OMB Circular A-102 & 2 CFR 215. 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 11 
 

 
73. This Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to the provision of A.R.S. § 38-511. This 

Agreement may also be cancelled at the COMMISSION’S discretion if not returned with 
authorized signatures to the COMMISSION within 90 days of commencement of the award. 

 
74. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall be in full force and effect. 
 

75. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all Special Condition(s) included with this Agreement on the 
Grant Agreement Continuation Sheet. 
 

76. GRANTEE understands that grant funds may not be released until GRANTEE is compliant with 
all requirements of grant agreement. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 12 
 

 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

DRUG, GANG, AND VIOLENT CRIME CONTROL 
GRANT AGREEMENT CONTINUATION SHEET 

SPECIAL CONDITION(S)   
 

 
1. GRANTEE must verify Agency Point of Contact (APOC), Financial Point of Contact (FPOC), 

Program Point of Contact (PPOC), and Authorized Official contact information in the Grants 
Management System (GMS), including telephone number and e-mail address. If any 
information is incorrect or has changed, a Grant Adjustment Notice (GAN) must be 
submitted via the GMS to document changes. In addition the FPOC and PPOC must be 
assigned by the APOC prior to payments being made. All Grants 
 

2. GRANTEE agrees that within 120 days of award, for any law enforcement task force funded 
with these funds, the task force commander, agency executive, task force officers and other 
task force members of equivalent rant, will complete required online (internet-based) task 
force training to be provided free of charge through BJA’s Center for Task Force Integrity 
and Leadership (www.ctfli.org). GRANTEE will compile and maintain a task force personnel 
roster and course completion certificates.  
 

3. GRANTEE agrees to notify the COMMISSION within ten (10) days in the event that a task 
force member is replaced during the award period. 
 

4. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the ACJC Subgrantee Self-Assessment Questionnaire 
within 45 days of the start date of this award.  
 

5. GRANTEE agrees that within 45 days of award, for any agency that receives income as a 
result of grant-funded activities, it will complete the ACJC Program Income Worksheet. 
 

6. GRANTEE agrees to the completion of the Benchmarks Worksheet within 45 days of award. 
 

7. GRANTEE assures if they are a state agency that the State Information Technology Point of 
Contact receive written notification regarding any information technology project funded by 
this grant.  GRANTEE agrees to keep on file documentation showing that it has met this 
requirement.  
 

8. GRANTEE agrees and understands that funded activities may require the preparation of an 
Environmental Assessment (EA) as defined by the Council of Environmental Quality’s 
Regulations for implementing the Procedural Provisions of the National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA), found at 40 CFR Part 1500. 
 

9. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all federal, state and local environmental laws and 
regulations applicable to the development and implementation of activities to be funded 
under this award.  The GRANTEE agrees and understands that complying with NEPA may 
require the preparation of an Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact 
Statement, as directed by BJA.  The GRANTEE further understands and agrees to 
requirements for implementation of a Mitigation Plan, as detailed at 
http://www.ojp.usdog.gov/BJA/resource/nepa.html for programs relating to 
methamphetamine laboratory operations.  
 

10. GRANTEE agrees that any information technology system developed or supported by funds 
will comply with 28 CFR Part 23, Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies, if OJP 
determines this regulation be applicable. Should OJP determine 28 CFR Part 23 to be 
applicable, OJP may at its discretion, perform audits of the system, as per 28 CFR 23.20(g).  



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 13 
 

Should any violation of 28 CFR Part 23 occur, GRANTEE may be fined as per 42 USC 
3789g(c)-(d). GRANTEE may not satisfy such a fine with federal funds.   
 

11. GRANTEE agrees that no JAG funds may be expended on unmanned aircraft, unmanned 
aircraft systems, or aerial vehicles (US, UAS, or UAV) without prior express written approval 
from Commission.  
 

12. Grant funds shall be used to reduce drug crimes in support of the Arizona 2012-2015 Drug, 
Gang, and Violent Crime Control State Strategy. 
 

 
 

Authorized Official Initials:_______
 
 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 14 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed the Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 

 
FOR GRANTEE: 

 
 

 
Mayor or City Manager     Date 

 
 

Printed Name and Title 
 

 
Approved as to form and authority to enter into Agreement: 

 
 

 
Legal counsel for GRANTEE       Date 

 
 

 
Printed Name and Title 

 
 

Statutory or other legal authority to enter into Agreement: 
 
 

 
Appropriate A.R.S., ordinance, or charter reference 

 
 

FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION: 
 
 

 
John A. Blackburn Jr., Executive Director     Date 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revised 11/13/13 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 15 
 

 

ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
Insurance Requirements 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Insurance Requirements for Governmental Parties to a Grant Agreement: 

None. 
 
Insurance Requirements for Any Contractors Used by a Party to the Grant Agreement: 

(Note: this applies only to Contractors used by a governmental entity, not to the governmental entity 
itself.) The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements and in no way limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in the Intergovernmental Agreement.  The State of Arizona in no way warrants that 
the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the governmental entity or Contractor from 
liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this Contract by the Contractor, his 
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Contractor and the governmental entity are 
free to purchase additional insurance.   
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits 

of liability not less than those stated below. 
 
 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, and broad form contractual 
liability. 
 General Aggregate $2,000,000 
 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 Fire Legal Liability      $50,000 
 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, to 
include the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, 
commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees as 
additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 

(Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the Contractor with their own list 
of persons to be insured.)  

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required by this 
written agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, universities, officers, officials, agents, and 
employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor. 

 
   

 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 16 
 

Exhibit “A” Page 2 

2. Business Automobile Liability 
  Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned 

vehicles used in the performance of this Contract. 

Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed, as required by this written agreement, to include 
the State of Arizona, and its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 
universities, officers, officials, agents, and employees as additional insureds 
with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf 
of, the Contractor involving automobiles owned, hired and/or non-owned by 
the Contractor. 

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement as required by this 
written agreement in favor of  the State of Arizona, and its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, universities,  officers, officials, agents, and 
employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor. 

 (Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the Contractor with their own list 
of persons to be insured.)  

 
3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $1,000,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $1,000,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit                                                   $1,000,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement, as required by this 
written agreement, in favor of the State of Arizona, and its departments, 
agencies, boards, commissions, universities, its officers, officials, agents, and 
employees for losses arising from work performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor. 

 
b.   
 This requirement shall not apply to each contractor or subcontractor that is 

exempt under A.R.S. § 23-901, and when such contractor or subcontractor 
executes the appropriate waiver form (Sole Proprietor or Independent 
Contractor). 

 
Additional Insurance Requirements: 
 
The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, as required by this written agreement, the following 
provisions: 
 
The Contractor's policies shall stipulate that the insurance afforded the Contractor shall be primary and 
that any insurance carried by the Department, its agents, officials, employees or the State of Arizona 
shall be excess and not contributory insurance, as provided by A.R.S. § 41-621 (E). 
 
Insurance provided by the Contractor shall not limit the Contractor’s liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: 
For each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract, the Contractor must 
provide to the State of Arizona, within two (2) business days of receipt, a notice if a policy is suspended, 



Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control ACJC Grant Number DC-16-002 Page 17 
 

voided, or cancelled for any reason. Such notice shall be mailed, emailed, hand delivered or sent by 
facsimile transmission to (Enter Contracting Agency Representative’s Name, Address, and Fax Number 
Here). 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: 
Contractor’s insurance shall be placed with companies licensed in the State of Arizona or hold approved 
non-admitted status on the Arizona Department of Insurance List of Qualified Unauthorized Insurers. 
Insurers shall have an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than A- VII. The State of Arizona in no way warrants 
that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential 
insurer insolvency. 
 
Verification of Coverage: 
Contractor shall furnish the State of Arizona with certificates of insurance (valid ACORD form or 
equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) as required by this Contract. An authorized representative 
of the insurer shall sign the certificates. 
 
All certificates and endorsements, as required by this written agreement, are to be received and 
approved by the State of Arizona before work commences. Each insurance policy required by this 
Contract must be in effect at, or prior to, commencement of work under this Contract. Failure to maintain 
the insurance policies as required by this Contract, or to provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach 
of contract. 
 
All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to the Department. The State of Arizona 
project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance. The State 
of Arizona reserves the right to require complete copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract 
at any time. 
 
Subcontractors: 
Contractor’s certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or Contractor shall 
be responsible for ensuring and/or verifying that all subcontractors have valid and collectable insurance 
as evidenced by the certificates of insurance and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for 
subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum Insurance Requirements identified above. The 
Department reserves the right to require, at any time throughout the life of the Contract, proof from the 
Contractor that its subcontractors have the required coverage. 
 
Approval and Modifications: 
The Contracting Agency, in consultation with State Risk, reserves the right to review or make 
modifications to the insurance limits, required coverages, or endorsements throughout the life of this 
contract, as deemed necessary. Such action will not require a formal Contract amendment but may be 
made by administrative action. 
 
Exceptions: 
In the event the Contractor or subcontractor(s) is/are a public entity, then the Insurance Requirements 
shall not apply. Such public entity shall provide a certificate of self-insurance. If the Contractor or 
subcontractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, commission, or university, none of the above 
shall apply.



  10. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Patrick Staskey, Fire Marshal

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-15:  An ordinance of the Flagstaff City Council
adopting amendments to the Flagstaff City Code, Title 5, Fire Code, to be consistent with Arizona
Revised Statutes. (Fireworks Regulations)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 At the Council Meeting of July 7, 2015
1) Read  Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the first time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the first time (if approved above)
At the Council Meeting of July 21, 2015
3) Read Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-15 by title only for the final time (if approved above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-15

Executive Summary:
The state law that legalizes the sale and use of consumer fireworks (ARS 36-1601) has been updated .
This ordinance amends City Code to be consistent with the Arizona Revised Statutes. The recent
revisions to A.R.S. limits the ability of municipalities to regulate use and sale. Sale of consumer
fireworks is legal two times per calendar year:  May 20 through July 6 and December 10 through January
3. Use of consumer fireworks is legal two times per calendar year:  June 24 through July 6 and
December 24 through January 3.

Municipalities do have the ability to suspend sale and use if local federal forest restrictions are at Stage 1
or higher. In addition, municipalities may prohibit use of permissible consumer fireworks on public
property and within one hundred (100) feet of any hospital or public school.
The amendment also limits the ability of municipalities to require warning signs at sale locations.

Financial Impact:
   No cost to the City

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services and infrastructure systems in an efficient
manner to serve all population areas and demographics.
  
   



   

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
The fireworks provisions of the City Code were previously amended by Ordinance No. 2010-38, adopted
by City Council on November 2, 2010.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Amend the City Code as recommended.
2) Not amend the City Code.  If the City Code is not amended, the Code provisions regarding consumer
fireworks will be inconsistent with current state law.

Community Involvement:
Inform

Attachments:  Ord. 2015-15



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE TITLE 5, FIRE CODE, BY 
AMENDING SECTION 5-02-002, REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF 
CONSUMER FIREWORKS, THEREOF 

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the sale and use of fireworks within the City of Flagstaff is an important issue of 
concern related to public health and safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Arizona State Legislature recently enacted H.B. 2008, which amends 
A.R.S. §36-1601 pertaining to the sale and use of permissible consumer fireworks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Flagstaff wishes to amend its City Code to be consistent with 
A.R.S. §36-1601, as amended.  
 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1: That Flagstaff City Code Title 5, Fire Code, is hereby amended as follows:  
 
Sections: 
 
5-02-002-0001 Definitions 
5-02-002-0002 Consumer fireworks prohibited; exceptions 
5-02-002-0003 Sale of Fireworks 
5-02-002-0004 Posting of signs by persons engaged in the sale of fireworks; civil 

penalty 
5-02-002-0005 Authority to enforce violations of this article; means of enforcement 
5-02-002-0006 Liability for emergency responses related to use of fireworks; 

definitions 
5-02-002-0007 Penalty 
 
5-02-002-0001  Definitions 
 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Consumer firework means those fireworks defined by Arizona Revised Statutes Section 36-
1601. 

Display firework means those fireworks defined by Arizona Revised Statutes Section 36-1601. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15  Page 2 
  

 

Fireworks means any combustible or explosive composition, substance or combination of 
substances, or any article prepared for the purpose of producing a visible or audible effect by 
combustion, explosion, deflagration or detonation, that is a consumer firework, display firework 
or permissible consumer firework as defined by Arizona Revised Statute Section 36-1601. 

Novelty items means federally deregulated novelty items that are known as snappers, snap 
caps, party poppers, glow worms, snakes, toy smoke devices, sparklers, and certain toys as 
defined in Arizona Revised Statute 36-1601. 

Permissible consumer fireworks means those fireworks as defined by Arizona Revised Statute 
Section 36-1601 that may be sold within the City even where the use of those items has 
been prohibited. 

Supervised public display means a monitored performance of display fireworks open to the 
public and authorized by permit by the Fire Department. 

5-02-002-0002  Consumer fireworks prohibited; exceptions 
 
A.     The use, discharge or ignition of PERMISSIBLE consumer fireworks within the City of 

Flagstaff is prohibited, EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION. 
 
B.     THE USE OF PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS IS PROHIBITED WITHIN 

THE CITY LIMITS OF FLAGSTAFF EXCEPT FROM JUNE 24 THROUGH JULY 6 
AND DECEMBER 24 THROUGH JANUARY 3 EACH YEAR.  THE USE OF 
PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS IS ALSO PROHIBITED WHEN A 
FEDERAL OR STATE AGENCY IMPLEMENTS STAGE ONE OR HIGHER FIRE 
RESTRICTIONS IN ANY PORTION OF COCONINO COUNTY IN EFFECT FOR ANY 
ONE OR MORE OF THE DAYS LISTED IN THIS SUBSECTION.  

 
C. THE USE OF PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS IS PROHIBITED WITHIN A 

ONE HUNDRED (100) FOOT RADIUS OF THE BORDER OF PRESERVATION 
LANDS GREATER THAN FIFTEEN THOUSAND (15,000) ACRES THAT ARE 
OWNED BY THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF. 

 
D. THE USE OF PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS IS PROHIBITED ON PUBLIC 

PROPERTY AND WITHIN ONE HUNDRED (100) FEET OF ANY HOSPITAL OR 
PUBLIC SCHOOL.    

 
B.E. Nothing in this section or article shall be construed to prohibit the use, discharge or 

ignition of novelty items or the occurrence of a supervised public display of fireworks. 
 
C.F.   Permits may be granted by the Fire Department for conducting a properly supervised 

public display of fireworks. Every such SUPERVISED public display of fireworks shall be 
of such character and so located, discharged or fired, only after proper inspection and in 
a manner that does not endanger persons, animals, or property. A permit shall not be 
issued, and may be revoked, during time periods of High Fire Danger warnings. The 
Fire Department has authority to impose conditions on any permits granted. .  NO 
SUCH PERMIT SHALL BE ISSUED UNLESS REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE 
FIRE CHIEF WHO HAS AUTHORITY TO AND MAY IMPOSE REASONABLE 
CONDITIONS ON ANY PERMITS GRANTED. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15  Page 3 
  

 

D.G.   Failure to comply with any permit requirements issued by the Fire Department is a 
criminal offense constituting a class three misdemeanor. 

 
E. H.   Fireworks may not be combined, altered or manipulated in any way outside of the 

intended use that, in the opinion of the Fire Department, increases the potential for fire 
damage or personal injury. 

5-02-002-0003  Sale of Fireworks 
 
A.     No person shall sell or permit or authorize the sale of permissible consumer fireworks to 

a person who is under sixteen years of age. 
 
B.     No person shall sell or permit or authorize the sale of permissible consumer fireworks in 

conflict with state law. 
 
C.     THE SALE OF PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS IS PROHIBITED WITHIN 

THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN EXCEPT FROM MAY 20 THROUGH JULY 
6 AND DECEMBER 10 THROUGH JANUARY 3 EACH YEAR.  THE SALE OF 
PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS IS ALSO PROHIBITED WHEN A 
FEDERAL OR STATE AGENCY IMPLEMENTS STAGE ONE OR HIGHER FIRE 
RESTRICTIONS IN ANY PORTION OF COCONINO COUNTY IN EFFECT FOR ANY 
ONE OR MORE OF THE DAYS LISTED IN THIS SUBSECTION. 

 
C.D.   No person shall furnish permissible consumer fireworks to a person who is under sixteen 

years of age. 
 
D.E.   No person who is under sixteen years of age shall possess permissible consumer 

fireworks. 
 
E. F.   Permits and fees shall be required for the construction, erection, or operation of a 

business that sells consumer fireworks. 
 
5-02-002-0004  Posting of signs by persons engaged in the sale of consumer 

fireworks; civil penalty 
 
A. Prior to the sale of permissible consumer fireworks, every person engaged in such sales 

shall prominently display signs indicating the following: THAT ARE EIGHT AND ONE 
HALF INCHES BY ELEVEN INCHES IN SIZE, THAT ARE ON CARDSTOCK PAPER 
IN LANDSCAPE ORIENTATION AND THAT CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING 
LANGUAGE ON A CONTRASTING BACKGROUND: 

 
STATE OF ARIZONA 

CONSUMER FIREWORKS REGULATIONS 
ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES SECTION 36-1601, ET AL. 

 
THE USE OF PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS 

AS DEFINED UNDER STATE LAW IS ALLOWED: 
 

JUNE 24 - JULY 6 AND DECEMBER 24 - JANUARY 3 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15  Page 4 
  

 

THE SALE OF PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS 
AS DEFINED UNDER STATE LAW IS ALLOWED: 

 
MAY 20 - JULY 6 AND DECEMBER 10 - JANUARY 3 

 
ALL OTHER FIREWORKS ARE PROHIBITED, EXCEPT AS AUTHORIZED 
BY LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT PERMIT. THE SALE AND USE OF 
NOVELTIES KNOWN AS SNAPPERS (POP-ITS), PARTY POPPERS, GLOW 
WORMS, SNAKES, TOY SMOKE DEVICES AND SPARKLERS ARE 
PERMITTED AT ALL TIMES. PERMISSIBLE CONSUMER FIREWORKS 
MAY NOT BE SOLD TO PERSONS UNDER SIXTEEN YEARS OF AGE. 
 
CHECK WITH YOUR LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR ADDITIONAL 
REGULATIONS AND DATES BEFORE USING. 

 
 

1. The use of fireworks, except novelty items as defined by City Code, 
including permissible consumer fireworks is prohibited.   
 

2. Consumer fireworks authorized for sale under state law may not be sold to 
persons under the age of 16. 

 
B.     Signs required under this section shall be placed at each cash register and in 

each area where consumer fireworks are displayed for sale. 

C.     The Fire Department shall develop regulations concerning the size and color of 
the required signs and shall develop a model sign. The required sign regulations 
and model sign shall be posted on the City’s website and filed with the City 
Clerk’s office. 

D.     Any person engaged in the sale of consumer fireworks shall provide a written 
notice to each individual who purchases consumer fireworks. Such notice shall 
inform the purchaser that the use, discharge, or ignition of consumer fireworks 
within the City of Flagstaff is prohibited. The notice shall also inform the 
purchaser of the key requirements and prohibitions contained in this ordinance. 
The Fire Department shall develop regulations concerning the size and content of 
the required notice and shall develop a model notice. 

E.    Any person engaged in the sale of consumer fireworks shall require each 
purchaser of consumer fireworks to sign a registry indicating the name, address 
and age of the purchaser. 

FB.     Failure to comply with subparts A, B, D and E of this section is a criminal offense 
constituting a class three misdemeanor. 

5-02-002-0005  Authority to enforce violations of this article; means of enforcement 
 
A.     A City police officer, or the City attorney may issue criminal complaints to enforce this 

article. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15  Page 5 
  

 

B.     Any person authorized pursuant to this section to issue a civil complaint may also issue 
a notice of violation specifying actions to be taken and the time in which they are to be 
taken to avoid issuance of a civil or criminal complaint. 

 
C.     A City fire official may issue Fire Code or permit violations to enforce this article. 
 
5-02-002-0006  Liability for emergency responses related to use of fireworks; 

 definitions 
 
A.     A person who uses, discharges or ignites permissible consumer fireworks, fireworks or 

anything that is designed or intended to rise into the air and explode or to detonate in the 
air or to fly above the ground, is liable for the expenses of any emergency response that 
is required by such use, discharge or ignition. The fact that a person is convicted or 
found responsible for a violation(s) of this article is prima facie evidence of liability under 
this section. 

B.     The expenses of an emergency response are a charge against the person liable for 
those expenses pursuant to subpart A of this section. The charge constitutes a debt of 
that person and may be collected proportionately by the public agencies, for-profit 
entities or not-for-profit entities that incurred the expenses. The person’s liability for the 
expense of an emergency response shall be the amount set forth in existing City 
ordinances for a single incident. The liability imposed under this section is in addition to 
and not in limitation of any other liability that may be imposed. 

C.     For the purposes of this section: 

1.     "Expenses of an emergency response" means reasonable costs directly incurred 
by public agencies, for-profit entities or not-for-profit entities that make an 
appropriate emergency response to an incident. 

 
2.     "Reasonable costs" includes the costs of providing police, fire fighting, rescue 

and emergency medical services at the scene of an incident and the salaries of 
the persons who respond to the incident. 

 
5-02-002-0007  Penalty 
 
The penalty for violating any prohibition or requirement imposed by this article is a class three 
misdemeanor unless another penalty is specifically provided for. 

SECTION 2: That the City Clerk be authorized to correct typographical and grammatical errors, 
as well as errors of wording and punctuation, as necessary; and that the City Clerk be 
authorized to make formatting changes needed for purposes of clarity and form, if required, to 
be consistent with the Flagstaff City Code. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Flagstaff this 21st day of July, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15  Page 6 
  

 

 
ATTEST: 
 
  
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 



  10. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Brandi Suda, Finance Manager

Co-Submitter: Rick Tadder, Finance Director

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-11:  An ordinance levying upon the assessed valuation of the property
within the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, subject to taxation a certain sum upon each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of valuation
sufficient to raise the amount estimated to be required in the Annual Budget, less the amount estimated to be received from
other sources of revenue; providing funds for various bond redemptions, for the purpose of paying interest upon bonded
indebtedness and providing funds for general municipal expenses, all for the Fiscal Year ending the 30th day of June, 2016. 
(Property Tax Levy for FY 15-16)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Read Ordinance No. 2015-11 by title only for the final time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-11 by title only ( if approved above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-11

Executive Summary:
Arizona Revised Statutes Section 42-17104 requires that an Ordinance to adopt property tax levies be passed after the
adoption of the final budget.  The final budget is anticipated to be adopted on June 16, 2015. 

Financial Impact:
The City of Flagstaff is proposing a flat primary property levy on existing properties for the FY2015-2016 base levy of
$5,561,740 plus new construction levy of $65,343 for a total levy of $5,627,083.  The primary property tax rate to support this
levy is $0.8234 per $100 of assessed valuation.

The City of Flagstaff proposing a flat tax rate for secondary property taxes for FY2015-2016 for a total levy of $5,728,437.  The
proposed secondary property tax rate is $0.8366 per $100 of assessed valuation. 

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
Invest in our employees and implement retention and attraction strategies
Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services and infrastructure systems in an efficient and effective manner
to serve all population areas and demographics
As well as impacts many other Council goals

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
December Budget Retreat on December 9 & 10, 2014
Mini Budget Advance on January  22 & 28, 2015
February Budget Advance  on February 11 &12, 2015
Council Budget Advance on April 21 & 22, 2015
Tentative Budget Adoption on June 2, 2015
Final Budget Adoption on June 16, 2015
Public Hearing & first read of this ordinance on June 16, 2015

Options and Alternatives:
Adopt the primary and secondary property tax rates at the proposed amounts,
Adopt the primary property levy up to the maximum statutory levy; adopt the secondary property tax rate at something
greater than proposed above.  Increasing above the proposed amount will trigger Truth in Taxation requirements.
Adopt the primary and secondary property tax rates at something less than that shown above.

   



   

Background/History:
Both the State Constitution and State law specify a property tax levy limitation system.  This system consists of two levies, a
limited levy known as the primary property tax levy and an unlimited levy referred to as the secondary property tax levy.  The
primary levy may be imposed for all purposes, while the secondary levy in cities and towns may only be used to retire the
principal and interest or redemption charges on general obligation bonded indebtedness.

The adoption of the property tax levy is the final step in the entire budget approval process.

Key Considerations:
The key dates for budget and property tax levy adoption have been determined and have been followed throughout this
process.  The County adopts the property tax levy as proposed by the City on or about August 1, 2015.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
The City has budgeted a total of $5,527,083 in FY2015-2016 primary property tax, an approximate 1.7% increase over the
FY2014-2015 budget. This increase is due to new construction. Primary property tax funds any general purpose use of the city
government.  The budgeted amount is less than the levy as the City is allowing for approximately 2% in bad debt.

Statutorily, the maximum allowable primary property levy for FY2015-2016 is $6,091,109. The City can capture this additional
levy in future budget years if Council so directs.

The City has budgeted a total of $5,728,437 in FY2015-2016 secondary property tax, an approximate 2.1% increase over the
FY2014-2015 budget.  The increase is directly related to the increased assessed valuation and new construction.   Secondary
property tax funds general obligation debt and debt is issued to manage within the levy.

Five years historical data is shown below: 

Property Tax Rates FY 2011-2012 FY 2012-2013 FY 2013-2014 FY 2014-2015 FY 2015-2016
Proposed

Primary $ 0.6917 0.7131 0.8429 0.8418 0.8234
Secondary 0.8366 0.8366 0.8366 0.8366 0.8366
Total $ 1.5283 1.5497 1.6795 1.6784 1.6600

Primary property taxes account for 10% of the General Fund revenues budgeted for FY2015-2016.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Primary property taxes support a number of City services including public safety, parks and recreation, other public works
services, and general administrative and management functions within the city.

Secondary property taxes support the debt service payment on numerous city capital projects including: Aquaplex, Fire
Stations, Open Space, numerous street/utility projects, Forest Restoration and the future Core Services Facility as well as many
others.

Community Involvement:
Inform & Involve: Budget legal schedules were published in the June 4, 2015 and June 11, 2015 Arizona Daily Sun to allow for
additional community review.  In addition, the legal and other budget schedules were made available at City Hall, at both
Flagstaff Public Libraries, and on the official city website. A public hearing on June 16, 2015 for both the final budget adoption
and the property tax levy is open for public comment and allows citizens to provide input.

Attachments:  2015-11 Property Tax Ordinance



 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-11 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING UPON THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION A CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) 
OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE 
REQUIRED IN THE ANNUAL BUDGET, LESS THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE 
RECEIVED FROM OTHER SOURCES OF REVENUE; PROVIDING FUNDS FOR 
VARIOUS BOND REDEMPTIONS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING INTEREST 
UPON BONDED INDEBTEDNESS AND PROVIDING FUNDS FOR GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL EXPENSES, ALL FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY 
OF JUNE, 2016  

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, by the provisions of State law, the ordinance levying taxes for fiscal year 2015-
2016 is required to be finally adopted not later than the third Monday in August; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Coconino is the assessing and collecting authority for the City of 
Flagstaff. 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  There is hereby levied on each one hundred dollars ($100.00) of the assessed 
value of all property, both real and personal within the corporate limits of the City of Flagstaff, 
except such property as may be by law exempt from taxation, a primary property tax rate of 
0.8234 for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June, 2016.  If this tax rate exceeds the 
maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Coconino is hereby 
authorized to reduce the levy to the maximum allowable by law after providing notice to the City. 
 
SECTION 2.  In addition to the rate set in Section 1 hereof, there is hereby levied on each one 
hundred dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of all property, both real and personal within 
the corporate limits of the City of Flagstaff, except such property as may be by law exempt from 
taxation, a secondary property tax rate of 0.8366 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
SECTION 3.  Failure by the county officials of Coconino County, Arizona, to properly return the 
delinquent list, any irregularity in assessments or omissions in the same, or any irregularity in 
any proceedings shall not invalidate such proceedings or invalidate any title conveyed by any 
tax deed; failure or neglect of any officer or officers to timely perform any of the duties assigned 
to him or to them shall not invalidate any proceedings or any deed or sale pursuant thereto, the 
validity of the assessment or levy of taxes or of the judgment of sale by which the collection of 
the same may be enforced shall not affect the lien of the City of Flagstaff upon such property for 
the delinquent taxes unpaid thereon; overcharge as to part of the taxes or of costs shall not 
invalidate any proceedings for the collection of taxes or the foreclosure of the lien thereon or a 
sale of the property under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto shall be valid as if 
performed by officers de jure. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-11    PAGE 2 
 
 

  
 
 
 
SECTION 4.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of this ordinance to 
the County Assessor and the Board of Supervisors of the County of Coconino, Arizona. 
 
SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  The tax levies imposed by this Ordinance shall take effect August 
6, 2015. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Flagstaff this    day of  
    , 2015. 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 



  10. D.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Shannon Anderson, Human Resources Manager

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointment and Approval of Agreement: City Manager.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Appoint and approve the agreement for Josh Copley as the City Manager effective September 10,
2015 for the City of Flagstaff.

Executive Summary:
The past City Manager, Kevin Burke, resigned from his position effective January 9, 2015.  The term for
the Acting City Manager expires on September 9, 2015.  This appointment will begin the first day of the
vacant position, September 10, 2015.

Financial Impact:
The City Manager salary and benefits are currently budgeted.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
The City Manager position is needed to continue movement on the following City Council goals:
1) Invest in our employees and implement retention and attraction strategies
2) Ensure Flagstaff has a long-term water supply for current and future needs
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics
4) Explore and adopt policies to lower the costs associated with housing to the end user
5) Develop and implement guiding principles that address public safety service levels through
appropriate staffing levels
6) Relieve traffic congestion throughout Flagstaff
7) Address key issues and processes related to the implementation of the Regional Plan
8) Improve effectiveness of notification, communication, and engagement with residents, neighborhoods
and businesses and about City services, programs, policies, projects and developments
9) Foster relationships and maintain economic development commitment to partners
10) Decrease the number of working poor
11) Ensure that we are as prepared as possible for extreme weather events

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No.

Options and Alternatives:



The City Council may consider other terms to be included and execute an updated agreement.

Community Involvement:
Inform.

Attachments:  Agreement



 

 Page 1 of 6  
 
 
4335272.1  

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES  
 

 This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is made and entered into in the City of 
Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, by and between the City of Flagstaff (the “City”), an Arizona 
municipal corporation, and Joshua Copley (“Copley”) this tenth day of September, 2015. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 The City and Copley enter into an Agreement for Services, under which Copley agrees to 
serve as the City Manager for the City of Flagstaff. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this 
Agreement, the City and Copley agree as follows: 

1. EMPLOYMENT AND SERVICES  
 
The City agrees to employ Copley as City Manager of the City of Flagstaff, and Copley agrees to 
serve as the City Manager in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth below. Copley shall 
perform the duties set forth in Article III, Section 3 of the Charter of the City of Flagstaff (“City 
Charter”), a copy of which is designated Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated herein, and such 
other duties as the City Council and Copley may, from time to time, agree.  

2. TERM 
 
2.1 The term of  this Agreement shall be for eighteen (18) months commencing on September 
10, 2015, and concluding on April 10, 2017, subject to continuation or termination as set forth 
below. Except as provided in Section 14 hereof, Copley agrees not to accept other employment 
during his employment with the City. 
 
2.2 Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the City 
to terminate Copley’s services any time, subject to the provisions set forth in Sections 10 and 11 
of this Agreement and Article III of the City Charter. Likewise, nothing in this Agreement shall 
prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with Copley’s right to resign at any time from his position 
with the City, subject to the provisions set forth in Section 10 of this Agreement and Article III 
of the Charter. 
 
2.3 In the event that neither the City nor Copley provides written notice to the other at least six 
(6) weeks prior to the termination date as hereinabove provided, or any subsequent termination 
date arising from a prior extension of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be extended on the 
same terms and conditions as herein provided for an additional period of one (1) year unless 
either party hereto gives at least six (6) weeks written notice prior to the termination date of the 
initial  eighteen (18) month term or any subsequent one-year term arising from a prior extension 
of this Agreement, to the other that the noticing party does not wish to extend this Agreement for 
any additional one year term. 



 

 Page 2 of 6  
 
 
4335272.1  

3. SALARY 
 
The City shall pay Copley for his services under this Agreement an annual base salary of One 
Hundred Eighty Thousand and no/100 dollars ($180,000.00) subject to withholdings, payable in 
installments at the same time as other City employees are paid. The City may review Employee’s 
base salary at any time, and may, in its discretion, change such base salary as City deems 
appropriate, provided, however, that Employee’s base salary under this Agreement shall not be 
less than One Hundred Eighty Thousand and no/100 dollars ($180,000.00).  The Employee will 
also receive increases in pay as provided to other management employees. 
 

4. AUTOMOBILE ALLOWANCE 
 
Copley shall receive an automobile allowance in the amount of Three Hundred Fifty and no/100 
dollars ($350.00) per month. In addition, Copley shall have the right to use a rental vehicle or his 
own vehicle in accordance with the City of Flagstaff Travel Policy.  

5. VACATION AND SICK LEAVE 
 
Copley shall accrue vacation at the rate reflecting ten to fourteen (10 – 14) years of public 
service, which accrual rate is twenty-one (21) days per year. Copley shall accrue sick leave at the 
rate of twelve (12) days per year.  

6. HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE 
 
6.1 The City shall provide family health and dental care insurance coverage to Copley available 
to and at the same cost as paid by its other management employees. 
 
6.2 The City shall enroll Copley in the life insurance program available to its other management 
employees and shall pay the premium cost. 

7. RETIREMENT 
 
The City shall continue paying the contribution for Copley in the Arizona State Retirement 
System in the same manner as it does with its other management employees. 
 

8. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
The City shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Copley against any tort, professional 
liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of an 
alleged act or omission occurring in the lawful performance of Copley’s duties as City Manager. 



 

 Page 3 of 6  
 
 
4335272.1  

9. BONDING 
 
The City shall bear the full cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of Copley under any law 
or ordinance. 

10. SUSPENSION, TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 
 
10.1 As authorized by Article III of the City Charter, the City may suspend or terminate Copley 
from the position of City Manager during the term of this Agreement, but only pursuant to the 
terms of Article III of the City Charter and Sections 10 and 11 of this Agreement. 
 
10.2 The City may terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article III of the City Charter without 
incurring further obligation under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the following 
events: 
 

(1)  Copley’s material breach of this Agreement; 
 

(2)  Copley’s conviction or arrest for a felony or crime involving moral turpitude; 
 
(3)  Copley’s willfully or habitually neglects the duties he is required to perform under 

the terms of this Agreement, demonstrates behavior substantially incompatible with 
the goals, objectives, or interests of the City, or commits such acts of dishonesty, 
fraud, misrepresentation, or any acts of moral turpitude as would materially adversely 
affect the effective performance of the City Manager’s duties. 

 
(4) A vote pursuant to Article III of the City Charter to not renew, remove or terminate 

Copley as City Manager, or a resignation pursuant to Section 10.4 of this Agreement, 
where the effective date of Copley’s termination falls on or within 90 days of the 
termination date of the initial eighteen (18) month term of this Agreement, or any 
subsequent one-year term arising from a prior extension of this Agreement. 

 
10.3  In the event Copley is terminated for reasons other than those delineated in Section 10.2 of 
this Agreement, the City agrees to pay Copley a lump sum cash payment equal to six (6) months 
aggregate salary and provide employee and family health insurance benefits to Copley for an 
additional six (6) months beyond the term of this Agreement.   
 
10.4 In the event that Copley resigns following a request, whether formal or informal, by at least 
five (5) members of the City Council that he resign, then, in that event, Copley may at his option 
deem himself to be “terminated” at the date of such request to resign, within the meaning and 
context of this Agreement.   
 
10.5 In the event that Copley voluntarily resigns his position with the City before expiration of 
the term of employment as provided above, Copley shall give the City at least six (6) weeks prior 
notice thereof, unless the parties otherwise agree; and the City shall not then be obligated to 
provide severance pay and extended health benefits to Copley. 



 

 Page 4 of 6  
 
 
4335272.1  

11. DISABILITY 
 
If Copley is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to perform his duties because of 
sickness, accident, injury, mental incapacity or health for a period of six (6) successive months 
beyond any accrued sick leave, the City shall have the option to terminate this Agreement, 
subject to the severance pay requirements of Section 10. 

12. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 
12.1 The City Council shall review and evaluate Copley’s performance at least annually.  The 
City Council shall provide adequate opportunity for Copley to discuss his evaluation with the 
City Council. The City Council shall conclude Copley’s review and evaluation no later than 
September 30th of each year.  Copley’s review and evaluation shall be in accordance with 
specific criteria developed jointly by the City Council and Copley. 
 
12.2 The City Council and Copley shall define goals and performance objectives annually, 
which they determine necessary for the proper operation of the City of Flagstaff and in 
attainment of the City Council’s written policy objectives.    

13. HOURS OF WORK 
 
Copley shall devote full time to his duties as City Manager, except as otherwise specified in 
Section 14 below. 

14. OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES 
 
Copley shall spend no more than ten (10) hours per week in teaching, counseling or other non-
City connected business without the prior approval of the City Council. 

15. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 
 

15.1 The City Council, in consultation with Copley, shall fix any other terms and conditions of 
employment as it may determine to be desirable, from time to time, relating to Copley’s 
performance, provided that such terms and conditions are not inconsistent with or in conflict 
with the provisions of this Agreement, the Flagstaff City Code or any other law. 

 
15.2 All provisions of the City Charter, City Code, and City regulations and policies relating to 
vacation and sick leave, retirement and pension system contributions, holidays, and other fringe 
benefits and working conditions as they now exist or hereafter may be amended shall also apply 
to Copley as they would to other employees of the City, in additional to the benefits enumerated 
specifically as herein provided. 
 



 

 Page 5 of 6  
 
 
4335272.1  

16. NOTICE PROVISIONS 
 
Any notice concerning this Agreement must be in writing delivered personally or sent by certified 
or registered mail as follows: 
 

To the City: 
 

To Copley: 

Human Resources Director 
City of Flagstaff 
211 W. Aspen 
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001 

Joshua Copley 
City of Flagstaff 
211 W. Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 
 

17. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
17.1 Headings.  The section headings contained herein are for convenience in reference and are not 
intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
17.2 Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws 
of the State of Arizona, and venue for any legal action hereunder shall be the Coconino County 
Superior Court in Flagstaff, Arizona.   
 
17.3 Attorney’s Fees.  If suit or action is initiated in connection with any controversy arising out of 
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover in addition to costs such sum as the 
court may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees, or in event of appeal as allowed by the appellate 
court. 
 
17.4 Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is determined by a court to be in conflict with any 
statute or constitution or to be unlawful for any reason, the parties intend that the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless the stricken provision 
leaves the remaining Agreement unenforceable. 
 
17.5 Conflict of Interest.  Copley covenants that he presently has no interest and shall not acquire 
any interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of 
services required to be performed under this Agreement.  The parties agree that this Agreement may 
be cancelled for conflict of interest in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-511. 
 
17.6 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and 
shall not be changed or added to except by written amendment. All prior and contemporaneous 
agreements, representations and understandings of the parties, oral or written, other than 
specifically incorporated herein by reference, are superseded by this Agreement. 
 
17.7 No waiver. No waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent to any breach of any term, covenant, 
or condition hereof shall be construed as, or constitute, a waiver of, acquiescence in, or consent 
to any other, further, or succeeding breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition. 
 



 

 Page 6 of 6  
 
 
4335272.1  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Flagstaff has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed in its behalf by the undersigned Mayor of the City of Flagstaff, and Joshua Copley has 
signed and executed this Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 
 

City of Flagstaff  Joshua Copley 
   

Jerry Nabours, Mayor   
   
Attest:   
   

City Clerk   
   
Approved as to form:   
   

City Attorney   
 



  10. E.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Don Jacobson, Court Administrator

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration of Appointments:  Magistrates and Presiding Magistrate for the Flagstaff Municipal
Court

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the appointments of Thomas L. Chotena as the Presiding Magistrate, Michael Araujo as
Magistrate and Paul Julien as Magistrate, On-Call.

Executive Summary:
Appointment of all magistrates is required to be completed by the Flagstaff City Council for a two year
term under both the City Charter and FCC Section 1-15-001-0002(A).  Appointment of judges for the
Municipal Court allows for ongoing operations of the court without interruption.  

Magistrates hear criminal, civil and traffic matters that are filed in the Flagstaff Municipal Court.  The
conduct trials, both jury and non-jury, and sentence individuals within the parameters set by law. 
Magistrates are required for the ongoing operational needs of the Municipal Court.  Magistrates are
critical to the criminal and civil processes of the judicial branch.

The Presiding Magistrate not only has the same responsibilities and duties of the other Magistrates within
the court, but is also responsible for the ongoing operation of the court.  Under Arizona Supreme Court
Administrative Order 2005-32 the Presiding Magistrate works with the Court Administrator to administer
justice and provide a safe, fair and efficient environment for the resolution of conflicts.

Judges Chotena, Araujo and Julien have all been serving in their current capacity at the Municipal Court
and are requesting to continue in their current roles.

Financial Impact:
Funding for all judicial positions are included in the approved budget of the Municipal Court. No
additional budgetary impact anticipated.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
1) Invest in our employees and implement retention and attraction strategies
5) Develop and implement guiding principles that address public safety service levels through
appropriate staffing levels

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:



All the current judges seeking appointment have previously been appointed by the Flagstaff City Council.

Options and Alternatives:
Approve the appointments.
Don't approve the appointments and request alternative candidates for Council consideration.

Community Involvement:
Inform

Attachments: 



  10. F.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Shannon Anderson, Human Resources Manager

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-14:  Amending the Employee Handbook of
Regulations and Flagstaff City Code by adopting amendments relating to Retiree Insurance relating to
eligibility.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
At the July 7, 2015, Regular Council Meeting:
1)  Read Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the first time by title only
2)  City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the first time by title only (if approved above)
At the July 21, 2015, Regular Council Meeting:
3) Read Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time (if approved above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-14

Executive Summary:
The amendments to the Employee Handbook of Regulations and Flagstaff City Code relating to Retiree
Insurance include: 

Clarifying the definition of NAPEBT; and
Aligning the eligibility for retiree insurance with the other Northern Arizona Public Employee Benefit
Trust employers to be five (5) years of continuous service with one or more of the NAPEBT
employers.

A legal question was raised and the City hopes to have an answer by the City Council meeting on
Tuesday, July 7, 2015.  If the City has not received the answer by Tuesday, July 7th, this item will be
rescheduled for a future City Council meeting. 

Financial Impact:
None.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No.
  
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
Option 1:  Support the changes requested by the Northern Arizona Public Employees Benefit Trust
Trustees.
Option 2:  Request other changes to be incorporated into the ordinance.
Option 3:  Maintain the current ordinance as written and do not adopt any changes.

Community Involvement:
Inform.

Attachments:  Ord. 2015-14



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
RELATING TO RETIREE INSURANCE, AMENDING THE EMPLOYEE 
HANDBOOK OF REGULATIONS AND FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE, PROVIDING 
FOR PENALTIES, REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, 
SEVERABILITY, AUTHORITY FOR CLERICAL CORRECTIONS, AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to provide retirees insurance consistent with policy established by 
the Northern Arizona Public Employees Benefit Trust (“NAPEBT”). 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. In General.  
  
The Flagstaff City Code, Title 1, Administrative, Chapter 14, Personnel System, Section 1-14-
001-0001 Personnel System Adopted, is hereby amended by adopting those changes to the 
Employee Handbook of Regulations, herein referred to as “2015 Addendum 7 of the Flagstaff 
Employee Handbook of Regulations,” as follows (additions shown in underlined capitalized text, 
deletions shown as stricken, and paragraphs E and F renumbered as B.2 and B.3 respectively): 
 

1-70-030. RETIREE INSURANCE 
 
The City will provide medical and dental insurance for eligible City retirees under certain 
terms and conditions, all of which are subject to change in part or in whole depending on 
policy changes made by the Northern Arizona Public Employees Benefit Trust (NAPEBT)  
or the City policy.   
 
A. DEFINITIONS: 
 
“NAPEBT EMPLOYER” MEANS ANY EMPLOYER MEMBER OF THE NORTHERN 
ARIZONA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT TRUST.  
 
B. ELIGIBILITY: 
 
A.1. To be eligible, an employee must retire from City service AFTER A MINIMUM OF 

FIVE (5) YEARS OF CONTINUOUS SERVICE WITH ONE OR MORE NAPEBT 
EMPLOYERS and apply for and receive retirement benefits from either the Arizona 
State Retirement System or the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System. 

 
E.2, Retirees can maintain their coverage under the provisions of this program until the 

retiree reaches age sixty-five (65) and/or becomes entitled to Medicare.  
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-14   PAGE 2 
 
 

F.3. Dependent coverage is available subject to the limitations outlined in the City’s 
group health insurance policy.  Dependents cannot continue in this insurance 
program when the retiree is no longer eligible, but will be eligible to continue 
benefits under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 
(COBRA).  The domestic partner will not be eligible to continue benefits under 
COBRA unless the employee elects continuation for himself/herself or the domestic 
partner is a qualified tax code dependent.   

 
C. PROCEDURES: 
 
B.1. The retirees will pay the entire premium amount; there will be no City contribution.  

The premium rates will be reviewed annually. 
 
C.2. Those eligible employees retiring will have thirty (30) days after their last working 

day to enroll in the insurance program.  If they fail to do so within this thirty (30) day 
period they will be unable to join at a later date.   

 
D3. Payments will be made directly to the City of Flagstaff through its Finance Section 

on a monthly basis by the due date of the statement, which is approximately the 
20th of each month.  It is the responsibility of the retirees to make the payments.  
Participants who fail to pay are subject to cancellation. 

 
 

SECTION 2. Penalties.  
 
Any person found in violation of any provision of the Flagstaff Employee Handbook of Regulations 
may be subject to discipline, as set forth in such Handbook.    
 
SECTION 3.   Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances.  
 
All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance or any 
part of the code adopted herein by reference are hereby repealed.   
 
SECTION 4.   Severability. 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance or any part of 
the code adopted herein by reference is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by 
the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions thereof. 
 
SECTION 5.  Clerical Corrections. 
 
The Human Resources Director is hereby authorized to correct typographical and grammatical 
errors, as well as errors of wording and punctuation, as necessary, related to the City of 
Flagstaff Employee Handbook of Regulations as amended herein, and to make formatting 
changes needed for purposes of clarity and form, or consistency.   
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-14   PAGE 3 
 
 
SECTION 6.  Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days following adoption by the City Council.  
The changes to the Employee Handbook of Regulations as set forth in Section 1 of this 
ordinance shall be effective from and after July 1, 2015.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Flagstaff this 21st day of July, 2015.  
 
 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
ATTORNEY 
 



  15. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stephanie Sarty, Transportation Engineering
Project Manager

Co-Submitter: Jeff Bauman, Traffic Engineer

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015 - 12:  An ordinance of approval for the Roadway
Functional Classifications and Truck Routes map being placed into the Engineering Standards. 
(Update/Addition to Engineering Standards)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
At the City Council meeting of July 7, 2015
1) Read Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only for the first time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only (if approved above)
At the City Council meeting of July 21, 2015
3) Read Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only for the final time
4) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-12 by title only (if approved above)
5) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-12

Executive Summary:
The 2001 Regional Plan included detailed maps, (Map 10: Circulation – Regional Roadway
Categorization Plan, and Map 11: Circulation - Regional Truck Route Map). Map 10 was used for
proposed developments by contractors, citizens, and city staff to determine roadway classifications and
the associated roadway design standards. It is referenced in the Engineering Standards and Zoning
Code. The new 2030 Regional Plan does not include a detailed map with functional classifications like
Map 10, or a truck route map like Map 11. It was planned that after the adoption of the 2030 Regional
Plan, a Transportation Master Plan would be created to cover the details missing from the Regional Plan.
Developing a Transportation Master Plan is a long process, so for the time being, temporarily putting the
more detailed Roadway Functional Classification Map (including truck routes) into the Engineering
Standards will satisfy this need.

Along with the map, definitions of the various classifications, and a description of the truck routes will be
included in the addendum (Appendix A). Providing the map, definitions, and cross-sections all in one
place will help the public, developers, and City staff with locating the documents. Since the Engineering
Standards make references to the old Regional Plan, these locations will now be directed to the
addendum, and can be found in Appendix A.

As a result of the 2030 Regional Plan, the Roadway Functional Classification Map has been updated to
match the Regional Plan. Each change made can be reviewed in the following attachment (Appendix B).

During the February 4th Transportation Commission meeting, Commission members made a



recommendation of approval of the Roadway Functional Classifications Map and recommended that it be
placed into the Engineering Standards with the attached changes.

Financial Impact:
None. 

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics
7) Address key issues and processes related to the implementation of the Regional Plan
8) Improve effectiveness of notification, communication, and engagement with residents, neighborhoods
and businesses and about City services, programs, policies, projects and developments

REGIONAL PLAN:
Chapter IX - Growth Areas & Land Use
Goal LU.16. Establish heavy industrial areas that provide for the manufacturing of goods, flexible space,
and intermodal facilities that are well maintained, attractive, and compatible with adjoining nonindustrial
uses.

Chapter X - Transportation
Goal T.1. Improve mobility and access throughout the region.
Goal T.2. Improve transportation safety and efficiency for all modes.
Goal T.6. Provide for bicycling as a safe and efficient means of transportation and recreation. 
Goal T.8. Establish a functional, safe, and aesthetic hierarchy of roads and streets.
 
Chapter XI - Cost of Development
Goal CD.1. Improve the City and County financial systems to provide for needed infrastructure
development and rehabilitation, including maintenance and enhancement of existing infrastructure. 

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Sara Dechter presented the Regional Plan Annual Report at the Work Session meeting on June 9th. 
During her presentation she mentioned that in addition to the Major Plan Amendment for Map 25, a road
functional classification map would be redone and added into the Engineering Standards.  

Options and Alternatives:
1.  Approve - Will be added to the Engineering Standards
2.  Modify - Delay the approval of the ordinance
3.  Do Not Approve - Will not be added to the Engineering Standards and will need to be addressed in
the future 

Community Involvement:
Empower

Attachments:  Ord. 2015-12
Appendix A - Engineering Standards Information and New Map
Appendix B - Changes



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE, 
CHAPTER 13-10, STREETS, BY ADDING SECTION 13-10-014 
“ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS AND TRUCK 
ROUTES”; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES, SEVERABILITY, AUTHORITY FOR CLERICAL 
CORRECTIONS, AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, Arizona Revised Statutes § 9-240(B)(3)(a) authorizes the City of Flagstaff 
to exercise complete control over streets, alleys, avenues and sidewalks within the City; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Under the authority of the Flagstaff City Charter, Article XIII General 
Provisions, Section 9 the Flagstaff City Council adopted the proposed 2030 Regional 
Plan on January 14, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Flagstaff voters ratified the 2030 Regional Plan on May 20, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, under the 2030 Regional Plan a specific Streets Master Plan must be 
developed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the development of a specific Streets Master Plan will benefit from the 
addition of a more detailed roadway functional classification map to the Engineering 
Standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 13-10 of the Flagstaff City Code contains Engineering Standards 
which may be amended to add a more detailed roadway functional classification map;  
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. In General. 
 
The Flagstaff City Code, Chapter 13-10 is hereby amended by the addition of Sections: 
13-10-014 ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION AND TRUCK ROUTES; 13-
10-014-0001 ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS; 13-10-014.0001.1 
DEFINITIONS; 13-10-014.0002 TRUCK ROUTES; 13-10-014-0003 MAPS; in the 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-12  PAGE 2 
 
 
language and maps which are set forth below and hereby incorporated herein as 
follows:  
 
13-10-014 Roadway Functional Classifications and Truck Routes 
 
13-10-014-0001 Roadway Functional Classifications 
 
This chapter defines the roadway functional classes and also provides a map of the City 
of Flagstaff with the various roadway classifications and truck routes. 
 
13-10-014-0001.1 Definitions 
 
“Freeways” refer to high-speed facilities with access permitted only at traffic 
interchanges. 
 
“Major Arterials” provide relatively high-capacity roadways for longer trips. They provide 
direct service to major regional centers or activity and often serve as boundaries 
between districts. Major Arterials provide roadway continuity and length for trans-
regional, inter-regional and inter-state trips and connect the Flagstaff region to 
surrounding regions. Throughput capacity will be emphasized over local access. 
Adjacent land uses include commercial areas, open space, public lands, industrial sites 
and institutional sites. Residential property will not abut Major Arterials unless separated 
by adequate buffering. 
 
“Minor Arterials” provide capacity and continuity for travel between different districts of 
the region. Adjacent land uses include residential and commercial areas, open space, 
public lands, industrial sites, and institutional sites. The activity center for a district will 
often be located along a Minor Arterial or at the intersection of a Minor Arterial with 
another Minor Arterial or a Major Collector. 
 
“Major Collectors” collect traffic from Minor Collectors and Local streets within a district 
and deliver that traffic to Major or Minor Arterials. They are generally not intended to 
serve trans-regional trips and generally will not provide route continuity for more than a 
mile or two (except in rural areas where they may be longer). These roadways are 
generally contained entirely within a district and connect the neighborhoods of that 
district with each other. Adjacent land uses include residential and commercial areas, 
open space, public lands, industrial site, and institutional sites. 
 
“Minor Collectors” collect traffic from Local streets and deliver it to Major Collectors or 
Minor Arterials. They will not serve trans-regional trips and will not provide route 
continuity for more than a mile (except in rural areas where they may be longer). 
Adjacent land uses include residential and commercial areas, open space, public lands, 
industrial sites, and institutional sites. The contribution of Minor Collectors to the 
structural framework of the region is minimal, but affect neighborhood form. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-12  PAGE 3 
 
 
“Commercial Local” refers to streets that provide for direct vehicle, bicycle, and 
pedestrian access to commercial land uses. The streets do not serve trans-regional 
trips and provide no route continuity beyond the areas they connect. Adjacent land uses 
include commercial areas, industrial sites, and institutional sites. 
 
13-10-014-0002 Truck Routes 
 
The Truck Routes map positively identifies where trucks are to operate for cross and 
through-town trips. The Regional Plan policies direct the City and County to develop 
regulations for specifying how trucks may make deliveries (i.e., make use of the shortest 
route in and out of a residential area, during certain hours in certain zones). The map 
will guide investment and design decisions so that trucks may operate in the Flagstaff 
region safely and efficiently. 
 
13-10-014-0003 Map 
 
Please see the map found in the “Roadway Functional Classification Map” which 
is attached hereto and hereby incorporated herein by this reference as “13-10-
014-0003 Map”. 
 
SECTION 2. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. 
 
All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of the code 
adopted herein are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  Severability 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance or any 
part of the code adopted herein by reference is for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
SECTION 4.  Clerical Corrections. 
 
The City Clerk is hereby authorized to correct clerical and grammatical errors, if any, 
related to this ordinance, and to make formatting changes appropriate for purposes of 
clarity, form, or consistency with the Flagstaff City Code. 
 
SECTION 5.  Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days following adoption by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-12  PAGE 4 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Flagstaff this 21st the day of 
July, 2015. 
 
 
 
        
 MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 



W ROUTE 66

S 
M

IL
TO

N
 R

D

N H
IG

HW
AY

 89

E ROUTE 66

S STATE ROUTE 89A

BUTLER

FO
U

R
TH

COLUMBUS

BUTLER

CEDAR

WOODY
MOUNTA

IN

ST
AT

E 
R

O
U

TE
 8

9A

ROUTE 66

INDUSTRIAL

BE
AV

ER

JO
HN W

 P
OW

ELL

LAKE M
ARY

ROUTE 66

JOHN W POW
ELL

FOREST
BEULA

H

LAKE MARY

NESTLE PURINA

HUNTIN
GTO

N

SW
ITZER

C
AN

YO
N

I40 WB TO RTE 66

ROUTE 66

FANNING

FRANKLIN

SIXTH

PI
N

E 
C

LI
FF

MARKETPLACE

W
E

S
T

SA
W

M
IL

L

D
O

D
G

E

SEVENTH

CONTINENTAL

LAKIN

UNIVERSITY

TE
S

T

LOCKETT

EMPIRE

TH
O

M
P

S
O

N

COUNTRY CLUB

PINE KNO
LL

H
IG

H
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y

FL
AG

ST
AF

F 
R

AN
C

H

PO
N

D
ER

O
SA

TU
R

Q
U

O
ISE

WOODLANDS VILLAGE LO
N

E
 T

R
E

E

G
E

M
IN

I

PU
LL

IA
M

SOLIERE

¯
0 10.5

Miles

Legend

Future Freeway

Freeway

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

Future Minor Arterial

Major Collector

Future Major Collector

Minor Collector

Future Minor Collector

Commercial Local

Future Commercial Local

Truck Routes

EL
D

EN

VE
R

D
E

LE
R

O
U

X

AG
AS

SI
Z

SI
TG

R
EA

VE
S

M
AL

PA
IS

R
O

U
TE

 6
6

ROUTE 66

H
U

M
PH

R
EY

S

M
IL

TO
N

BE
AV

ER

SA
N

 F
R

AN
C

IS
C

O
BE

AV
ER

SA
N

 F
R

AN
C

IS
C

O

BUTLER

SWITZER CANYON

CHERRY

BIRCH

ASPEN

ELM

CLAY

BO
N

IT
O

TH
O

R
PE

SANTA FE

Roadway
Functional

Classification
Map

Effective XXEngineering Design Standards

CHAPTER 13 - 10
STREETS

Section 13-10-014-0003 Map



CITY OF FLAGSTAFF ENGINEERING STANDARDS 

 

FLAGSTAFF ADDENDUM TO 
FLAGSTAFF ENGINEERING STANDARDS 

 
This addendum is part of Ordinance No. 2015 – 12, Roadway 
Functional Classifications and Truck Routes.   

Attached is a new page insert and map that belongs between pages 
132 and 133 in the 2012 Engineering Standards.   

The 2012 Engineering Standards make numerous references to the 
2001 Regional Plan.  Since a new Regional Plan has been adopted, 
that does not have the detailed maps, these references are 
invalid.  The following are locations that refer to the 2001 
Regional Plan, and will now be referred to as Section 13-10-014.   

 Page 97 
 Page 98 
 Page 112 
 Page 113 
 Page 114 

 Page 115 
 Page 116 
 Page 123 
 Page 126 
 Page 132 

 
New Engineering Standards are currently being revised, and are 
anticipated to be completed in April of 2016.  The above 
locations will be corrected when the 2016 Engineering Standards 
are developed. 

 

Appendix A 



CHAPTER 13-10 

STREETS 
 

Engineering Design Standards XX Effective XX 

Sections: 

13–10–014  Roadway Functional Classifications and Truck Routes 

13-10-014-0001.  Roadway Functional Classifications 
13-10-014-0001.1  Definitions 
 
13-10-014-0002  Truck Routes 

13-10-014-0003  Map 

Section 13-10-014 Roadway Functional Classifications and Truck Routes 

Section 13-10-014-0001. Roadway Functional Classifications 

This chapter defines the roadway functional classes and also provides a map of 
the City of Flagstaff with the various roadway classifications and truck routes.   

Section 13-10-014-0001.1 Definitions 

“Freeways” refer to high-speed facilities with access permitted only at traffic 
interchanges 

“Major Arterials” provide relatively high-capacity roadways for longer trips.  
They provide direct service to major regional centers or activity and often 
serve as boundaries between districts.  Major Arterials provide roadway 
continuity and length for trans-regional, inter-regional and inter-state trips 
and connect the Flagstaff region to surrounding regions.  Throughput capacity 
will be emphasized over local access.  Adjacent land uses include commercial 
areas, open space, public lands, industrial sites and institutional sites.  
Residential property will not abut Major Arterials unless separated by adequate 
buffering.   

“Minor Arterials” provide capacity and continuity for travel between different 
districts of the region.  Adjacent land uses include residential and commercial 
areas, open space, public lands, industrial sites, and institutional sites.  
The activity center for a district will often be located along a Minor Arterial 
or at the intersection of a Minor Arterial with another Minor Arterial or a 
Major Collector. 

“Major Collectors” collect traffic from Minor Collectors and Local streets 
within a district and deliver that traffic to Major or Minor Arterials.  They 
are generally not intended to serve trans-regional trips and generally will not 
provide route continuity for more than a mile or two (except in rural areas 
where they may be longer).  These roadways are generally contained entirely 
within a district and connect the neighborhoods of that district with each 
other.  Adjacent land uses include residential and commercial areas, open space, 
public lands, industrial site, and institutional sites. 

“Minor Collectors” collect traffic from Local streets and deliver it to Major 
Collectors or Minor Arterials.  They will not serve trans-regional trips and 
will not provide route continuity for more than a mile (except in rural areas 
where they may be longer).  Adjacent land uses include residential and 
commercial areas, open space, public lands, industrial sites, and institutional 
sites.  The contribution of Minor Collectors to the structural framework of the 
region is minimal, but affect neighborhood form.   



CHAPTER 13-10 

STREETS 
 

Engineering Design Standards XX Effective XX 

“Commercial Local” refer to streets that provide for direct vehicle, bicycle, 
and pedestrian access to commercial land uses.  The streets do not serve 
trans-regional trips and provide no route continuity beyond the areas they 
connect.  Adjacent land uses include commercial areas, industrial sites, and 
institutional sites.  

Section 13-10-014-0002 Truck Routes 

The Truck Routes map positively identifies where trucks are to operate for cross 
and through-town trips. The Regional Plan policies direct the City and County 
to develop regulations for specifying how trucks may make deliveries (i.e., 
make use of the shortest route in and out of a residential area, during certain 
hours in certain zones). The map will guide investment and design decisions so 
that trucks may operate in the Flagstaff region safely and efficiently. 



W ROUTE 66

S
 M

IL
T

O
N

 R
D

N H
IG

HW
AY

 8
9

E ROUTE
66

S STATE ROUTE 89A

BUTLER

F
O

U
R

T
H

COLUMBUS

BUTLER

CEDAR

W
OODY

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

S
TA

T
E

 R
O

U
T

E
 8

9A

ROUTE 66

INDUSTRIAL

B
E

A
V

E
R

JO
HN W

 P
O

W
ELL

LA
K

E
 M

A
R

Y

ROUTE 66

JOHN W
POW

ELL

FOREST
BEULA

H

LAKE MARY

NESTLE PURINA

H
UNTI

NG
TO

N

S
W

IT
Z

E
R

C
A

N
Y

O
N

I40 WB TO RTE 66

ROUTE 66

FA
N

N
IN

G

FRANKLIN

SIXTH

P
IN

E
 C

LI
F

F

MARKETPLACE

W
E

S
T

S
A

W
M

IL
L

D
O

D
G

E

SEVENTH

CONTINENTAL

LAKIN

UNIVERSITY

T
E

S
T

LOCKETT

EMPIRE

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

C
O

U
N

TR
Y C

LU
B

P
IN

E
 K

N
O

LL

H
IG

H
 C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

F
LA

G
S

TA
F

F
 R

A
N

C
H

P
O

N
D

E
R

O
S

A

T
U

R
Q

U
O

IS
E

W
OODLANDS VILLAGE L

O
N

E
 T

R
E

E

G
E

M
IN

I

P
U

LL
IA

M
SOLIERE

¯
0 10.5

Miles

Legend

Future Freeway

Freeway

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

Future Minor Arterial

Major Collector

Future Major Collector

Minor Collector

Future Minor Collector

Commercial Local

Future Commercial Local

Truck Routes

E
LD

E
N

V
E

R
D

E

LE
R

O
U

X

A
G

A
S

S
IZ

S
IT

G
R

E
AV

E
S

M
A

L
P

A
IS

R
O

U
T

E
 6

6

ROUTE 66

H
U

M
P

H
R

E
Y

S

M
IL

T
O

N

B
E

A
V

E
R

S
A

N
 F

R
A

N
C

IS
C

O
B

E
A

V
E

R

S
A

N
 F

R
A

N
C

IS
C

O

BUTLER

SWITZER CANYON

CHERRY

BIRCH

ASPEN

ELM

CLAY

B
O

N
IT

O

T
H

O
R

P
E

SANTA FE

Roadway
Functional

Classification
Map

Effective XXEngineering Design Standards

CHAPTER 13 - 10

STREETS
Section 13-10-014-0003 Map



1 | P a g e  

 

FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION MAP CHANGES 

  

The following changes have been made in the downtown and McMillian Mesa areas of 
Flagstaff: 

 Santa Fe Ave. changed from a major collector to a minor collector 

 Elden St. changed from a minor collector to commercial local 

 Terrace Ave. changed from minor collector to local 

 George St. to David Dr. on Cherry Ave changed from minor collector to local 

 Existing Ponderosa Pkwy, between Turquoise and the Catholic Church, changed 

from minor collector to major collector 

 The future extension of Ponderosa Pkwy has been added as a future major 

collector 

 Gemini, west of Cedar Ave., has been added as a minor collector 

 Turquoise Dr., north of Juniper Ave., has changed from minor collector to local 

Appendix B 



2 | P a g e  

 

  

The following changes have been made in the Sunnyside and Foxglenn areas of 
Flagstaff: 

 Main St. changed from minor collector to local 

 Huntington Dr. changed from major collector to minor arterial 

 6th Ave. changed from minor collector to major collector 

 King St. changed from local to minor collector 

 Caden Ct. changed from local to commercial local 

 The future extension of Linda Vista Dr. has been added as a future minor 
collector 



3 | P a g e  

 

  

The following changes have been made in the mall and Smokerise areas of Flagstaff: 

 Railhead Ave. changed from major collector to commercial local 

 Dodge Ave. changed from minor collector to local 

 A small section of Huntington Dr. (near Country Club Dr.) changed from local to 

commercial local 

 Kaspar Dr. changed from local to minor collector 

 Lynch Ave. changed from local to commercial local 

 Mall Way changed from commercial local to minor collector 

 Dakota St. changed from major collector to minor collector 

 Cortland Blvd changed from commercial local to minor collector and was 

extended to the end of the cul-de-sac 



4 | P a g e  

 

  

The following changes have been made in the Country Club area of Flagstaff: 

 Timberline Rd. changed from minor collector to local 

 Old Walnut Canyon Rd. changed from an existing road to a future road 

 Butler Ave., from Walnut Hills Dr. to Old Walnut Canyon Rd., changed from 
future major collector to future minor collector 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  

 

  

The following changes have been made in the Northern Arizona University area of 
Flagstaff: 

 Riordan Rd., from Riordan Ranch St. to Knoles Dr., changed from commercial 

local to local 

 The future extension of Beulah Blvd changed from a future minor collector to a 

future major collector 

 Sawmill Rd. changed from a future minor arterial to a major collector 

 The future extension of Clay Ave. has been added as a future minor collector 

 Metz Walk changed from local to commercial local 

 Pine Knoll Dr., east of Lone Tree Rd., changed from local to minor collector 

 The future extension of Anita Ave. has been added as a future minor collector 

 The future connector, connecting Babbitt Dr. and Butler Ave., has been added as 

a future commercial local 

 Proposed new roadways in the Juniper Point development have been added as 

future minor collectors 

 Harold Ranch Rd. changed from local to future major collector 



6 | P a g e  

 

  

The following changes have been made in the University Heights area of Flagstaff: 

 Kiltie Ln. changed from minor collector to local 

 Patio Del Presidio changed from future minor collector to minor collector and now 

stops at Mission Timber Cir. 

 Presidio Dr. was added as a minor collector 

 Kaibab Ln. was changed from commercial local to minor collector 

 Cattle Drive Tr. changed from minor collector to local 

 Shamrell Blvd changed from future major collector to minor collector 

 Pulliam Dr. changed from commercial local to minor collector 

 Forest Meadows St., north of University Ave., changed from local to commercial 

local 

 Highland Mesa Rd. changed from local to minor collector 

 University Heights, north of Andrea Dr., changed from local to minor collector 

 Proposed roadways near the future Woody Mountain connector have been 

added as future major collectors 

 Beulah Blvd realignment has been added as a future minor arterial 

 Proposed overpass/underpass has been added to connect Beulah Realignment 

to John W. Powell as a future major collector 

 High Country Tr. connection has been added as a future major collector 

 



  15. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 06/29/2015

Meeting Date: 07/07/2015

TITLE: 
Approval of Ballot Language:  For November 2015 Special Election. (Approval of Ballot Language
as exhibit to Resolution No. 2015-26)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Ballot Language as Exhibit to Resolution No. 2015-26 adopted on June 16, 2015.

Executive Summary:
The City Council initially gave direction to conduct a comprehensive review of the City Charter through a
City Manager-appointed resident committee. This committee met eight times during 2014 and presented
their recommendations to the City Manager in October. On October 28 and November 25, 2014, the City
Council discussed these proposals and directed staff to bring back, in resolution form, those proposals
which were housekeeping changes that were either clarifying or of a technical nature. Those proposals
were placed on the ballot for May 19, 2015, and ten of the twelve proposals were approved by the voters.
The remaining proposals, which focus more broadly on policy were taken to the residents of Flagstaff for
additional input.

At their June 16, 2015, a majority of Council adopted Resolution No. 2015-25, with the condition that the
ballot language (attached as an exhibit) be approved by the Council. The attached language includes the
six questions previously presented and the additional two that were added at the last Council meeting.

Financial Impact:
None

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
8) Improve effectiveness of notification, communication, and engagement with residents, neighborhoods
and businesses and about City services, programs, policies, projects and developments 

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes, as outlined in the Executive Summary above, these questions have been discussed by the City
Council at various times over the past year, most recently at the June 16, 2015, Council meeting.
  
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
1) Approve the language
2) Amend the language

Background/History:
The City Council initially gave direction to conduct a comprehensive review of the City Charter through a
City Manager-appointed resident committee. This committee met eight times during 2014 and presented
their recommendations to the City Manager in October. On October 28 and November 25, 2014, the City
Council discussed these proposals and directed staff to bring back, in resolution form, those proposals
which were housekeeping changes that were either clarifying or of a technical nature. Those proposals
were placed on the ballot for May 19, 2015. The remaining proposals, which focus more broadly on policy
were taken to the residents of Flagstaff for additional input.

At their June 16, 2015, a majority of Council adopted Resolution No. 2015-25, with the condition that the
ballot language (attached as an exhibit) be approved by the Council. The attached language includes the
six questions previously presented and the additional two that were added at the last Council meeting.

Community Involvement:
Inform
Consult
Involve
Collaborate
Empower

Attachments:  Ballot Language



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26  PAGE 3 
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 

FORM OF OFFICIAL BALLOT 

OFFICIAL BALLOT 

QUESTION NO. 1 

 
Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, Article II, Section 13, SPECIAL 
MEETINGS, be amended as follows: 
 
The Mayor OR CITY MANAGER  may, or, at the request of three (3) members of 
the Council, shall, by giving notice thereof to all members of the Council then in the 
City, call a special meeting of the Council for a time not earlier than three (3) hours 
after the notice is given.1 Special meetings of the Council may also be held at any 
time by the common consent of all the members of the Council. 

 

OFFICIAL TITLE: AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE II, SECTION 13, SPECIAL MEETINGS, OF THE 
FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 

DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article II, Section 13, Special Meetings, to allow the City Manager to call 
special meetings. 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article II, 
Section 13, of the Charter to allow the City Manager to 
call special meetings. 

 

YES 

 

 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
II, Section 13, of the Charter and maintaining that only the 
Mayor or three members of Council may call special 
meetings. 

 

NO 

 

 

 
 
QUESTION NO. 2 

Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona Article IV, Section 5, 
PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS, be amended as follows: 
 
The Council shall, by ordinance, provide for the establishment of THE CITY 
MANAGER SHALL ESTABLISH Personnel Rules and Regulations, EXCEPT 
THOSE RESERVED TO THE COUNCIL UNDER THIS CHARTER, for the 
purpose of regulating and controlling the appointments, promotions, 

                                                           
1 ARS §38-431.02 preempts the ability of the Mayor or Council to call a special meeting for a time not earlier than 
three (3) hours; therefore, twenty-four (24) hours is required. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26  PAGE 4 
 

demotions, discharges, and reinstatements of all officers and employees of 
the City, except those elected by the people, members of appointive boards and 
commissions, and volunteers who serve without pay, and also except the City 
Manager, the City Attorney, and the Police Judges. 

 

OFFICIAL TITLE: AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE IV, SECTION 5, PERSONNEL RULES AND 
REGULATIONS, OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 

DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article IV, Section 5, PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS, to allow the 
City Manager to establish all personnel rules and regulations. 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article 
IV, Section 5, of the Charter to allow the City Manager 
to establish all personnel rules and regulations except 
Council may adopt personnel rules and regulations if 
another section of the Charter reserves that authority to 
Council. (See Question No. 3) 

 

 

YES 

 

 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
IV, Section 5, of the Charter, and maintaining that the 
Council shall establish all personnel rules and 
regulations. 

 

 

 

NO 

 

 

 

QUESTION NO. 3 

Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona Article III, Section 3, POWERS 
AND DUTIES [of the City Manager], paragraph (c) be amended as follows: 
 
The City Manager shall: 
(a)… 
(b)… 
(c)  Appoint and, when necessary for the good of the service, lay off, suspend, 
transfer, demote, or remove all officers and employees of the City, except as 
otherwise provided by this Charter, and except as the Manager may authorize 
the head of a department or office to appoint and remove subordinates in such 
department or office, EXCEPT THAT THE COUNCIL MAY ESTABLISH subject 
to such merit system regulations REQUIRING NOTICE AND A REVIEW OR 
HEARING PRIOR TO ANY LAYOFF, SUSPENSION, DEMOTION, AND 
TERMINATION as the Council may adopt; 

 

OFFICIAL TITLE: AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE III, SECTION 3, POWERS AND DUTIES [of 
the City Manager], OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26  PAGE 5 
 

DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article III, Section 3, POWERS AND DUTIES [of the City Manager], to 
provide for the Council to establish regulations requiring notice and review or hearing prior 
to any layoff, suspension, demotion, and termination. 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article 
III, Section 3, of the Charter, and there are two possible 
outcomes, depending on the results of Question No. 2:  
If Question No. 2 is approved by the voters, Council will 
only have authority to establish personnel regulations 
regarding notice and review or hearing prior to any 
layoff, suspension, demotion, or termination of city 
employees. If Question No. 2 is not approved, Council 
will retain authority to establish all personnel 
regulations. 
 

 
 
 
 
YES 

 
 
 
 
 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
III, Section 3, of the Charter, and there are two possible 
outcomes, depending on the results of Question No. 2: If 
Question No. 2 is approved by the voters, the City 
Manager will have authority to establish all personnel 
regulations including those related to review or hearing 
prior to any layoff, suspension, demotion and 
termination. If Question No. 2 is not approved, then 
Council will retain authority to establish all personnel 
regulations including those related to review or hearing 
prior to any layoff, suspension, demotion, and 
termination. 
 

 

                                                                                                    

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
NO 

 
 
 
 

 

 
QUESTION NO. 4 

Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, Article IX, Section 5, PRIMARY 
ELECTIONS, be amended as follows: 
 
Article IX, Section 5 – PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTIONS 
 
(a) The Primary Election shall be held on the first Tuesday in 

February in even numbered years. THE PRIMARY ELECTION 
SHALL BE HELD IN THE SUMMER AND THE GENERAL 
ELECTION SHALL BE HELD IN THE FALL OF EVEN-
NUMBERED YEARS, ON DAYS PROVIDED FOR BY ARIZONA 
STATUTES AS MAY BE AMENDED. The two candidates receiving 
the highest number of votes at the Primary Election for each office 
for which there is a vacancy will be considered nominated for such 
office, and their names shall be printed on the ballot for the General 
Election; provided, that if there be any person who, under the 
provisions of this Section would have been entitled to become a 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26  PAGE 6 
 

candidate for any office except for the fact that some other 
candidate received said equal number of votes therefor, then all 
such persons receiving said equal number of votes shall likewise 
become candidates for such office. 
 

(b) In the event that no more than two candidates file nominating 
petitions for each vacancy in office, the Primary Election may be 
dispensed with as to that office. 

 
so long as the canvass of election shows that: (a) a majority of the qualified 
electors voting in this election approve this amendment; and (b) more votes are 
cast in favor of this amendment than the number of votes cast in favor of the 
option presented (Ballot Question No. 5). 
 
 

OFFICIAL TITLE:  AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE IX, SECTION 5, PRIMARY AND GENERAL 
ELECTIONS, OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 
 
DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article IX, Section 5, Primary AND GENERAL Elections, to hold candidate 
elections in the summer/fall of even-numbered years. 
 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article 
IX, Section 5, of the Charter to hold candidate elections 
in the summer and fall of even-numbered years. 

 

YES 

 

 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
IX, Section 5, of the Charter to hold candidate elections 
in the summer and fall of even-numbered years. If both 
Question No. 4 and 5 fail, the City will hold another 
election to determine future election dates. 

 

NO 

 

 

 

QUESTION NO. 5 

Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, Article IX, Section 5, PRIMARY ELECTIONS, 
be amended as follows: 
 
Article IX, Section 5 – PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTIONS 
 
(c) The Primary Election shall be held on the first Tuesday in February in even 

numbered years. THE PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTIONS SHALL BE 
HELD IN THE SPRING OF ODD-NUMBERED YEARS, ON DAYS PROVIDED 
FOR BY ARIZONA STATUTES AS MAY BE AMENDED. The two candidates 
receiving the highest number of votes at the Primary Election for each office for 
which there is a vacancy will be considered nominated for such office, and their 
names shall be printed on the ballot for the General Election; provided, that if 
there be any person who, under the provisions of this Section would have been 
entitled to become a candidate for any office except for the fact that some other 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26  PAGE 7 
 

candidate received said equal number of votes therefor, then all such persons 
receiving said equal number of votes shall likewise become candidates for such 
office. 
 

(d) In the event that no more than two candidates file nominating petitions for each 
vacancy in office, the Primary Election may be dispensed with as to that office. 
 

so long as the canvass of election shows that: (a) a majority of the qualified electors voting in 
this election approve this amendment; and (b) more votes are cast in favor of this amendment 
than the number of votes cast in favor of the other option presented (Ballot Question No. 4). 
 

OFFICIAL TITLE:  AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE IX, SECTION 5, Primary AND GENERAL 
Elections, OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 

DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article IX, Section 5, Primary AND GENERAL Elections, to hold candidate 
elections in the spring of odd-numbered years. 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article 
IX, Section 5, of the Charter to hold candidate elections 
in the spring of odd-numbered years. 

 
YES 

 
 
 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
IX, Section 5, of the Charter to hold candidate elections 
in the spring of odd-numbered years. If both Question 
No. 4 and 5 fail, the City will hold another election to 
determine future election dates. 
 
 
 

 
 
NO 

 
 
 

 

QUESTION NO. 6 

Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, Article IX, Section 6, TIME OF 
HOLDING THE GENERAL ELECTION, be amended as follows: 
 
Article IX, Section 6 – TIME OF HOLDING THE GENERAL ELECTION 
 
The General Election shall be held on the first Tuesday in March in each even-
numbered year. 

 

OFFICIAL TITLE:  AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE IX, SECTION 6, Time of Holding the General 
Election, OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 

DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article IX, Section 6, Time of Holding the General Election, to eliminate this 
section of the Charter and combine the primary and general elections in one section.  



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26  PAGE 8 
 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article 
IX, Section 6, of the Charter to eliminate this section of 
the Charter and combine the primary and general 
election dates in one section. 

 
 
YES 

 
 
 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
IX, Section 6, of the Charter and the City will hold 
another election to remedy the inconsistency in the 
Charter language. 
 
 

 
 
NO 

 
 

 

 
 

QUESTION NO. 7 

Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, Article II Section 17, 
CONSIDERATION OF PETITIONS, be amended as follows: 
 
Any citizen of the City may present a written petition to the City Manager, SIGNED 
BY A MINIMUM OF 25 CITIZENS FROM THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF IN A FORM 
PRESCRIBED BY ORDINANCE, who shall present it to the Council at its next 
regular meeting; such petition shall be acted upon by the Council, in the regular 
course of business, within thirty-one (31) days after such presentation.  
 

OFFICIAL TITLE:  AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE II, SECTION 17, CONSIDERATION OF 
PETITIONS, OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 

DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article II, Section 17, Consideration of Petitions, to establish requirements for 
petitions submitted to the City. 

 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article 
II, Section 17, of the Charter to require 25 citizens to 
sign a petition before the Council is required to act 
upon that petition. 

 
 
YES 

 
 
 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
II, Section 17, of the Charter and maintaining that any 
citizen may require Council to consider his or her 
petition. 
 
 

 
 
NO 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-26  PAGE 9 
 

QUESTION NO. 8 

Shall the Charter of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona Article VIII, Section 2, 
PURCHASES AND CONTRACTS FOR CITY IMPROVEMENTS,  be amended 
as follows: 
 
 (b)  Any City improvement costing fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or 

more, or any purchase costing more than ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($100,000) fifty thousand dollars ($50,000), shall be executed 
by contract, except where such improvements or purchase is authorized 
by the Council to be executed directly by a City department, in conformity 
with detailed plans, specifications, and estimates approved by the City 
Manager. Such contracts shall be advertised for bids, as directed in Section 
3 of this Article. The City Manager, with the approval of the City Council, 
may enter into a contract with the lowest responsible bidder whose 
proposal is the most satisfactory. 

 (c)  Any contract or purchase exceeding the sum of ONE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000) fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) shall 
require the prior approval of the Council. 

 

OFFICIAL TITLE: AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 2, PURCHASES AND 
CONTRACTS FOR CITY IMPROVEMENTS, OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CHARTER 

DESCRIPTIVE TITLE: A measure referred to the people by the City Council regarding an 
amendment to Article VIII, Section 2, PURCHASES AND CONTRACTS FOR CITY 
IMPROVEMENTS, increasing the threshold dollar amount requiring formal bidding of City 
purchases and contracts from $50,000 to $100,000.  

 

A YES vote shall have the effect of amending Article 
VIII, Section 2, of the Charter increasing the threshold 
dollar amount requiring formal bidding of City 
purchases and contracts from $50,000 to $100,000. 

 

 

YES 

 

 

A  NO vote shall have the effect of not amending Article 
VIII, Section 2, of the Charter, retaining the current 
$50,000 threshold dollar amount requiring formal 
bidding of City purchases and contracts. 

 

 

NO 

 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Item04_A  Minutes
	ATT.04.06.2015.CCJWS
	ATT.04.14.2015.CCWS
	ATT.04.17.2015.CCSWS
	ATT.04.28.2015.CCWS
	ATT.05.12.2015.CCWS
	ATT.06.03.2015.CCSMES
	ATT.06.09.2015.CCSMES
	ATT.06.09.2015.CCWS
	ATT.06.16.2015.CCRM
	ATT.06.11.2015.CCSMES
	ATT.06.12.2015.CCSMES
	ATT.06.30.2015.CCSMES
	Item07_A  Library Board Appointments
	ATT.Library Board Roster
	ATT.Library Board Authority
	ATT.Library Board Applicant Roster
	ATT.Library Board Applications
	Item07_B  Planning & Zoning Commission Appointments
	ATT.PandZ - Roster
	ATT.PandZ - Authority
	ATT.PandZ - Applicant Roster
	ATT.PandZ - Applications
	Item07_C  Open Space Commission Appointments
	ATT.Open Space Roster
	ATT.Open Space Authority
	ATT.Open Space Applicant Roster
	ATT.Open Space Applications
	Item09_A  Advertising Contract with Legends District
	ATT.Flagstaff Cool Zone Contract
	ATT.Sole Source Procurement Provision
	Item10_A  Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (METRO)
	ATT.Grant Agreement FY16 METRO _DC-16-002
	Item10_B  Ordinance Fireworks 
	ATT.Ord. 2015-15
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, AMENDING FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE TITLE 5, FIRE CODE, BY AMENDING SECTION 5-02-002, REGULATIONS FOR THE USE OF CONSUMER FIREWORKS, THEREOF
	5-02-002-0001  Definitions
	5-02-002-0002  Consumer fireworks prohibited; exceptions
	5-02-002-0003  Sale of Fireworks
	5-02-002-0004  Posting of signs by persons engaged in the sale of consumer fireworks; civil penalty
	5-02-002-0005  Authority to enforce violations of this article; means of enforcement
	5-02-002-0006  Liability for emergency responses related to use of fireworks;  definitions
	5-02-002-0007  Penalty


	Item10_C  Property Tax Ordinance
	ATT.2015-11 Property Tax Ordinance
	Item10_D  Appoint City Manager
	ATT.Agreement
	AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS

	The City and Copley enter into an Agreement for Services, under which Copley agrees to serve as the City Manager for the City of Flagstaff.
	1. EMPLOYMENT AND SERVICES
	2. TERM
	3. SALARY
	4. AUTOMOBILE ALLOWANCE
	5. VACATION AND SICK LEAVE
	6. HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE
	7. RETIREMENT
	8. INDEMNIFICATION
	9. BONDING
	10. SUSPENSION, TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY
	11. DISABILITY
	12. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
	13. HOURS OF WORK
	14. OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES
	15. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
	16. NOTICE PROVISIONS
	17. GENERAL PROVISIONS

	Item10_E  Consideration of Appointment of Magistrates and Presiding Magistrate
	Item10_F  Retiree Insurance
	ATT.Ord. 2015-14
	SECTION 1. In General.
	The Flagstaff City Code, Title 1, Administrative, Chapter 14, Personnel System, Section 1-14-001-0001 Personnel System Adopted, is hereby amended by adopting those changes to the Employee Handbook of Regulations, herein referred to as “2015 Addendum 7...

	Item15_A  Engineering Standards - Roadway Classification Map
	ATT.Ord. 2015-12
	ATT.Appendix A - Engineering Standards Information and New Map
	Addendum to Engineering Standards
	Engineering Standards 13-10-014
	Roadway Functional Classes & Truck Route Map

	ATT.Appendix B - Changes
	Item15_B  Res. - Calling Special Election for November 3, 2015
	ATT.Ballot Language

